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Re: Qantas Airways Limited (File No. 82-4130) < t &32
Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Dear Sir/Madam

I am submitting the following information as part of Qantas Airways Limited’s continuing reporting
obligation pursuant to the Rule 12g3-2(h) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

To the Australian Stock Exchange:

Announcement | 20/01/2005 | Full Year Profit

Media Release 11/02/2005 | NJS Names Preferred Bidder for Qantas Link B717s

Media Release 16/02/2005 | Trevor Eastwood Retires from Qantas Board

Announcement 16/02/2005 | Appendix 3B — New Issue Announcement Application for
Quotation of Additional Securities and Agreement

Announcement | 17/02/2005 | Financial Report for the Half-Year Ended 31 December
2004

Media Release 17/02/2005 | Qantas Results for the Half Year Ended 31 December 2004

Announcement 17/02/2005 | 2004/05 Interim Results Presentation to Investors

Announcement | 24/02/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Media Release | 01/03/2005 | Qantas Statement

Announcement | 08/03/2005 | Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Statistics January
2005

Announcement | 22/03/2005 | Appendix 3B — New lIssue Announcement, Application for
Quotation of Additional Securities and Agreement

Announcement | 04/04/2005 | Appendix 3Z — Final Director’s Interest Notice

Announcement | 04/04/2005 | Preliminary Monthly Traffic and Capacity Statistics February
2005

Announcement | 06/04/2005 | Appendix 3Y - Change of Director’s Interest Notice
Geoffrey James Dixon

Announcement 06/04/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director's Interest Notice —
Michael Henry Codd

Announcement | 06/04/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director's Interest Notice —
Patricia Anne Cross

Announcement | 06/04/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director's Interest Notice -

_ Patricia Anne Cross

Announcement | 06/04/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director’s Interest Notice — Garry

' Arthur Hounsell

Media Release 08/04/2005 | Qantas to Increase Fuel Surcharge

Media Release 29/04/2005 | Qantas Announces All-Inclusive Pricing for Airfares

Qantas Airways Limited ABN 16 009 661 901
203 Coward Street Mascot New South Wales 2020 Australia
Telephane 81 (2) 0691 42682 Facsimile 61 (2) 8691 3339

W4




Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith
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QANTAS

Announcement | 02/05/2005 | Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Statistics March
2005

Media Release | 01/06/2005 | Airbus A380 Delay

Announcement | 02/06/2005 | Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Statistics April 2005

Media Release 15/06/2005 | Qantas Welcomes Government Decision

Media Release | 22/06/2005 | Qantas Corrects Media Report

Media Release 24/06/2005 | Qantas Moves to A-IFRS

Media Release 29/06/2005 | Qantas To Fly To Beijing

Announcement | 30/06/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director's Interest Notice -
Geoffrey James Dixon

Announcement | 30/06/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director’s Interest Notice — Peter
Allan Gregg

Media Release 06/07/2005 | Peter Cosgrove Joins Qantas Board

Announcement | 06/07/2005 | Preliminary Monthly Traffic and Capacity Statistics May
2005

Announcement | 06/07/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Initial Director’'s Interest Notice — Peter
Cosgrove

Announcement | 06/07/2005 | Appendix 3Y — Change of Director’s Interest Notice — Peter
Allan Gregg

Media Release 08/07/2005 | Qantas Flights Operating As Normal

Letter 12/07/2005 | Update on the Level of Foreign Relevant Interest in Qantas
Shares

Media Release 15/07/2005 | Qantas Defence Services Establishes New Business

Facility at Canberra

To the Australian Investmgnts and

Securities Commission:

etter 24/01/2005 | Qantas Deferred Share Plan

Form 17/02/2005 | Form 484 — Change to Company Details — Section C2 —
Issue of Shares

Form 17/02/2005 | Form 484 — Change to Company Details — Section C2 -
Issue of Shares

Letter 02/03/2005 | Qantas Deferred Share Plan

Form 01/04/2005 | Form 484 — Cease to Company Officeholder

Form 26/04/2005 | Form 379 — Residential Address or Change in Residential
Address for Persons Entitled to Use an Alternative Address

Letter 06/06/2005 | Form 372 - Application for Suppression or Residential
Address

Form 24/06/2005 | Form 309 — A Notification of Details of a Charge

24/06/2005 24/06/2005 | Form 350 — Certification of Compliance with Stamp Duties
Law

Form 12/07/2005

Form 484 — Section B2 — Appoint Company Officeholder

Please acknowledge receipt of the forgoing by stamping the attached copy of this transmittal

letter.

Please contact me on the below numbers with any questions.

Qantas Airways Limited ABN 16 009 661 901
203 Coward Street Mascot New South Wales 2020 Australia




1/20/05 8:37 FAX100 -> B1 2 988133389 Page 1 of 1

-

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCIHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000

Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 20/01/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:31:36 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Full Year Profit

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open’ is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.
pre-open” p P 2 pany

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge anncuncements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.



General Counsel & Company Secretary
Brett Johnson

QANTAS

20 January 2005

Company Announcements Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
20 Bridge Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir

Qantas Full Year Profit

Qantas confirms that, based on operations to the end of December 2004 and forward
bookings, it continues to believe that its 2005 full year profit will exceed its 2004 profit before
tax of $964.6 million.

As previously advised, Qantas will release its half-year results on Thursday 17 February
2005.

Yours faithfully

“Pparfee—

Brett Johnson
General Counsel & Company Secretary



2/1:1/05 12:068 FAX200 -> B1 Z 96813338 Page 1 of 1

o

ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK IXCHANGC

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PG Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 11/02/2005 ‘ NSW 1215
TIME: 12:05:29 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
' FAXNO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

NJS Named Preferred Bidder for QantasLink B717s

If ASX considers ap announcement (o be sevsitive, trading will be halted for 10 mioutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




Media Release

NJS NAMED PREFERRED BIDDER FOR QANTASLINK B717s

SYDNEY, 11 February 2005: Qantas said today that Adelaide-based National Jet
Systems had been selected as the preferred bidder to operate and maintain QantasLink’s

new Boeing 717 regional flying operations.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Geoff Dixon, said QantasLink announced in
October last year that it would progressively replace its fleet of BAe146 aircraft with newer
Boeing 717 aircraft from July 2005.

The Boeing 717 aircraft will move from Jetstar {o QantasLink as Jetsiar continues to grow
its fleet of new Airbus A320s.

Mr Dixon said the bidding process had been very competitive, with proposals submitted by
National Jet Systems, which currently operates Qantaslink’s BAe146 fleet, and Jetstar,
which currently operates the Boeing 717 fleet.

“In the end the strength of the relationship and the fact that a decision against National Jet
Systems could have resulted in significant job losses in several States were the deciding

fac_tors,” Mr Dixon said.

“National Jet Systems is a highly respected provider of aviation services to Australian
corporate and government organisations.

“They have provided aircraft, pilots and cabin crew to the Qantas Group for fourteen years
and we look forward to continuing this excellent partnership.”

Mr Dixon said confirmation of the selection of Natfional Jet Systems was subject to
satisfactory negotiation of the operating agreement.

“The Boeing 717s will allow Qantaslink to increase capacity on a range of routes in
Western Australia, the Northern Territory and Queensland,” Mr Dixon said.

Eight Boeing 717s, operating in a 115 seat configuration with a 32 inch seat pitch, will
gradually replace eight 65 to 76 seat BAe148s in the QantasLink fleet over the 12 months
beginning July 2005.

QantasLink will continue to fly its remaining two BAe146 aircraft, which are leased until
December 2006.



The routes on which the Boeing 717s will operate include:

Perth-Broome Alice Springs-Ayers Rock
Perth-Kalgoorlie Alice Springs-Broome
Perth-Karratha Alice Springs-Cairns
Perth-Paraburdoo Alice Springs-Darwin
Perth-Port Hedland Alice Springs-Perth
Perth-Newman Ayers Rock-Cairns
Paraburdoo-Newman Ayers Rock-Perth

Cairns-Gove-Darwin

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3211)
NMedia Inquiries: Michael Sharp Tel 02 9681 3468
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224

Australia Square
DATE: 16/02/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 11:47:23 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Internet http:/Awww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
- We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Trevor Eastwood retires from Board

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.
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QANTAS

Media Release

TREVOR EASTWOOD RETIRES FROM QANTAS BOARD

SYDNEY, 16 February 2005: Qantas today announced that Trevor Eastwood, AM will retire
as a Director of Qantas Airways Limited after nearly 10 years on the Board.

The Chairman of Qantas, Margaret Jacksen, said Mr Eastwood had been appointed 1o the
Qantas Board in October 1995 and his retirement would take effect on 31 March, 2005.

“Trevor joined Qantas soon after it became a publicly listed company and he has made a
wonderful contribution over the past nine and a half years,” she said.

"He has peen a member of the Chairman’s Committee since it was established and a member
of the Audit Committee for the past four years.

*On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Trevor for his efforts over nearly a decade and to
wish him weli for the future.”

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3214)
Media Enquiries: Michael Sharp - Telephone 02 9681 3469
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCTHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box Ha24

. Australia Square

DATE: 16/02/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 18:56:53 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Internet http:/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney

)

FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Appendix 3B - New Issue

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




General Counsel
Brett Johnson

QANTAS

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,

application for quotation of additional securities

and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given lo ASX as soon as available. Information
and documents given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/8/88, 1/7/2000, 30/8/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003.

Qantas Airways Limited (ABN 16 009 661 901) gives the ASX the following information

Part 1 - All issues

1

Class of securities issued or to
be issued

Number of securities issued or
to be issued (if known) or
maximum number which may
be issued

Ordinary Shares.

58,177 Ordinary Shares.

Principal terms of the securities | N/A.

Do the securities rank egually
in all respects from the date of
allotment with an existing class
of quoted securities?

Issue price or consideration

Purpose of the issue

{If issued as consideration for
the acquisition of assets,
clearly identify those assets)

Dates of entering securities into
uncertificated  holdings  or
despatch of certificates

Yes.

No issue price or consideration is payable on
the jssue of shares.

To issue shares o Eligible Executives who, in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions and
Rules of the Qanlas Long-Term Executive
Incentive Plan (Plan), have submitied a Notice
of Conversion 1o convert Entitlements into
Ordinary Shares.  The Enlitlements were
awarded on 24 November 2000. The Market
Price on Conversion {as defined in the Terms
and Conditions of the Plan) is $3.554.

16 February 2005.




10

Number and class of all
securities quoted on ASX
{including the securities in
clause 2 if applicable)

Number and class of all
securities not quoted on ASX
{including the securities in
clause 2 if applicable)

Dividend policy (in the case of
a trusi, distribution policy) on
the increased capital {interests)

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

34

(@)
()

Type of securities

Number Class
1,867,849,876 Ordinary Shares
Number Class

3,500 144a 15 June 2009

US Issue. Each Parcel
of Notes has a face
value of US$100,000

40 Fixed Rate Medium
Term Note, maturing
15 March 2007. Each
Note has a face value
of A$500,000

1,000 Fixed Rale Medium
Term Note, maturing
15 October 2007.
Each Note has a face
value of A$100,000

400 Floating Rate Medium
Term Note, maturing
20 June 2005. Each
Note has a face value
of A$100,000

4,500 144a 20 June 2013
US lIssue. Each
parcel of Notes has a
face value of
US$100,000

28,784 927 Entitlements awarded
to Eligible Executives
under the Qantas
Long-Term Executive
Incentive Plan

Identical to the current policy.

v Securities described in Part 1

All other securities

Example: sestricied securities al the end of the escrowed period, panly paid securities that become lully paid,
empioyes incenlive share securiies when reslriction ends, securities issuod on expiry or conversion of

convertible securitiss




Quotation Agreement

1 Quotation of our additional securities is in ASX’s absoclute discretion. ASX may

quote

the securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

The issue of the securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for
an illegal purpose.

There is no reason why those securities should not be granled quotation.

Section 724 of the Corporations Act does not apply to any applications
received by us in refation 1o any securilies to be quoled and that no-one has
any right 1o return any securities to be quoted under sections 737 or 738 of
ihe Corporations Act at the time that we request that the securities be quoted.

We warrant that if confirmation is required under section 1017F of the
Corporations Act in relation io the securities to be quoted, it has been
provided at the lime that we requesl that the securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX 1o the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,

action

or expense arising from or connecled with any breach of the warranties in

this agreement,

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any
information or document not available now, will give it ic ASX before quotation of
the securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

’2%3&»—\

Bretit Johnson

General Counsel & Company Secretary

16 February 2005
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [CXCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydnay NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PG Box Ho24
Australia Square
DATE: 17/02/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:33:31 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Half Yearly Report & Half Year Accounts

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2004

ABN 16 009 661 901

ASX CODE: QAN



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ASX APPENDIX 4D
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003 Change Change
$m $m $m %

Revenue from ordinary activities 6,431.0 5,801.8 629.2 | up 10.8%
Profit from ordinary activites after
tax attributable to members 458 4 357.8 1006 | up 28.1%
Net profit for the period attributable
to members 458.4 357.8 100.6 | up 28.1%
DIVIDENDS
31 December 2004 interim dividend - fo be paid 6 April 2005

Amount per securily (cents) 10.6

Franked amount per security at 30% tax 10.0

Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend |

9 March 2005 |

Date the dividend is payable |

8 April 2005 |

Total dividend declared ($m)

186.8

Qantias operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) under which shareholders can reinvest the

dividends payable on participating shares in newly issued Qantas shares.

Last date for receipt of election notice for participation
in dividend reinvestment plan

9 March 2005

EXPLANATION OF RESULTS

Please refer to the attached Press Release for an explanation of the results.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DIRECTORS' REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial report for the
half-year ended 31 December 2004 and the independent auditors’ review report thereon.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of Qantas Airways Limited at any time during or since the end of the haif-
year are as follows:

Name Period of Directorship

Margaret Jackson

Chairman Director since July 1892 - appointed Chairman August 2000
Geoff Dixon

Chief Executive Officer Director since August 2000

Peter Gregg

Chief Financial Officer Director since September 2000

Paul Anderson Director since September 2002

Mike Codd Director since January 1992

Patricia Cross Director since January 2004

Trevor Eastwood Director since October 1985 - to resign 31 March 2005
Garry Hounsell Appointed 1 January 2005

Jim Kennedy . Director since October 1995

Roger Maynard Director since March 71993 - resigned 8 September 2004
James Packer Director since March 2004

John Schubert Director since October 2000

Nick Tait Director since March 1993 - resigned 8 September 2004

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Qantas Group achieved a net profit after tax for the half-year of $458.4 million,
representing an increase of $100.6 million or 28.1% compared to the corresponding prior

period.

Total sales and operating revenue for the half-year increased by $628.2 million or 10.8%
percent to $6.4 billion. Excluding the unfavourable impact of foreign exchange rate
movements, this increase amounted to 11.6%. Revenue Passenger Kilometres (RPKs)
increased by 8.6% on increased capacity of 13.3%, leading 1o a decrease in passenger -
load factor of 3.2% points. Total international yield (excluding exchange)} has improved by
3.6% compared to the corresponding prior period, while total domestic yield (excluding
exchange) has deteriorated by 5.3%.

Total expenditure, excluding net interest expense, increased by $559.1 million or 10.8%
to $5.8 billion. Excluding the favourable impact of foreign exchange rate movements, this

increase amounted to 12.5%.
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

December 2004 | December 2003
$m $m

Sales and operating revenue
Net passenger revenue ' 49759 46131
Nei freight revenue ' 318.1 241.0
Tours and trave! revenue 394.3 363.6
Contract work revenue 2321 245.7
Other sources ** 510.8 338.4

6,431.0 5,801.8
Expenditure
Manpower and staff related 1.645.5 1.471.7
Selling and marketing ' 282.1 2726
Aircraft operating - variable 1,229.0 1,113.5
Fuel and oil 852.9 644.9
Property 152.9 148.5
Computer and communication 261.3 216.3
Tours and fravel cost of sales 3170 294.7
Capacily hire 158.6 157.5
Other® 167.5 216.2
Share of net profit of associates (4.8) (6.3)
Depreciation and amortisaticn 549.2 536.2
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals 148.0 134.5

5,759.4 5,200.3
Eamings before interest and tax 671.6 | 601.5
Net borrowing costs {70.3) {(71.2)
Profit from ordinary activities before related income tax expense 601.3 . 530.3
Income tax expense related to ordinary activities ) (142.5) (171.3)
Net profit 458.8 - 358.0
Quiside equily interests in net profit {0.4) T {(1.2)
Net profit attributable to members of the Company 458.4 357.8
Non-owner Transaction Changes in Equity
Net exchange differences recognised in equity {1.3) (1.1)
Total transactions and adjustments recognised directly in equity - {1.3) {1.1)
Total changes in equity not resulting from transactions with owners
as owners 457 1 356.7
Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic eamings per share {cents) 247 18.9
Diluted earnings per shzre (cents) 246 18.8

1 Passenger and freight revenue is disciosed not of both saies discount and inlertine/IATA commission.
2 Pageenger recoveries (including fuel surcharge on passenger tickets) are disclosed as part of net passenger revenue.

3 Revenue from other sources includes revenue from aircraft charter and leases, properly income, Qantas Ciub and Fraguent Fiyer
membership fees, freight lerminal and service fees, commission revenue, aged availed surplus revenue and unavailed revenue and other
miscellaneous income (including the release of surplus revenue accounting provisions reiated 1o pricr periods of $52.1 million).

4 Excludes interest revenue of $48.5 million (2003: $57.2 million) which is included in net borrowing cests. Alsc excluded are proceeds on sale
and operating leaseback of non-current assete of $276.2 million (2603: $215.6 million), which are offset against the refevant assst's wrilten
down value before recogniticn of the profit or joss on cale. Net profit on sale of non-current assets was $4.8 million {2003: $4.6 miflion loss).

5 Other expenses include contract work materials, printing, stationery. insurance and other miscellaneous expenses.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

FINANCIAL REPORT

HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations
Cash payments in the course of operations
Interest received

Borrowing costs paid

Dividends received

income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plani and equipment

Receipts from aircrafi security deposits

Total payment for purchases of property, plant and equipment and aircraft
security deposits

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale and leaseback of non-current assets
Payments for investmenis, net of cash acquired
{Advances)frepayments of investment loans

Payments for other intangibles

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of berrowings

Proceeds from borrowings/swaps

Net proceeds from the issue of shares

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by / {used in} financing activities
Net increase  {decrease) in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial period

Cash at the end of the financial period

Reconciliation of cash

December 2004 | December 2003
$m $m
6,728.3 6,246.6

{5,551.0) {5.085.6)
437 57.2
(148.1) (165.8)
9.7 4.3
(58.2) (80.1)
1,023.4 966.6
{1,150.3) {1.104.6}
0.5 57.8
(1,149.8) (1,046.8)
18.3 43.9
257.9 171.7
(45.0) (252.9)
0.9 {118.5}
- {27.2)
(917.7) {1,229.8)
(608.8) (880.2)
1,262.0 780.4
- 80.5
(92.7) {91.8)
559.5 {100.9)
665.2 (364.1)
1,366.3 2.015.9
2,030.5 1,651.8

Cash as at the end of the financial period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related

items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Cash on hand and at bank
Cash at call
Short term money markel securities and term deposits

Cash at the end of the financial period

Non-cash financing and investing activities

December 2004 | December 2003
m $m
108.7 168.4
236.2 236.8
1,684.6 1,246.6
2,030.5 1,651.8

During the period 22,675,271 {2003: 21,151,352} shares were issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan. |




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 4. Tax Reconciliation

The prima facie income tax on profit from ordinary activities differs from the income 1ax
charged in the Statement of Financial Performance and is calculated as follows:

December 2004
$m
Profit from ordinary activities 601.3
Prima facie income tax expense @ 30% 180.4
Less: Tax consolidation benefit {(50.0)
Add: other items 12.1
Income tax expense related to ordinary activities 142.5

Note 5. Contingent Liabilities

The contingent liabilities disclosed in the 30 June 2004 annual report remain unresolved.
There have been no new claims made against the Qantas Group during the pericd.

Note 6. Post Balance Date Events

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of
this report, any ilem, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the
opinion of the Directors, to significantly affect the operations of the Qantas Group, the
resufts of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Qantas Group, in this financial
period or in future financial periods.

Note 7. International Financial Reporting Standards

For the reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the consolidated entity must
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The areas of significant difference between Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and IFRS, as applied o the consolidated entity, have been identified
and work has commenced to quantify the impact of adoption. To date, guantification has
nol been completed or presenied 1o the Board for approvai.
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

FINANCIAL REPORT

ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 7. International Financial Reporting Standards {continued)

Employee Benefils

AASB 119 requires the funding position of company
sponsored defined benefit superannuation plans to be
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Valustions of the Qantas defined benefits plans,
applying the AASB 119 measurement criteria, will be
conducted zs at 30 June 2004 and 30 June 2005.
The expecied impacit is fikely to be a one-off reduction
in  retained earnings and the corresponding
recognition of a retirement liability.

The application of recent changes to AASB 119
governing the approprizle method 1o recognise
movements in the funding position are under
consideration.

Leases
Qantas is considering the application of AASB 117 to
the accounfing for the classification of all finance and
aperating leases.

Under IFRS some leases currently classified as
operating may require recegnition in the Statement of
Financial Position. Recognilion, if required, would
increase ieased assets and leased liabifities and will
result in changes 10 some financial ratios. The
financial effect of the change has not been
delermined. It is, however, not expected 10 have a
significant impact on the Statement of Financial
Performance in future years,

Fuel Hedging

AASB 139 requires reassessment of all hedging
transactions preventing the application of hedge
accounting 1o transactions that fail specified correlation
tests and documentation requirements.

Qantas hedges aviation fuel exposures as set out in
nole 1 1o the 30 June 2004 Annua! Report. The
potential application and impact of this accounting
standard on aviation fuel hedging has not been
determined.

Any change in accounting treatment, if required,
would resuit in a change to the timing of recognition of
gainsAosses on hedging arrangements and will not
affect the underlying economic value of the
arrangement.

Revenue Hedging

AASE 138 requires reassessment of all hedging
transactions preventing the application of hedge
accounting 1o transactions that fail specified correlation
tests and documentation requirements.

Qantas hedges future revenue as set out in note 1 o
the 30 June 2004 Annual Reporl. it is anticipated
that, after initie! adoption adjustimenis are made, the
existing accounting treatment will continue under
IFRS, although it will be subject to increased
effectiveness testing and - documentation
requirements.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 8. Segment reporting

Business Segments

Thé segmentation of the Qantas Group broadly into three business types (Flying, Flying
Services and Associated Businesses) supported by a corporale centre is being
progressively implemented.

Financial reporting system changes to transition Qantas to a segmented mode! are
currently under development. Disclosure of segment information is therefore provided in a
format consistent with prior years as follows:

1. Aircraft Operations, which includes the Qantas Group Flying Businesses, Engineering
Technical Operations and Maintenance Services, Airports, Qantas Freight and Qantas
Defence Services and all other subsidiary companies, associates and joint ventures;

2. Tours and Travel, which comprises the Qantas Holidays segment which forms part of
the Associated Businesses portfolio; and

3. Catering, which reflects the wholly-owned catering entities within the Airports and
Catering segment which forms part of the Flying Services Businesses.

The half-year segment disclosures on the following page include segment charges to
recover cos{s applied for the first time from 1 July 2004. However, the prior period
information has not been restated as it is impracticable to do so. Accordingly, the table on
the following page discloses the impact of segment charges on earnings before interest -
and tax and is comparable with the prior period business segment disclosures.

Geographic Segments

Passenger, freight and other service revenue from domestic services within Australia is
attributed o the Australian area. Passenger, freight and other services revenue from
inbound and outbound services between Australia and overseas is allocated
proportionately to the area in which the sale was made. Other operating revenue is not
allocated to a geographic area as it is impracticable fo do so.

For the period ended 31 December 2004, the principal asseis of the business comprised
the aircraft fleet, all (except eight) of which were registered and domiciled in Australia.
These assets are used flexibly across the route network. Accordingly there is no suitable
basis of allocating such assets and the related liabilities between geographic areas.

Operating profit resulting from turnover generated in each geographic area according to
origin of sale is not disclosed as it is neither practical nor meaningful to allocate the
Group's operating expendifure on that basis.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 008 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 8. Segment reporting (continued)

Analysis of total revenue by geographic region

This analysis is by geographic sales region and does not represent revenue by route

group.
December 2004 § December 2003
$m $m
Passenger, freight and other services revenue
Australia 3,596.1 3.448.2
United Kingdom and Europe 4438 435.5
Japan 243.3 219.9
South East Asia/North East Asia 199.6 170.2
The Americas and the Pacific 440.7 407.8
New Zealand 191.9 191.0
Other regions 181.2 128.9
5,302.6 5,001.5
Other operating revenue
Tours and Travel 3943 363.6
Contract work revenue 2321 245.7
Other unzliocated revenue 502.0 191.0
Total sales and operating revenue 6,431.0 5,801.8
Other revenue
Interest Revenue ) 48.5 57.2
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 105 43.9
Proceeds on sale and leaseback 265.7 171.7
Total other revenue 324.7 272.8
Total revenue 6,755.7 6,074.6




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of Qantas Airways Limited:

(8} the financial statements and notes set out on pages 5 fo 15, are in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the consolidated
entity as at 31 December 2004 and of its performance, as represented by
the results of its operations and cash flows for the half-year ended on that
date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1029 ‘Interim
Financial Reporting” and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds io believe that Qantas Airways Limited and ils
controlled entities will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due

and payable.

Signed pursuant o a Resolution of the Directors:
W——M

MARGARET JACKSON
Chairman

%,&D (T s
GEOFF DIXON
Chief Executive Officer

Sydney, 16 February 2005



Independence

In conducting our review, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001

Stratement

" Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us
believe the Financial Report of Qantas Airways Limited is not in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated Entity’s financial position as at 31 December
2004 and of its performance for the half-year ended on that date; and
i, complying with Australian Accouting Standard AASB 1029 “Interim Financial

Reporting” in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

B’m(r

 KPMG

Mark Epper

Partner

Sydney, 16 February 2005



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Half-Year % of Half-Year % of
{Unaudited) Ended Group Ended Group
31 Dec 2004 Total 31 Dec 2003 Total
$m $m

Qantas Internationai 220.5 32.8 196.7 32.7
Australian Airlines 8.5 1.3 34 0.6
Total International Flying Operations 229.0 341 200.1 333
Qantas Domestic 341.9 51.0 270.9 45.0
QantasLink Group 29.2 4.3 53.0 8.8
Jetstar 19.0 2.8 0.0 0.0
Total Bomaestic Flying Operations 330.1 58.1 323.9 53.8
Other Subsidiaries: ’

Qantas Holidays Group 271 4.0 24.0 4.0

Qantas Flight Catering Group 10.9 1.6 46.6 7.7

Qantas Defence Services 4.0 0.6 3.2 0.5

Equity Accounting 4.6 0.7 6.3 10

Other Subsidiaries 5.9 0.9 (2.8) {0.3)
Total Other Subsidiaries 52.5 7.8 77.5 12.9
Group Earnings Before
Interest and Tax 671.6 100.0 601.5 100.0

Notes
1 Subsidiary operations earnings before interest and tax includes profit earned on services provided to Qantas Airways
Limited.
Half-Year % of
{Unaudited) Ended Group
31 Dec 2004 Total
Pre Segmentation
$m
Qantas international 196.8 29.3
Australian Airlines 11.1 1.6
Total International Flying Operations 207.7 30.9
Qantas Domestic Airline Operations 318.0 47.3
Qantaslink Group 51.4 7.7
Jetstar 19.0 2.8
Total Domestic Flying Operations 3884 57.8
Other Subsidiaries:’
Qantas Holidays Group 317 4.7
Qantas Flight Catering Group 293 4.4
Qantas Defence Services 4.0 0.6
Equity Accounting 4.6 0.7
Other Subsidizries 59 0.9
Total Other Subsidiaries 75.5 11.3

e Rarninne Rafara




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

CONSOLIDATED NET INTEREST AS A PERCENTAGE OF

AVERAGE NET DEBT
as at 31 December 2004

Half-Year Haif-Year
. Ended Ended
(Unaudited) 31 December 2004 |31 December 2003
$m Sm

Borrowing Costs

Net Borrowing Costs 70.3 71.2

Capitalised Interest 33.0 242

Inferest on Non-cancellable Operating Leases 107.9 62.7
Adjusted Net Interest Expense 211.2 158.1
Interest Cover 9.6 8.4
Average Net Debt *

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt 5570.0 5,005.7

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt

and Revenue Hedge Receivable 5,501.6 5,089.6
Adjusted Net Borrowing Costs as a Percentage of:

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt 7.5 6.2

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt

7.5 6.1

and Revenue Hedge Receivable

* Average Net Debt balances are calculated on a weighted average basis.
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

ASX APPENDIX 4D
HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003 Change Change
$m $m $m %

Revenue from ordinary activities 6,431.0 5,801.8 629.2 { up 10.8%
Profit from ordinary activites after
tax attributable to members 458.4 357.8 100.6 | up 28.1%
Net profit for the period attributabie
to members 458.4 357.8 1006 | up 28.1%
DIVIDENDS
31 December 2004 interim dividend - to be paid 6 April 2005

Amount per security (cents) 10.0

Franked amount per security at 30% tax 10.0
Record date for determining entittements to the dividend 9 March 2005 J
Date the dividend is payable 6 April 2005 |
Total dividend declared ($m) 186.8

Qantas operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) under which shareholders can reinvest the

dividends payable on participating shares in newly issued Qantas shares.

Last date for receipt of election notice for participation

in dividend reinvestment plan

9 March 2005

EXPLANATION OF RESULTS

Please refer 1o the attached Press Release for an explanation of the results.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial report for the
half-year ended 31 December 2004 and the independent auditors' review report thereon.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of Qantas Airways Limited at any time during or since the end of the half-
year are as follows:

Name Period of Directorship

Margaret Jackson

Chairman Director since July 1992 - appointed Chairman August 2000
Geoff Dixon

Chief Executive Officer Director since August 2000

Peter Gregg

Chief Financial Officer Director since September 2000

Paul Anderson Director since September 2002

Mike Codd Director since January 1992

Patricia Cross Director since January 2004

Trevor Eastwood Director since October 1995 - to resign 31 March 2005
Garry Hounsell Appointed 1 Januaty 2005

Jim Kennedy Director since October 1995

Roger Maynard Director since March 1993 - resigned 8 September 2004
James Packer Director since March 2004

John Schubert Director since October 2000

Nick Tait Director since March 19893 - resigned 8 September 2004
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Qantas Group achieved a net profit after tax for the half-year of $458.4 million,
representing an increase of $100.6 million or 28.1% compared to the corresponding prior

period.

Total sales and operating revenue for the half-year increased by $629.2 million or 10.8%
percent to $6.4 billion. Excluding the unfavourable impact of foreign exchange rate
movements, this increase amounted to 11.6%. Revenue Passenger Kilometres (RPKs)
increased by 8.6% on increased capacity of 13.3%, leading to a decrease in passenger
load factor of 3.2% points. Total international yield (excluding exchange) has improved by
3.6% compared to the corresponding prior period, while total domestic yield (excluding
exchange) has deteriorated by 5.3%.

Total expenditure, excluding net interest expense, increased by $559.1 million or 10.8%
to $5.8 billion. Excluding the favourable impact of foreign exchange rate movements, this
increase amounted to 12.5%.



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

December 2004 | December 2003
$m $m
Sales and operating revenue
Net passenger revenue " 49759 4,613.1
Net freight revenue 318.1 241.0
fours and travel revenue 394.3 363.6
Contract work revenue 2321 245.7
Other sources ** 510.6 338.4
6,431.0 5,801.8
Expenditure
Manpower and staff related 1,645.5 1,471.7
Selling and marketing * 2821 272.6
Aircraft operating - variable 1,229.0 1,113.5
Fuel and oil 852.9 644.9
Property 152.9 148.5
Computer and communication 261.3 216.3
Tours and travel cost of sales 317.0 294.7
Capacity hire 158.6 157.5
Other® 167.5 216.2
Share of net profit of associates (4.6) (6.3)
Depreciation and amortisation 549.2 536.2
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals 148.0 134.5
: 5,759.4 5,200.3
Egrnings before interest and tax 671.6 601.5
Net borrowing costs (70.3) (71.2)
Profit from ordinary activities before related income tax expense 601.3 530.3
Income tax expense related to ordinary activities (142.5) {171.3)
Net profit 458.8 '359.0
Outside equity interests in net profit (0.4} (1.2)
Net profit attributable to members of the Company 458.4 357.8
Non-owner Transaction Changes in Equity
Net exchange differences recognised in equity (1.3) (1.1)
Total transactions and adjustments recognised directly in equity (1.3) (1.1)
Total changes in equity not resulting from transactions with owners
as owners 457.1 356.7
Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share (cents) 24.7 19.9
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 24.6 19.8

1 Passenger and freight revenue is disclosed net of both sales discount and interfine/lATA commission.

2 Passenger recoveries (including fuel surcharge on passenger tickets) are disclosed as part of net passenger revenue.

3 Revenue from other sources includes revenue from aircraft charter and leases, property income, Qantas Club and Frequent Flyer
membership fees, freight terminal and service fees, commission revenue, aged availed surplus revenue and unavailed revenue and other
miscellaneous income (including the release of surplus revenue accounting provisions related to prior periods of $52.1 miflion).

4 Excludes inlerest revenue of $48.5 million (2003: $57.2 million) which is included in net borrowing costs. Also excluded are proceeds on sale
and operating leaseback of non-current assets of $276.2 mitlion (2003: $215.6 million), which are offset against the relevant asset's writlen
down value before recognition of the profit or Joss on sale. Net profit on sale of non-current assets was $1.8 million {2003: $4.6 million loss).

5 Other expenses include contract work materials, printing, stationery, insurance and other miscellaneous expenses.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

FINANCIAL REPORT

HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations
Cash payments in the course of operations
Interest received

Borrowing costs paid

Dividends received

income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for propenty, plant and equipment

Receipts from aircraft security deposits

Total payment for purchases of property, plant and equipment and aircraft
security deposits

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale and leaseback of non-current assets
Payments for investments, net of cash acquired
(Advances)repayments of investment loans

Payments for other intangibles

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings/swaps

Net proceeds from the issue of shares

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial period

Cash at the end of the financial period

Reconciliation of cash

December 2004 | December 2003
$m $m
6,728.3 6,246.6
(5,551.0) (5,085.6)

437 57.2
(149.1) (165.8)
9.7 4.3
(58.2) (90.1)
1,023.4 966.6
(1,150.3) {1,104.6)
0.5 57.8
(1,149.8) (1,046.8)
18.3 43.9
257.9 171.7
(45.0) (252.9)
0.9 (118.5)
- '(27.2)
(917.7) {1,229.8)
(609.8) (880.2)
1,262.0 780.4
- 90.5
(92.7) (91.6)
559.5 (100.9)
665.2 (364.1)
1,365.3 2,015.9
2,030.5 1,651.8

Cash as at the end of the financial period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related

items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Cash on hand and at bank
Cash at call
Short term money market securities and term deposits

Cash at the end of the financial period

Non-cash financing and investing activities

December 2004 | December 2003
3m $m
109.7 168.4
236.2 236.8
1,684.6 1,246.6
2,030.5 1,651.8

Nurina the nerind 22 675.271 (2003: 21,151,352) shares were issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 4. Tax Reconciliation

The prima facie income tax on profit from ordinary activities differs from the income tax
charged in the Statement of Financial Performance and is calculated as follows:

December 2004
$m
Profit from ordinary activities 601.3
Prima facie income tax expense @ 30% 180.4
Less: Tax consolidation benefit (50.0)
Add: other items 12.1
Income tax expense related to ordinary activities 142.5

Note 5. Contingent Liabilities

T!j_é contingent liabilities disclosed in the 30 June 2004 annual report remain unresolved.
There have been no new claims made against the Qantas Group during the period.

Note 6. Post Balance Date Events

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of
this report, any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the
opinion of the Directors, to significantly affect the operations of the Qantas Group, the
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Qantas Group, in this financial
period or in future financial periods.

Note 7. International Financial Reporting Standards

For the reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the consolidated entity must
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The areas of significant difference between Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and IFRS, as applied 1o the consolidated entity, have been identified
and work has commenced to quantify the impact of adoption. To date, quantification has
not been completed or presented to the Board for approval.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 7. International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Employee Benefits

AASB 119 reguires the funding position of company
sponsored defined benefit superannuation plans to be
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Valuations of the Qantas defined benefils plans,
applying the AASB 119 measurement criteria, will be
conducted as at 30 June 2004 and 30 June 2005.
The expected impact is likely to be a one-off reduction
in retained earnings and the corresponding
recognition of a retirement liability.

The application of recent changes to AASB 119
governing the appropriate method to recognise
movements in the funding position are under
consideration.

Leases

Qantas is considering the application of AASB 117 to
the accounting for the classification of all finance and
operating leases.

P

Under IFRS some leases currently classified as
operating may require recognition in the Statement of
Financial Position. Recognition, if required, would
increase leased assets and leased liabilities and will
result in changes to some financial ratios. The
financial effect of the change has not been
determined. 1t is, however, not expected to have a
significant impact on the Statement of Financial
Performance in future years.

Fuel Hedging

AASB 139 requires reassessment of all hedging
transactions preventing the application of hedge
accounting to transactions that fail specified correlation
tests and documentation requirements.

Qantas hedges aviation fuel exposures as set out in
note 1 to the 30 June 2004 Annual Reporl. The
potential application and impact of this accounting
standard on aviation fuel hedging has not been
determined.

Any change in accounting freatment, if required,
would result in a change to the timing of recognition of
gains/losses on hedging arrangements and will not
affect the underlying economic value of the
arrangement.

Revenue Hedging

AASB 139 requires reassessment of all hedging
transactions preventing the application of hedge
accounting to transactions that fail specified correlation
tests and documentation requirements.

Qantas hedges future revenue as set out in note 1 to
the 30 June 2004 Annual Report. It is anticipated
that, after initial adoption adjustments are made, the
existing accounting treatment will continue under
IFRS, although it will be subject to increased
effectiveness testing and documentation
requirements.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 8. Segment reporting
Business Segments

The segmentation of the Qantas Group broadly into three business types (Flying, Flying
Services and Associated Businesses) supported by a corporate centre is being
progressively implemented.

Financial reporting system changes to transition Qantas to a segmented model are
currently under development. Disclosure of segment information is therefore provided in a
format consistent with prior years as follows:

1. Aircraft Operations, which includes the Qantas Group Flying Businesses, Engineering
Technical Operations and Maintenance Services, Airports, Qantas Freight and Qantas
Defence Services and all other subsidiary companies, associates and joint ventures;

2. Tours and Travel, which comprises the Qantas Holidays segment which forms part of
the Associated Businesses portfolio; and

3. Catering, which reflects the wholly-owned catering entities within the Airports and
Catering segment which forms part of the Flying Services Businesses.

The half-year segment disclosures on the following page include segment charges to
recover costs applied for the first time from 1 July 2004. However, the prior period
information has not been restated as it is impracticable to do so. Accordingly, the table on
the following page discloses the impact of segment charges on earnings before interest
and tax and is comparable with the prior period business segment disclosures.

Geographic Segments

Passenger, freight and other service revenue from domestic services within Australia is
attributed to the Australian area. Passenger, freight and other services revenue from
inbound and outbound services between Australia and overseas is allocated
proportionately to the area in which the sale was made. Other operating revenue is not
allocated to a geographic area as it is impracticable to do so.

For the period ended 31 December 2004, the principal assets of the business comprised
the aircraft fleet, all (except eight) of which were registered and domiciled in Australia.
These assets are used flexibly across the route network. Accordingly there is no suitable
basis of allocating such assets and the related liabilities between geographic areas.

Operating profit resulting from turnover generated in each geographic area according to
origin of sale is not disclosed as it is neither practical nor meaningful to allocate the
Group's operating expenditure on that basis.
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FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Note 8. Segment reporting (continued)

Analysis of total revenue by geographic region

This analysis is by geographic sales region and does not represent revenue by route

group.
December 2004 | December 2003
$m $m
Passenger, freight and other services revenue
Ausiralia 3,586.1 3,448.2
United Kingdom and Europe 449.8 435.5
Japan 243.3 219.9
South East Asia/North East Asia 199.6 170.2
The Americas and the Pacific 440.7 407.8
New Zealand 191.9 191.0
Other regions 181.2 128.9
5,302.6 5,001.5
Other operating revenue
Tours and Travel 13943 363.6
Contract work revenue 2321 2457
Other unallocated revenue 502.0 181.0
Total sales and operating revenue 6,431.0 5,801.8
Other revenue
Interest Revenue ) 48.5 57.2
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10.5 43.9
Proceeds on sale and leaseback 265.7 171.7
Total other revenue 324.7 272.8
Total revenue 6,755.7 6,074.6
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED FINANCIAL REPORT
ABN 16 009 661 901 HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of Qantas Airways Limited:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 5 to 15, are in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

() giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the consolidated
entity as at 31 December 2004 and of its performance, as represented by
the results of its operations and cash flows for the half-year ended on that
date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1029 "Interim
Financial Reporting” and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that Qantas Airways Limited and its
controlled entities will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

Signed pursuant to a Resolution of the Directors:

S

MARGARET JACKSON
Chairman

Y
Gonffetre
GEOFF DIXON
Chief Executive Officer

Sydney, 16 February 2005
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Independence

In conducting our review, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 200].

Statement

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us
believe the Financial Report of Qantas Airways Limited is not in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

1. giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated Entity’s financial position as at 31 December
2004 and of its performance for the half-year ended on that date; and
il. complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1029 “Interim Financial

Reporting” in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b)  other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

Bt

KPMG

Mark Epper

Parter

Sydney, 16 February 2005



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX
for the half-year ended 31 December 2004

Haif-Year % of Half-Year % of
(Unaudited) Ended Group Ended Group
31 Dec 2004 Total 31 Dec 2003 Total
tm $m

Qantas International 220.5 32.8 196.7 32.7
Australian Airlines 8.5 1.3 3.4 0.6
Total International Flying Operations 229.0 34.1 200.1 33.3
Qantas Domestic 341.9 51.0 270.9 45.0
Qantaslink Group 29.2 4.3 53.0 8.8
Jetstar 19.0 2.8 0.0 0.0
Total Domestic Flying Operations 390.1 58.1 323.9 53.8
Other Subsidiaries: '

Qantas Holidays Group 27.1 4.0 24.0 4.0

Qantas Flight Catering Group 10.9 1.6 46.6 7.7

Qantas Defence Services 4.0 0.6 3.2 0.5

Equity Accounting 4.6 0.7 6.3 1.0

Other Subsidiaries 5.9 0.9 (2.6) (0.3)
Total Other Subsidiaries 52.5 7.8 77.5 12.9
Group Earnings Before

671.6 100.0 601.5 100.0

Interest and Tax

Notes
1 subsidiary operations earnings before interest and-tax includes profit earned on services provided to Qantas Airways
Limited.
Half-Year % of
{(Unaudited) Ended Group
31 Dec 2004 Total
Pre Segmentation
$m
Qantas International 196.6 29.3
Australian Airlines 11.1 1.6
Total International Flying Operations 207.7 30.9
Qantas Domestic Airline Operations 318.0 47.3
QantasLink Group 51.4 7.7
Jetstar 19.0 2.8
Total Domestic Flying Operations 388.4 57.8
Other Subsidiaries: '
Qantas Holidays Group 31.7 4.7
Qantas Flight Catering Group 29.3 4.4
Qantas Defence Services 4.0 0.6
Equity Accounting 4.6 0.7
Other Subsidiaries 5.9 0.9
Total Other Subsidiaries 75.5 11.3

Group Earnings Before
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

CONSOLIDATED NET INTEREST AS A PERCENTAGE OF

AVERAGE NET DEBT
as at 31 December 2004
Half-Year Half-Year
. Ended Ended
(Unaudited) 31 December 2004 |31 December 2003
$m $m

Borrowing Costs

Net Borrowing Costs 70.3 71.2

Capitalised Interest 33.0 24.2

Interest on Non-cancellable Operating Leases 107.9 62.7
Adjusted Net interest Expense 211.2 158.1
Interest Cover 9.6 8.4
Average Net Debt *

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt 5,570.0 5,095.7

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt

and Revenue Hedge Receivable 5,591.6 5,099.6
Adjusted Net Borrowing Costs as a Percentage of:

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt 7.5 6.2

Average Net Debt Including Off Balance Sheet Debt

7.5 6.1

and Revenue Hedge Receivable

* Average Net Debt balances are calculated on a weighted average basis.
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- AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCIHIANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H22¢
Australia Square
DATE: 17/02/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:42:02 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
' FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Media Release - First Half Results

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open’ period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




QANTAS

Media Release

QANTAS RESULTS

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

HIGHLIGHTS

o  Profit before tax of $601.3 million

¢ Net profit after tax of $458.4 million

¢+ Revenue of $6.4 billion

»  Fully franked interim dividend of 10 cents per share

o Earnings per share of 24.7 cents per share



“The launch of Jetstar in May 2004 was the central plank in this domestic strategy and its
EBIT of $19 million was ahead of our expectations.

*Jetstar will continue to grow in domestic leisure markets and will look for further
opportunities as it moves towards a single fleet of new A320 aircraft,” he said.

Mr Dixon said the international market remained extremely competitive with substantial
capacity increases being accompanied by heavy discounting.

He said Qantas strategically increased its capacity to key international markets in the
period. Whiist revenue growth did not match capacity in the half-year, product
enhancements — including Skybed - position Qantas favourably for improved performance
later in the year.

“Our strong brand, the market’s continued enthusiasm for the new Business Class Skybed,
new routes to India and China and growth on existing core routes — including the new
London service via Hong Kong — drive our strategies,” he said.

"However, our costs must be further improved if we are to compete successfully against
the myriad carriers that are either subsidised or owned by their national Government.”

Mr Dixon said Qantas supported the further liberalisation of aviation markets where this
resulted in balanced outcomes and genuine opportunities to compete.

"We need liberalisation for our own growth and accept that this involves a mix of
opportunities and chailenges,” he said.

“However, the bilateral system of internationa!l air services arrangements is complex and
there will not be effective remprocﬂy to compete in third markets unless liberalisation is

seguenced carefully.

“This lies at the heart of our concern that Singapore Airlines should not be granted access
to the trans-Pacific route at this time."”

Mr Dixon said excellent progress had been made in recent years to change the way the
Qantas Group operated.

“The Sustainable Future program on costs and efficiencies delivered savings totalling $245
million in the past six months and is on track to exceed the $500 million full year target,” he
said.

"However, as we continue to invest we must also continue to address the legacy of our
past and, in particular, the complex processes that have been built into our business
models over decades.

“To this end we will, over the next three months, conduct a review of processes and
activities, with a focus on processes that can be removed or redesigned.

Mr Dixon said Qantas would expand the Sustainable Future program to co-ordinate these
internal initiatives, including the Segmentation program and the process review.



Group Revenue

Total revenue for the half-year was $6.4 billion, an increase of $629.2 million or 10.8 per
cent on the prior half-year. Excluding the unfavourable impact of foreign exchange rate
movements, total revenue increased by $672.7 million or 11.6 per cent.

Net passenger revenue, including fuel surcharge recoveries, increased by $362.8 million
or 7.9 per cent to $5.0 billion with Revenue Passenger Kilometres (RPK) growing 8.6 per
cent'and yield deteriorating by 1.0 per cent. Excluding unfavourable foreign exchange rate
movements, passenger revenue was up 8.5 per cent reflecting the growth in RPKs and a
marginal yield decline of 0.4 per cent, predominantly in the domestic market.

Non-passenger revenue increased by 22.4 per cent reflecting additional wet-leased
freighter capacity, freight fuel surcharge, growth in outbound tours and travel, various
service fees and charges and the release of surplus revenue provisions.

Expenditure

Total expenditure, including borrowing costs, increased by 10.6 per cent or $558.2 million to
$5.8 billion. This increase reflects higher fuel prices which, after hedging benefits, increased
fuel costs by $163.2 million. After adjusting for post-hedging fuel price increases, fotal
expenditure was up by 7.5 per cent compared to Available Seat Kilometre (ASK) growth of

13.3 per cent.

Excluding the favourable impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, total expenditure,
including fuel price rises, increased by 12.3 per cent. .

Manpower and staff related costs increased by 11.8 per cent, predominantly due to
Entemprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) wage increases of 3.0 per cent and a 5.2 per cent
increase in full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. Lower FTEs compared to ASK growth
reflects the continued progress being made under the Sustainable Future program to deliver
productivity and cost efficiency benefits across the business. The result also reflects the
partial provision for executive and staff bonuses, subject to the achievement of profitability

targets for the full year.

Aircraft operating variable costs increased by 10.4 per cent or $115.5 million, due to higher
landing fees and en-route charges, security charges and other operating costs.

Fuel costs increased by 32.3 per cent or $208.0 million. The underlying average jet fuel price
was 56.7 per cent higher than the comparative half-year, increasing costs by $390.0 million.
However, hedging benefits were $2286.8 million better than the previous half-year,
significantly reducing the underlying fuel price rise to $163.2 million, whilst favourable foreign
exchange rate movements reduced fuel costs by $46.9 million. The impact of greater flying
increased fuel costs by $91.7 million.

Depreciation and non-cancellable operating lease charges increased by 4.0 per cent or
$26.5 million and included the accelerated write-down of modifications on some aircraft.



Domestic Operations

Domestic operations, including QantasLink and Jetstar, contributed $390.1 million in EBIT,
up $66.2 million or 20.5 per cent on the prior half-year. Excluding the impact of
segmentation, EBIT improved by 19.9 per cent.

Domestic RPKs increased 9.7 per cent on capacity growth of 11.3 per cent, leading to a
decline in seat factor of 1.1 percentage points to 79.6 per cent. This reflected a full six-
month operation of Jetstar, which began flying in May 2004. Yield, excluding the
unfavourable impact of foreign exchange rate movements, deteriorated 5.3 per cent as the
market continued to absorb increased capacity by both the Qantas Group and Virgin Blue.
Qantas Group domestic market share for November 2004 was 65.5 per cent.

Qantas Domestic operations reduced capacity following the transfer of the Boeing 717
aircraft to Jetstar which was parily offset by capacity increases on key business and Jong-
sector routes.

QantasLink Dash 8 operations benefited from an expansion of flying on profitable routes
and the replacement of older Dash 8-100 aircraft with Dash 8-Q300 aircraft that deliver
better customer comfort, fuel efficiency and improved economics.

Jetstar recorded an EBIT result of $19.0 million, which was ahead of expectations and
reflected tight cost controf in a highly competitive market. Jetstar's total cost per ASK for
the half-year was 8.48 cents, which was lower than budget and reflected introduction costs
associated with the A320 aircraft of $5.0 million and ongoing costs of Boeing 717
operations. Jetstar is now expected to beat its full year operating cost target of 8.25 cents
per ASK.

Once fully transitioned to an all A320 fleet, Jetstar is expected to improve on its previously
advised cost estimate of 7.8 cents per ASK, which compares favourably to the Virgin Blue
reported operating cost once adjusted for sector length differences.

Qantas Holidays

Qantas Holidays increased EBIT by 12.9 per cent to $27.1 million reflecting significant
growth in outbound tourism compared to the SARS affected prior half-year. Adjusted for
the impact of segmentation, EBIT improved by 32.1 per cent or $7.7 million.

Qantas Catering

Qantas Catering reported EBIT of $10.8 million for the six months ending 31 December
2004, which represents a decline of $35.7 million. The underlying variance, once adjusting
for the allocation of inter-company segmentation charges of $18.5 million and other one-off
items of $8.8 million, was a decline of $8.7 million or 19 per cent. The loss of the
Qantaslink Boeing 717 and Cathay Pacific (Melbourne and Brisbane) contracts, combined
with more competitive pricing are the key contributors to the decline.




ASX.Online@asx.com. To: brettjohnson @ gantas.com.au, janinesmith@gantas.com.au
au cc:

‘ Subject: QAN - ASX Online e-Lodgement - Confirmation of Release
17/02/2005 09:42 AM

ASX confirms the release to the market of Doc ID: 206314 as follows:
Release Time: 17-Feb-2005 09:41:56

ASX Code: QAN

File Name: 206314 .pdf

Your Announcement Title: Media Release - Qantas Half-Year Results

206314.pdf
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We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

2004/05 Interim Results Presentation to Investors

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement, “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.
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In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




2004/05 Interim Results
Presentation to Investors

17 February 2005
Naoantas
Highlights
Six months to  Six months to  Increase/
December December {decrease)
2004 2003 %
Sales and operating revenue Sm 6,431.0 5,801.8 10.8
Expenditure $m (5,759.4) (5,200.3) 10.8
EBIT $m 671.6 601.5 1.7
Net borrowing costs $m {70.3) (71.2) {1.3)
Profit before tax 3m 601.3 530.3 13.4
Net profit after tax m 458.4 367.8 28.1
Earnings per share ¢ 24.7 19.9 24.1
Total dividend per share ¢ 10.0 8.0 25.0
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Strategy

« To return the Qantas Group to a position where it generates a
positive spread to its cost of capital by

—~ Securing a competitive advantage in our major business
segments and markets, by participating in profitable growth
opportunities and investing in product and customer service

— Growing a set of next generation flying businesses to meet
specific market needs

~ Generating earnings from non-flying businesses to smooth the
earnings profile of the Group

3
7
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Strategy
o To return the Qantas Group to a position where it generates a
positive spread to its cost of capital
— Improving accountability, transparency and collaboration
through a business transformation '
— Achieving permanent unit cost efficiencies in all areas of the
Group under the Sustainable Future Program
— Maintaining an investment grade credit rating
4
Moanras
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Strategy -
Qantas International

« Profitably grow route network

-~ New aircraft deliveries
- Five A330-300 aircraft since December 2003

— New services introduced
— Sydney to Mumbai
~ Sydney to London via Hong Kong
— Perth to London via Singapore
— Sydney to Shanghai

— Positive contribution from all route groups except _
South East Asia and New Zealand

k&QANTAS

Strategy -
Qantas International

» Invest to improve overall returns

— International product
— New A330-300 aircraft

— Business Class Skybed
— Audio-Visual On Demand

— Customer service
— Excellent customer satisfaction results

Noanras




Strategy -
Australian Airlines

« Maintain a profitable presence in international leisure markets

—~ High quality, lower cost offering
— Cost base 25 to 30 per cent lower than Qantas

— New services introduced
- Cairns to Sapporo, from November 2004 to March 2005
~ Perth to Bali

—~ Evaluation of new market opportunities
— China, Thailand, India, Vietnam and additional ports

in Japan
7
B
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Strategy -
Australian Airlines
« Maintain a profitable presence in international leisure markets
— Market conditions
— Security issues in Bali
~ Boxing Day tsunami
— Withdrawal from Sabah, Malaysia in April 2005
8
i
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Strategy -
Jetstar Asia

+ Participate in growing Intra-Asia travel market

— Qantas has contributed $23.5 million to date
— New aircraft deliveries
—  Four A320-200 aircraft
-~ New services introduced
— Singapore to Hong Kong
— Singapore to Taipei
- Singapore to Pattaya
— Other air traffic rights awarded Y
o

— Shanghai, Jakarta, Surabaya, Manila, Hanoi J t% - 9
and Kolkata e ﬁgﬁ@ 157

Noanras

o
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Strategy -
Qantas Domestic

« Focus on key business and long sector routes
— Transfer of B717 flying to Jetstar

— New aircraft deliveries
— Three B737-800 aircraft since December 2003
— Transfer of B767-300 aircraft from international flying

— Positive contribution from all route groups
» Clearly differentiate product offering
“More than just the seat”
— Customer service l
~ Focus on punctuality performance
_ P yPp QANTAS

N — Excellent customer satisfaction results
nOoaANTAS




Strategy -
Jetstar

Compete profitably in price sensitive leisure markets

— Performance to December 2004 was ahead of expectations
— Total expenditure cost per ASK of 8.49 cents
-~ Remains on track to meet or exceed its total expenditure cost per ASK
targets
— 8.25 cents per ASK for 2004/05
— 7.8 cents per ASK with an all-A320 fleet
— Grow presence on existing and new domestic leisure routes
— Four A320-200 aircraft
— Further six A320-200 aircraft by June 2005

— Another 13 A320-200 aircraft by mid-2006 %:
—  Will progressively replace existing 14 B717-200 aircraft Jet 4
MNoawnras
Strategy -
QantasLink
o Connect regional business and leisure markets with major
cities in Australia
— Continue to achieve permanent unit cost efficiencies under the
Sustainable Future Program
— Replacement of Dash 8-100 aircraft with 50 seat Dash 8-Q300 aircraft
— Progressive replacement of BAe 146 aircraft with B717-200 aircraft from
July 2005
— Acquire seven Bombardier Q400 aircraft during 2006
— Maintain a competitive advantage
— High frequency schedules and peak time of day service 2y
A 12
MQANTASLINK
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Non-Flying Businesses

Strategy -

» Qantas Freight
— Dedicated freighter services
— Three B747 freighters operate 19 one-way services

To and from destinations in Asia, the US, Europe, India and South Africa
Star Track Express and Australian air Express

Recorded improved results during six months to December 2004
— Thai Air Cargo

Completed 49 per cent investment in partnership with CTI Holding Co
Will operate freighter aircraft within Asia from a hub

in Bangkok \ i~
- Operations to commence during 2005 \ . 13
Ra Freight =
NS oanTas ‘
Strategy -
Non-Flying Businesses
+ Qantas Holidays
— Change in product mix toward land-only and outbound
products
~ Trend toward customers booking air travel over the internet
— Respond by developing on-line products
- ReadyRooms
— Market conditions
— Boxing Day tsunami
A =
H 14
he Holidays =
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Strategy -
Non-Flying Businesses

« Qantas Flight Catering
— Focus on meeting competition from other airline caterers
— Loss of Qantaslink B717-200 contract
— Loss of Cathay Pacific business in Melbourne and Brisbane
— Continue to achieve permanent unit cost efficiencies under the
Sustainable Future Program
— Focus on new non-airline business opportunities
' Bossras
= FLIGHTE&
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Sustainable Future Program
Total for
Achieved in Achievedin  Targetfor  Target for Sustainable
12 months  six months  six months 12 months Future
$ million fo Jun 2004 to Dec 2004 to Jun 2005 to Jun 2006 Program
Labour productivity 156 94 86 150 486
Fleet simplification,
product initiatives
and overheads 211 93 117 258 679
Distribution initiatives 145 58 52 92 347
Total 512 245 255 500 1,612
a
16
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Sustainable Future Program

o Delivering results
— Net expenditure cost per ASK down 4 per cent, excluding
benefit of foreign exchange movements
— Continue to target achievement of $500 million in initiatives in
both 2004/05 and 2005/06

~ Review of processes and activities
— Expand program to co-ordinate all change activities throughout
the Qantas Group

— Focus on core flying and supporting business segments

17
&
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Sustainable Future Program
« Delivering results
— New enterprise bargaining agreements
— Concluded agreements covering more than half our staff
— Annual wage increases of three per cent
—  WIill continue to source from most suitable locations globally
— London cabin crew base
— Remain committed to growing in Australia
I
Ui
18
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Capital Management

+ Maintain investment grade credit rating

— Gearing, including operating leases and hedges, improved
from 49 per cent at June 2004 to 48 per cent at December
2004

— Operating cashflows of $1 billion
- Capital expenditure totalled $1.1 billion

— Provided capacity growth

— Allowed retirement of older, less efficient aircraft from Qantas fleet
— Key to optimising fleet productivity and flexibility

- B767-200 and B737-300 aircraft o
-~ Allowed investment in product to optimise returns §
Naoanras
Capital Management
« Maintain investment grade credit rating
— Current capital expenditure forecast is $6 billion between
2004/05 and 2006/07
-~  WIll provide capacity growth and maintain fleet age
e Fully franked interim dividend of 10 cents per share reflects
— A change from existing dividend policy
— Improvement in profitability over last 18 months
— Desire to reward shareholders while investing for growth
20
§‘OANTA$




Capital Management

Confidence in ability to internally fund future growth and
reinvestment while reducing gearing

— By growing future cashflow so that it exceeds capital
expenditure

— Continued operation of Dividend Reinvestment Plan

— Careful management of capital expenditure

— No plans to raise equity other than the continued operation of
the Dividend Reinvestment Plan

MOANTAS

— No commitment to underwrite future dividends =
21
R QANTAS
Liberalisation of
Aviation Markets
Qantas supports further liberalisation of aviation markets
where this results in balanced outcomes and genuine
opportunities to compete
Bilateral system of international air services arrangements is
complex
Liberalisation must be carefully sequenced
22
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Outlook

« Taking the issues mentioned into account, together with
current booking and cost profiles, and provided current
trading conditions do not deteriorate, we still believe we can
improve on our 2003/04 result in 2004/05 and provide an
outcome broadly in line with market expectations

§‘QANTAS

2004/05 Interim Results
Presentation to Investors

17 February 2005

kQAN-TAS




2004/05 Interim Results
Supplementary Information

NoanTas

Highlights

Six months to Six months to  Increase/

December December (decrease)
2004 2003 %
Sales and operating revenue Sm 6,431.0 5,801.8 10.8
Expenditure $m (5,759.4) (5,200.3) 10.8
EBIT $m 671.6 601.5 11.7
Net borrowing costs $m (70.3) (71.2) {1.3)
Profit before tax 3m 601.3 530.3 13.4
Net profit after tax $m 458.4 367.8 28.1
Earnings per share ¢ 24.7 19.9 24.1
Total dividend per share ¢ 10.0 8.0 25.0 %
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Revenue

$bn Net passenger revenue
8.0 1 up 7.9%
$6.4bn )
$5.8bn Net freight revenue
60 1 up 32.0%
= Tours and travel sales
401 B up 8.4%
20 | Contract work revenue
down 5.5%
0.0 : 3 Revenue from other S
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 sources up 50.9% 27
El
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Revenue
« Sales and operating revenue up 10.8% (up 11.6% excluding
exchange)
— Net passenger revenue up 7.9% (up 8.5% excluding
exchange)
— Group RPKs up 8.6%
— Group yield per RPK down 1.0% (down 0.4% excluding exchange)
— Net freight revenue up 32.0% (up 33.7% excluding
exchange)
— RFTKs up 46.3%
— AFTKs up 35.8% due to lease of three B747 freighter since December
2003 2
— Freight yield per RFTK down 4.3% (down 3.2% excluding exchange) 28
i
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Revenue

'S

[ X

oanTas booking fees and Qantas Club membership revenue

— Tours and travel sales up 8.4% (up 9.1% excluding
exchange) '
— Growth of 36.5% in outbound passenger numbers

- Contract work revenue down 5.5% (down 5.4% excluding

exchange

— Lower heavy and engine maintenance for third party airlines

— Decrease in Qantas Defence Services revenue offset by increased
Airports and Catering third party revenue

— Revenue from other sources up 50.9% (up 52.8% excluding

exchange)

— Release of a revenue provision related 1o the IRIS revenue accounting =
system migration - 29

~ Higher freight fuel surcharge recoveries, ticket change fees, service e

Expenditure

A

$bn
8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0.0

LM OQANTAS up 0.4%

Manpower and staff related up
11.8%

n Aircraft operating - variable up
10.4%

%4  Fuel and oil up 32.3%

Depreciation and amortisation

up 2.4%

Tours and travel cost of sales

up 7.6%

Selling and marketing

up 3.5%

Capacity hire up 0.7%

O ing teasels
{ Non-cancellabie operating Ieasema

rentals up 10.0% %;
- All other expenditure o

$5.8bn

Dec 2003 Dec 2004




Expenditure

« Expenditure excluding net borrowing costs up 10.8% (up
12.5% excluding exchange)
— Manpower and staff related costs up 11.8% (up 11.9%
excluding exchange)
~ Group ASKs up 13.3%
- Average FTEs up 5.2%
- 3% increase in wage rates under current EBAs

— Partial provision for executive and staff bonuses, subject to the
achievement of profitability targets for the full year

— Partially offset by Sustainable Future Program initiatives

31
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Expenditure
— Aircraft operating variable costs up 10.4% (up 11.9%
excluding exchange)
— Higher landing fees, route navigation, security and ground handling
charges associated with 13.3% increase in Group ASKs
— Fuel and oil costs up 32.3% (up 39.5% excluding exchange)
— Increase of $390.0 million due to 56.7% increase in average US§ jet fuel
prices
- Increase of $91.7 million due to increased flying
— Decrease of $226.8 million due to hedging benefits
— Decrease of $46.9 million due to favourable foreign exchange ey
movements 72
[ 8
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Expenditure

— Depreciation and amortisation costs up 2.4% (up 2.4%
excluding exchange)

— New aircraft between June and December 2003 (2 x B747-400ER, 2 x
A330-300, 3 x B737-800)

— New aircraft between January and June 2004 (1 x A330-300)

— New aircraft between July and December 2004 (4 x A330-300, 3 x B737-
800)

— Aircraft retired since December 2003 (4 x B767-200)

— Accelerated depreciation of modifications on certain aircraft

— Prior year reflects accelerated depreciation on Business Class
Dreamtime seats being replaced by Skybed

k‘mQANTAS

Expenditure

— Tours and travel cost of sales up 7.6% (up 9.0% excluding

exchange) ,
- Compares with an 8.4% increase (up 9.1% excluding exchange) in tours
and travel sales

— Selling and marketing costs up 3.5% (up 4.4% excluding

exchange).
- Higher commission expenses associated with increase in revenue

— Jetstar advertising and marketing expenses
—~ Offset by continued migration of domestic sales to online channels

— Online sales currently account for 30% of Qantas Domestic, 10% of
Qantas International and 75% of Jetstar bookings

Noavras




Expenditure

— Capacity hire costs up 0.7% (up 2.8% excluding exchange)
—  Wet-lease of three B747-400 freighters (from February and September
2004)
— Offset by the return of five wet-leased QantasLink BAe146 aircraft and
three B737-300 aircraft
— Non-cancellable operating lease rentals up 10.0% (up 12.6%
excluding exchange) :

—~ Refinancing of aircraft from finance lease to operating lease (3 x B747-
400, 2 x B767-300)

— Jetstar's lease of four A320-200 aircraft
— Partially offset by the return of five wet-leased BAe146 aircraft

stANTAS

Expenditure

g1

&1

— Property costs up 3.0% (up 3.1% excluding exchange)
— Opening of the Brisbane Heavy Maintenance Facility
-~ Higher baggage screening costs
~ Increase in Qantas Club rental costs in Singapore and Hong Kong

— Computer and communications up 20.8% (up 23.8%
excluding exchange)

— Managed service fee charged by IBM for transition and operational costs
associated with Infrastructure Services Transition Program, offset by
reduced manpower and depreciation expenses

Moanras




Expenditure

— Other costs down 22.5% (down 19.1% excluding exchange)

— Lower contract work materials costs in line with decrease in confract
work revenue

—~ Net expenditure cost per ASK down 5.8% (4.0% excluding
exchange)

— Net impact of foreign exchange movements on statement of
financial performance
—~ Favourable variance of $47.2 m to prior corresponding period

Z
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Business Transformation -
Segmentation
— The EBIT results that follow reflect the progressive
implementation of financial reporting system changes to
transition the Qantas Group into three separate business
types (Flying, Flying Services and Associated Businesses)
supported by a Corporate Centre
— Recharges from Qantas to segments have increased by
approximately $48 million compared to the prior half-year.
The recharges include IT, airport and distribution costs based
on a more accurate allocation of activities
=
38|
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International -

Qantas and Australian Airlines

$m
250 4 $229.0m
$200.1m
200 - EBIT of $229.0m, or 34.1% of Group
EBIT
150 - EBIT of $207.7m pre-segmentation
RPKs up 8.1%
100 4 ASKs up 14.2%
Seat factor down 4.2% pts to 75.1%
50 Yield excluding exchange increased
by 3.6% B
o : 39
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 R
stANTAS
International -
Qantas
$m
250 -
$220.5m
$196.7m
200 - EBIT of $220.5m, or 32.8% of Group
EBIT
150 - EBIT of $196.6m pre-segmentation
RPKs up 7.1%
100 - ASKs up 13.8%
Seat factor down 4.7% pts to 75.3%
50 Yield excluding exchange increased
by 3.6% fzd
0 . 40
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 g
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International -
Australian Airlines

$m
10 -
$8.5m
8 EBIT of $8.5m, or 1.3% of Group
EBIT
6 - EBIT of $11.1m pre-segmentation
RPKs up 24.3%
4 $3.4m ASKs up 19.7%
Seat factor up 2.7% pts
24 to 72.0%
Yield excluding exchange increased [~
0 by 3.7% 41
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 15
MNoanras
Domestic -
Qantas, QantasLink and Jetstar
$m
$390.1m
400
] EEE
350 - $323.9m
 — EBIT of $380.1m, or 58.1% of Group
300 1 EBIT
250 - EBIT of $388.4m pre-segmentation
200 - RPKs up 9.7%
150 - ASKs up 11.3%
. Seat factor down 1.1% pts to 78.6%
100 -
Yield excluding exchange decreased by
50 5.3% -
ey
0 42
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 Y
A\
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Domestic -

Qantas
$m
400 +
$341.9m
350 4
EBIT of $341.9m, or 51.0% of Group
300 - $270.9m EBIT
250 - EBIT of $318.0m pre-segmentation
200 4 RPKs down 2.6%
150 ASKs down 2.4%
J Seat factor down 0.2% pts to 81.2%
100
Yield excluding exchange decreased by
50 - 1.3% -
=l
0 r — 43
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 RS
NMoanras
Domestic -
QantasLink
$m
60 7
$53.0m
501 EBIT of $29.2m, or 4.3% of Group EBIT
40 - EBIT of $51.4m pre-segmentation
$29.2m RPKs down 8.8%
30 " ASKs down 7.4%
20 Seat factor down 1.1% pts to 73.1%
Yield excluding exchange decreased by
0.7%
10 4
0 — . 44
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 E
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Domestic -

Jetstar
$m
20 - $19.0m
15 EBIT of $19.0m, or 2.8% of Group EBIT
« RPKs of 1,907Tm
« ASKsof 2,619m
10 1 « Seat factor of 72.8%
5 -
0 —_ 45
Dec 2003 Dec 2004 7
doanras
Other Subsidiaries
December 2004
Pre-
December 2004 segmentation December 2003
(3m) ($m} (8m}
Qantas Holidays 27.1 31.7 24.0
Qantas Flight Catering 10.9 29.3 46.6
Qantas Defence Services 4.0 4.0 3.2
Equity Accounting
- Australian_air Express 10.7 10.7 6.2
- Star Track Express 1.8 1.8 -
- Air Pacific 2.6 2.6 0.2
- Jetstar Asia (9.7) (9.7) -
- Jet Turbine Services (1.9) {1.9) -
- Other Associates 1.1 1.1 (0.1) - 5
Other Subsidiaries 59 5.9 (2.6) =
w __ Jotal Other Subsidiaries 52.5 75.5 77.5 .
R OANTAS




Balance Sheet and Cashflow

Increase/
December December (decrease)
2004 2003 %
Capital expenditure $m 1,149.8 1,046.8 9.8
Capitalised interest Sm 33.0 24.2 36.4
Operating cashflow m 1,023.4 966.6 5.9
Net debt * $m 5,628.2  5599.4 0.5
Total equity ** $m 6,161.9 5,587.6 10.3
Leverage * % 48 50 (2) pts
Interest cover *** times 9.6 8.4 14.3
* Includes off balance sheet debt and revenue hedge receivables 47
**  Adjusted for capitalisation of non-cancellable operating leases  [%
A *** Calculated as EBIT divided by net interest expense
ROANTAS
Group Operational
Aircraft Fleet
December June Increase/
2004 2004 (decrease)
Boeing 747-400ER 6 6 -
Boeing 747-400 24 24 -
Boeing 747-300 6 6 -
Boeing 767-300ER 29 29 -
Boeing 767-200ER - 2 {(2)
Boeing 737-800 24 21 3
Boeing 737-400 21 21 -
Boeing 737-300 14 17 (3)
Airbus A330-200 4 4 -
Airbus A330-300 ) 7 3 4
Total Qantas Fleet * 135 133 2
Total QantasLink Fleet ** 43 43 - |
Total Jetstar Fleet 18 14 4 48
_ Total Qantas Group Fleet 196 190 6 [
}‘QA NTAS *Includes five B767-300ER aircraft operated by Australian Airlines

** One BAe14€ aircraft returned to lessor in December 2004 was replaced in January 2005
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 24/02/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:05:28 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stack Exchange Sydney
)} FAXNO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system, This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.18A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX becorne ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Geoffrey James Dixon

Date of last notice 12 November 2004

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the lrust

Note: In the case of @ company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director”
shouid be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest

Nature of indirect interest N/A
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant inferest.

Date of change 1 March 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 114,222 Direct Interest

312,500 Indirect Interest

Class Ordinary Shares

Number acquired 215,000 Ordinary Shares.
Number disposed N/A
Valuef/Consideration $3.48 per Ordinary Share.

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

Geoffrey James Dixon Appendix 3Y Page 1



Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

No. of securities held after change

329,222 Direct Interest

312,500 Indirect Interest

Nature of change

Example: on-market frade, cff-market trade, exercise of
options, issue of securities under dividend reinvestment
plan, paricipation in buy-back

On-market trade.

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of “notifiable interest of a direcior”

shouid be disclosed in this pant.

Detail of contract

N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only reguired for a contract In relation fo
which the interest has changed

interest acquired

interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: I consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
esfimated valuation

Interest after change

N U L A « ) ¥ A . D . Y

~
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street

FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 01/03/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 16:17:05 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww .asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Media Rel: Qantas Statement

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements,

Once “pre-open’ period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online, Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
15 1900 999 279.




QANTAS

Media Release

QANTAS STATEMENT

1 March 2005: Qantas said today there was no definitive figure for possible redundancies
as a resuit of its ongoing and extensive restructuring across all areas of the company.

The Chief Executive Office of Qantas, Geoff Dixon, said Qantas ~ like all airlines — was
involved in ongoing workplace and operational change to meet the challenges facing
aviation woridwide.

Mr Dixon said that despite its credible level of recent profitability, Qantas had no option but
to continue the change program it had been implementing in recent years.

“Two weeks ago, when reporting the Qantas half-year results, we announced a review of
all processes and activities across the Qantas Group that would take at least three

months,” Mr Dixon said.

‘It has been this willingness by the company to confront deeply embedded inefficiencies
that has provided Qantas with the means for substantial investment in aircraft and product

and significant employment growth.

‘Qantas has added 7,500 jobs over the past six years while most airlines have been
undertaking massive downsizing.”

Mr Dixon said it was inevitable that existing efficiency programs and the process review
outlined at Qantas’ half-year results announcement would result in further change.

“This couid involve some redundancies, some relocation of activities — not necessarily
offshore — and a change in emphasis in the direction of some areas of the company. It
could also involve new jobs and greater opportunities in other areas,” he said.

“We do not have a redundancy target in any area — we have a commitment to ensure the
competitive future of Qantas. What we do have is a record of employing and training

~Australians in many key discipfines.”
Qantas currently employs about 38,500 people including more than 35,000 in Australia.

Mr Dixon said Qantas was consulting, and wouid continue to consuit, extensively with its
people over proposed future changes.

He said that despite some misinformed views to the contrary, Qantas received no
Government support in an industry rife with Government ownership, subsidies and

extensive protection.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication {Q3222)
Mndia Enauiriac: Mirhasl Sharn - Telephone 02 8601 2489
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000

Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 08/03/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 09:17:37 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Stats January 2005

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
151900 999 279.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
JANUARY 2005

Summary of Traffic and Capacity Statistics
Month of January 2005

Total Domestic (Qantas, QantasLink and Jetstar) traffic, measured in Revenue Passenger Kilometres
(RPKs) increased by 6.8 per cent in January 2005 while capacity, measured in Available Seat Kilometres
(ASKs) increased by 9.2 per cent. This resulted in a revenue seat factor of 77.8 per cent, 1.7 percentage
points lower than for January 2004.

Total International (Qantas and Australian Airlines) RPKs increased by 4.4 per cent in January 2005,
while ASKs increased by 8.5 per cent over the same period. The resulting revenue seat factor of 80.3
per cent was 3.2 percentage points lower than the previous year.

January Group (comprising Qantas Domestic, QantasLink, Jetstar, Qantas International and Australian
Airlines) passenger numbers increased by 7.5 per cent over the previous year. RPKs increased by 5.1
per cent, while ASKs were up 8.7 per cent, resulting in a revenue seat factor of 79.5 per cent, which was
2.8 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Financial Year to Date January 2005

Total Domestic revenue seat factor for the financial year to January 2005 decreased by 1.3 percentage
points to 79.3 per cent when compared with year to date January 2004, while total Domestic yield
excluding exchange decreased by 4.9 per cent over the same period. Total International yield excluding
exchange for the financial year to January increased by 4.0 per cent when compared with the same
period last year. Total International revenue seat factor decreased by 4.1 percentage points to 75.8 per
cent over the same period.

Group passenger numbers for the year to January 2005 increased by 9.2 per cent from the previous
year. RPKs increased by 8.1 per cent, while ASKs increased by 12.6 per ceni, resulting in a revenue
seat factor of 76.9 per cent, 3.2 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Recent Developments

On 17 February 2005, Qantas announced its financial results for the six months ended 31 December
2004. Highlights included a profit before tax of $601.3 million, a net profit after tax of $458.4 million,
revenue of $6.4 billion, earnings per share of 24.7 cents and a fully franked interim dividend of ten cents
per share.

On 16 February 2005, Qantas announced that Trevor Eastwood, AM will retire as a Non-Executive
Director of Qantas. Mr Eastwood was appointed to the Qantas Board in October 1995 and his retirement
will take effect on 31 March 2005. Mr Eastwood has been a member of the Chairman’s Committee since
it was established, a member of the Audit Committee for the past four years and has made a major
contribution to Qantas over nearly a decade.

On 11 February 2005, Qantas announced that Adelaide-based National Jet Systems had been selected
as the preferred bidder to operate and maintain Qantaslink's new Boeing 717 regional flying operations.
QantasLink will progressively replace its fleet of BAe146 aircraft with newer Boeing 717 aircraft from July

2005. The Boeing 717 aircraft will move from Jetstar to QantasLink as Jetstar continues to grow its fleet
~f nevar Airkaie A290c¢




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901
PRELIMINARY MCONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
JANUARY 2005
Maonth Financial Year to Date

2004/05 2003/04 Change 2004/05 2003/04 Change
Qantas Domestic *
Passengers carried (‘000) 1,258 1,494 (15.8)% 9,662 10,499 (8.0)%
Revenue Passenger Kiiometres (m) 1,802 2,042 (11.8)% 13,595 14,153 (3.9)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 2,287 2,540 (10.0)% 16,814 17,426 (3.5)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 78.8 80.4 (1.6) pts 80.8 81.2 (0.3) pts
Qantaslink
Passengers carried {'000) 223 209 6.7% 1,784 1,797 (0.7)%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 141 137 2.6% 1,107 1,197 (7.5)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 206 202 2.1% 1,528 1,629 (6.2)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 68.2 67.8 0.4 pis 72.5 73.5 (1.0) pts
Jetstar *
Passengers carried (‘000) 428 - na 2,414 - na
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 420 - na 2,326 - na
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 549 - na 3,169 - na
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 76.4 - na 73.4 - na
Total Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1,876 1,703 10.1% 13,612 12,296 10.7%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 2,328 2,179 6.8% 16,774 15,350 9.3%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 2,994 2,742 9.2% 21,145 19,055 11.0%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 77.8 79.5 (1.7) pts 79.3 80.6 (1.3) pts
Qantas International
Passengers carried (‘000) 794 780 1.8% 5,179 4,960 4.4%
Revenue Passenger Kilomeltres (m) 5,164 4,964 4.0% 32,572 30,561 6.6%
Available Seal Kilometres (m) 6,367 5,851 8.8% 42,766 37,845 13.0%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 81.1 84.8 (3.7) pts 76.2 80.8 (4.6) pis
Australian Airlines
Passengers carried (‘000) 68 64 6.3% 495 398 24.4%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 344 313 9.9% . 2,397 1,965 22.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 492 469 4.9% 3,345 2,853 17.3%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 69.9 66.7 3.2 pts 71.7 68.9 2.8 pis
Total International
Passengers carried (‘000) 862 844 2.1% 5,674 5,358 5.9%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 5,508 5,277 4.4% 34,969 32,526 7.5%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 6,859 6,320 8.5% 46,111 40,698 13.3%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 80.3 83.5 (3.2) pts 75.8 ©79.9 (4.1) pts
Total Group Operations
Passengers carried (‘'000) 2,738 2,547 7.5% 19,286 17,654 8.2%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 7,836 7,456 5.1% 51,743 47,876 8.1%
Avazilable Seat Kilometres (m) 9,853 8,062 8.7% 67,256 59,753 12.6%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 79.5 82.3 (2.8) pts 76.9 80.1 (3.2) pts

Notes
Any adjustments to preliminary statistics will be included in the year to date results next month. Where figures have been rounded, discrepancies

may occur between the sum of the components of items and the total and in percentage changes which are derived from figures prior to rounding.

The number of passengers carried is calculated on the basis of origin/destination (ie. one origin/destination journey represenis ocne passenger
regardless of the number of stage lengths undertaken).

- - . -~ N a.a. PR T R S R T 7 S U S D T T T T T T
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Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224

Australia Square
DATE: 22/03/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 16:17:00 Telephone 612 9227 0334

Internet hitp/iwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Anncuncements Office

SUBJECT: - CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Appendix 3B - DRP

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number 10 use
is 1900 999 279.




General Counsel
Brett Johnson

Re.

QANTAS

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,

application for quotation of additional securities

and agreement

Information or dociuiments not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. information
and documents given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Intreduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amendsd 1/7/88, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003.

Qantas Airways Limited (ABN 16 009 661 901) gives the ASX the following information

Part 1 - All issues

1

Class of securities issued or to
be issued

Number of securities issued or
to be issued (if known) or
maximum number which may
be issued

Principal terms of the securities | NiA.

Do the securities rank equally
in all respects from the date of
allotment with an existing class
of quoted securities?

Issue price or consideration

Purpose of the issue

(If issued as consideration for
the acquisition of assets,
clearly identify those assets)

Dates of entering securities into
uncertificated  holdings  or
despaich of cerlificates

Crdinary Shares.

29,798,872 shares will be issued 1o
shareholders participating in the Qantas
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP} on 6 April
2005, being the payment daie of the 10¢ interim
dividend.

Yes.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the
DRP, Qantas shares wil be issued fo
shareholders participating in the DRP at a2 2.5%
discount to the volume weighted average price
(VWARP) of all Qantas shares traded on the
Australian Stock Exchange in the five trading
days following the Record Date. The VWAP as
calculated and provided by the Australian Stock
Exchange was $3.6029. This will result in an
issue price under the DRP of $3.5128 per
share.

To issue shares to pariicipants in the DRP,

6 April 2005,




Number Class

8 Number and class of all(| 1,897,648,748 Ordinary Shares
securities quoted on ASX
{(including the securilies in
clause 2 if applicable)

Number Class :

9 Number and class of all| 3,500 1442 15 June 2009
securities not quoted on ASX US Issue. Each Parcel
{including the securities in of Notes has a face
clause 2 if applicable) value of US$100,000

40 Fixed Rate Medium

Term Note, maluring
15 March 2007. Each
Notle has a face value
of A$500,000

1,000 Fixed Rate Medium
Term Note, maturing
15  Octoher 2007.
Each Note has a face
value of A$100,000
400 Floating Rate Medium
Term Note, maturing
20 June 2005. Each
Note has a face value
of A$100,000

4,500 144a 20 June 2013
US Issue. Each
parcel of Noles has a

face value of
Us$100,000
27,622 682 Entitlements awarded

to Eligible Executives
under the Qantas
Long-Term Execulive
Incentive Plan

10 Dividend policy {in the case of | Identical to the current policy.
a trust, distribution policy) on
the increased capital (interests)

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

34  Type of securities

(a8 Vv Securities described in Part 1

{b) All other securities

Example: resiricied securities al the end of the escrowesd period, parlly paid securities that becoms fully paid,
employee incentive share securities when restriction snds, seturilies issued on expiry or conversion of
convertible securities

RN



Quotation Agreement

1 Quotation of our additional securities is in ASX's absoluie discretion. ASX may
quote the securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issue of the securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for
an illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those securities should not be granted quotation.

. Section 724 of the Corporations Act does not apply 10 any applications
received by us in relation to any securities to be quoted and that no-one has
any right to return any securities to be quoled under sections 737 or 738 of
the Corporations Act at the time that we requesl that the securities be quoted.

. We warrant that if confirmation is required under seclion 1017F of the
Corporations Act in relation {o the securilies 1o be quoted, it has been
provided at the time that we request that the securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX to the Tullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in
this agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any
information or document not available now, will give it to ASX before quotation of
the securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are {will be) true and complete.

Brett Johnison

General Counsel & Company Secretary

22 March 2005
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H226
Australia Square
DATE: 01/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 17:09:32 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Intemnet http:/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
' FAXNO:  02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Anncuncements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an'announcement regarding:

Final Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




Appendix 3Z
Final Director’s Interest Notice

Rufe 3.19A.3

Appendix 3Z

Final Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/6/2001.
Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity} give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.12A.3 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Trevor Raymond Eastwooed
Date of last notice 6 Ociober 2004
Date that Director ceased to be Director 31 March 2005

Part 1 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is the registered holder
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made availeble by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a2 company., interesls which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disciosed
in this part.

Number & class of securities

N/A

Part 2 - Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the registered
holder

Naote: In the case of 2 company, interests which come within paragraph {il) of the definition of “nolifiable intersst of a director” should be disclosed in
this parl.

In the case ot a trust, this includes interests In the trust made avaitable by the responsible entity of the trust

Name of holder & nature of interest Number & class of securities
Nole: Provide dsiaile of the circumetances giving rige o the relevant
interest

Merriment Nominees Pty Limited
This is Trevor Eastwood’s family account 13,440




Appendix 3Z
Final Director’s Interest Notice

Part 3 - Director's interests in contracts

Detail of contract

N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
{if issued securities)

No. and class of securities to which interest relates
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000

Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 04/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 11:27:30 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/Mwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
! FAX NO: 02-9601-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Stats February 2005

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be S0 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

" Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279, ,




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
FEBRUARY 2005

Summary of Traffic and Capacity Statistics

Month of February 2005

Total Domestic (Qantas, QantasLink and Jetstar) traffic, measured in Revenue Passenger Kilometres
(RPKs) increased by 8.4 per cent in February 2005 while capacity, measured in Available Seat
Kilometres (ASKSs) increased by 9.6 per cent. This resulted in a revenue seat factor of 76.1 per cent, 0.9
percentage points lower than for February 2004,

Total International (Qantas and Australian Airlines) RPKs increased by 2.1 per cent in February 2005,
while ASKs increased by 4.5 per cent over the same period. The resulting revenue seat factor of 76.0
per cent was 1.7 percentage points lower than the previous year.

February Group (comprising Qantas Domestic, QantaslLink, Jetstar, Qantas International and Australian
Airlines) passenger numbers increased by 7.1 per cent over the previous year. RPKs increased by 4.0
per cent, while ASKs were up 6.1 per cent, resulting in a revenue seat factor of 76.0 per cent, which was
1.5 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Financial Year to Date February 2005

Total Domestic revenue seat factor for the financial year to February 2005 decreased by 1.1 percentage
points 10 79.0 per cent when compared with year to date February 2004, while iotal Domestic yield
excluding exchange decreased by 4.2 per cent over the same period. Total International yield excluding
exchange for the financial year to February increased by 3.8 per cent when compared with the same
period last year. Total International revenue seat factor decreased by 3.7 percentage points to 75.9 per

cent over the same period.

Group passenger numbers for the year to February 2005 increased by 9.0 per cent from the previous
year. RPKs increased by 7.6 per cent, while ASKs increased by 11.8 per cent, resulting in a revenue
seat factor of 76.8 per cent, 3.0 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Recent Developments

On 21 March 2005, Qantas and British Airways announced the introduction of a new, more flexible fare
structure for Economy Class travel between Australia and the United Kingdom and Europe. The new
structure will be introduced from 26 April 2005 and will offer customers three fare types — Qantas Red e-
Deal or British Airways Value Deal, Super Saver and Flexi Saver. The new fares offer greater choice and
meef the needs of a wide range of market segments, from the price-conscious traveller to those planning

short journeys.

On 16 March 2005, Qantas announced it will add a fourth weekly Sydney-Hong Kong-London service.
The new service will commence on 13 November 2005 and bring the total number of Qantas services
between Australia and the United Kingdom each week to 28. The new QFZ29 service will depart Sydney
on Sundays and will be operated by three-class Boeing 747-400 aircraft which feature the award winning

Skybed sleeper seat.

On 1 March 2005, Jetstar announced that Qantas Frequent Flyer members can earn Frequent Flyer
points and Status credits when flying on a Jetstar JetFlex fare. Jetstar's JetFlex fare allow customers the
flexibility to change itineraries for no additional cost and to pre-board Jetstar services. Qantas Frequent
Fhare trauallinn nn a etstar JetFlex fare will earn equivalent points per mile and Status credits as earned



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 €61 901
PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
FEBRUARY 2005
Month Financial Year to Date

2004/05 2003/04 Change 2004/05 2003/04 Change
Qantas Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1,210 1,384 (12.6)% 10,871 11,883 (8.5)%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 1,608 1,791 (10.2)% 15,203 15,944 (4.6)%
Available Seat Kilometres {m) 2,065 2,298 (10.2)% 18,879 19,724 (4.3)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 77.9 77.9 (0.0) pts 80.5 80.8 (0.3) pts
Qantasblink
Passengers carried ('000) 234 222 5.6% 2,019 2,018 0.0%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 142 137 3.4% 1,249 1,334 (6.4)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 200 206 (2.8)% 1,728 1,835 (5.8)%
Revenue Seat Faclor (%) 70.8 66.5 4.3 pts 72.3 72.7 (0.4) pts
Jetstar * ‘
Passengers carried ('000) 363 - na 2,777 - na
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 361 - na 2,687 - na
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 515 - na 3,684 - na
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 70.0 - na 72.9 - na
Total Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1,786 1,606 11.2% 15,398 13,802 10.8%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 2,089 1,928 8.4% 18,863 17,278 8.2%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 2,745 2,504 9.6% 23,890 21,559 10.8%
Revenue Seal Factor (%) 76.1 77.0 (0.9) pts 79.0 80.1 (1.1) pts
Qantas International
Passengers carried (‘000) 676 694 (2.6)% 5,855 5,654 3.6%
Revenue Passenger Kilomeires (m) 4,323 4,249 1.7% 36,896 34,810 6.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 5,625 5,385 4.5% 48,391 43,230 11.8%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 76.9 78.9 (2.0) pts 76.2 80.5 (4.3) pts
Australian Airlines
Passengers carried ('000) 58 53 9.4% 553 451 22.6%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 285 273 8.1% 2,693 2,238 20.3%
Available Seat Kilometres {(m}) 455 432 5.4% 3,800 3,284 15.7%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 64.9 63.3 1.6 pts 70.9 68.1 2.8 pts
Total International
Passengers carried ('000) 734 747 {(1.7)% 6,408 6,105 5.0%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 4,619 4,522 2.1% 39,588 37,048 6.9%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 6,080 5,817 45% 52,191 46,515 12.2%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 76.0 77.7 (1.7) pts 75.9 79.6 (3.7) pts
Total Group Operations
Passengers carried ('000) 2,520 2,353 7.1% 21,806 20,007 8.0%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {(m) 6,708 6,450 4.0% 58,451 54,326 7.6%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 8,826 8,321 6.1% 76,081 68,074 11.8%
Revenue Seat Faclor (%) 76.0 77.5 (1.5) pts 76.8 79.8 (3.0) pts

Notes
Any adjustments to preliminary statistics will be included in the year to date results next month. Where figures have been rounded, discrepancies

may occur between the sum of the components of items and the total and in percentage changes which are derived from figures prior to rounding.

The number of passengers carried is calculated on the basis of origin/destination (ie. one origin/destination journey represents one passenger

regardless of the number of stage lengths undertaken).

* Qantas Domestic and Jetstar statistics both include the effect of a codeshare between the two airlines. However the effect of this codeshare is
only included once in the statistics for the Total Domestic and Total Group Operations.

Kev
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCIIANGT

Augtralian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street

FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 06/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 12:04:08 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Intemet hitp/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
} FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: . AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as availeble. Information and
documents given 1o ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Infroduced 30/9/2001.
Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entily) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Geoffrey James Dixon

Date of last notice 24 February 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made &vaiiabie by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of 2 company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director”
shouid be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest

Nature of indirect interest N/A

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide defails of the circumstances giving rise fo
the relevant inferest.

Date of change 6 April 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 329,222 Direct Interest

482,500 Indirect Interest

Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 3,252

Number disposed N/A
Value/Consideration $3.5128

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

No. of securities held after change

332,474 Direct Interest

482,500 Indirect Interest

Nature of change

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of
options, issue of securities under dividend reinvestment
plan, participation in buy-back

Issue of Ordinary Shares under the Qantas
Cividend Reinvesiment Plan

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: in the case of 8 company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “nofifiable interest of a direclor”

should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered hoider
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Detalls are only required for a contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an

estimated valuation

Interest after change
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 06/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 12:10:28 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
FAX NO: 02-9691-333%
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an anpounceiment to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.



Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

Rile 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

information or documents nct available now must be given 1o ASX as soon as available. Information and
documenis given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

introduced 30/5/2001.

Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Michael Henry Codd

Date of last notice 6 October 2004

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made availabie by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests vwhich come within paragraph (i) of the definition of *notifiable interest of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct interest

Nature of indirect interest N/A

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide defails of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant interest.

Date of change 6 April 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 11,897

Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 339

Number disposed N/A
Value/Consideration $3.5128

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

No. of securities held after change 12,236

Nature of change lssue of Ordinary Shares under the Qantas
Example: on-market frade, off-market trade, exercise of | Dividend Reinvesiment Plan
opfions, issue of securities under dividend reinvestrnent
plan, participation in buy-back




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 — Change of director's interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a cornpany, interests which corne within paragraph (ji} of the definition of “notifiable interest of a direcior

shoutd be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation fo
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: 1t consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change

N
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 06/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 12:21:02 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http/Awww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
‘We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 miputes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be SO minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Ouline. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

Rule 3.18A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 0/3/2001.

Name of entity

QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 008 661 301

We (the entity} give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

Patricia Anne Cross

Date of last notice

6 October 2004

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trusi, this includes inferests in the trust made svailable by the responsible enlity of the trust

Note: in the case of & company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director”

should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest

Direct Interest

Nature of indirect interest N/A
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise fo

the relevant interest.

Date of change 6 April 2005
No. of securities held prior to change 2,103

Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 60

Number disposed N/A
Value/Consideration $3.5128

Note: If considerafion is non-cash, provide details and

estimated valuation

No. of securities held after change 2,163

Nature of change

Example: on-market frade, off-market trade, exercise of
opfions, issue of securities under dividend reinvestrnent
plan, participation in buy-back

lssue of Ordinary Shares under the Qanlas
Dividend Reinvestment Plan




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of & company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of “notifiable interest of a direcior”

shouid be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
{if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities tc which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a2 contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change

g



R
4/6/05 12:36 FAX101 -> 81 2 98913339 Page 1 of 1

',\,)

*

s

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 06/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 12:28:56 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

—

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

information or documenis not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity) give ASX the following informalion under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Garry Arthur Hounsell

Date of last notice 4 January 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
in the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsibie enlity of the trust

Note: Inthe case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest (personal superannuation fund)

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant interest.

Date of change 6 April 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 30,000

Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 854

Number disposed NJ/A
Value/Consideration $3.5128

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

No. of securities held after change 30,854




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

Nature of change I[ssue of Ordinary Shares under the Qantas
Example: on-rnarket trade, off-market trade, exercise of | Dividend Reinvestiment Plan
options, issue of securities under dividend reinvestment
plan, participation in buy-back

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which tome within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract N/A

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCHANGL
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 08/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 13:28:41 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Qantas to Increase Fuel Surcharge

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”™
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Ouline. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279,



Media Release

QANTAS TO INCREASE FUEL SURCHARGE

SYDNEY, 8 April 2005: Qantas said today that it would increase its fuel surcharge
because of the continued escalation in the price of crude oil and jet fual.

» For domestic travel in Australia and New Zealand the surcharge will increase by $8,
from $12 to $20 (incl GST) per sector;
» For trans-Tasman travel the surcharge will increase by $11, from $29 to $40 per

sector;
= For other international fravel (including Australian Airlines) the surcharge will increase

by $31, from $29 to $60 per sector; and
= Jetstar will increase its surcharge from $10 to $19 (incl GST) per sector.

The surcharges will be effective on tickets issued on or after Wednesday 20 April.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Geoff Dixon, said fuel was always a significant cost
to an airline.

“The price of both oil and jet fuel are at historic highs and remain extremely volatile,” Mr
Dixon said.

"Based on current prices the Qantas Group will spend approximately $1 billion more on
fuel in 2005/06 compared to the current financial year. The increased surcharge, together
with the existing surcharges and our hedging activities will, taking into account the effects
on demand, fall short by approximately $400 million.

“Consequently, in an environment of historically low airfares, we are looking very closely at
all aspects of our business to find ways in which we can achieve further efficiencies.”

Note: The surcharge applies to each flight/sector shown on a ticket or itinerary.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3252)
Madia Enniiiriae Qimnn Rusehinn - Telenhone (02) GRG4 2747
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Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 681

Exchange Centre

Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224

Australia Square
DATE: 29/04/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 15:32:30 Telephone 61 2 8227 0334

Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

All-Inclusive Pricing for Airfares

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
15 1900 999 279.



N

"
Wit}

QANTAS

Media Release

QANTAS ANNOUNCES ALL-INCLUSIVE PRICING FOR AIRFARES

SYDNEY, 29 April 2005: The Qantas Group today announced that it would move to all-
inclusive pricing for its airfare and package holiday advertising from Wednesday, 11 May.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Geoff Dixon, said the airline had made the decision
in support of the Federal Government’'s recent announcement that it would amend the
Trade Practices Act in relation to component pricing in a number of industries.

‘We will be making the change to our advertising ahead of any change to the Act, in the
interest of establishing consistency for our customers as quickly as possible,” Mr Dixon said.

Qantas currently provides a breakdown of costs in its advertising, providing the base airfare
with taxes and charges listed separately.

“We are aware that, with airfares often very low in comparison, customers want the total
cost of their purchase clearly spelled out.”

Qantas, Qantaslink, Australian Airlines and Jetstar will all move to the new advertising
style.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communications (Q3264)
Media Enquiries: Sonya Sandham - Telephone (02) 9691 3473
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224

Australia Square
DATE: 02/05/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 12:53:42 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Internet htp/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Statistics March 2005

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open’ period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.
pre-open p P g pany

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
MARCH 2005

Summary of Traffic and Capacity Statistics

Month of March 2005

Total Domestic (Qantas, QantasLink and Jetstar) traffic, measured in Revenue Passenger Kilometres
(RPKs) increased by 15.7 per cent in March 2005 while capacity, measured in Available Seat Kilometres
(ASKs) increased by 14.0 per cent. This resulted in a revenue seat factor of 79.5 per cent, 1.2

percentage points higher than for March 2004,

Total international (Qantas and Australian Airlines) RPKs increased by 9.1 per cent in March 2005, while
ASKs increased by 7.0 per cent over the same period. The resulting revenue seat factor of 77.2 per cent
was 1.5 percentage points higher than the previous year.

March Group (comprising Qantas Domestic, Qantaslink, Jetstar, Qantas International and Australian
Airlines) passenger numbers increased by 12.6 per cent over the previous year. RPKs increased by 11.2
per cent, while ASKs were up 9.2 per cent, resulting in a revenue seat factor of 77.9 per cent, which was

1.4 percentage points higher than the previous year.
Financial Year to Date March 2005

Total Domestic revenue seat factor for the financial year to March 2005 decreased by 0.9 percentage
points to 79.0 per cent when compared with year to date March 2004, while total Domestic yield
excluding exchange decreased by 4.0 per cent over the same period. Total International yield excluding
exchange for the financial year to March increased by 3.6 per cent when compared with the same period
last year. Total International revenue seat factor decreased by 3.2 percentage points to 76.0 per cent
over the same period.

Group passenger numbers for the year to March 2005 increased by 9.4 per cent from the previous year.
RPKs increased by 8.0 per cent, while ASKs increased by 11.5 per cent, resulting in a revenue seat
factor of 76.9 per cent, 2.5 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Recent Developments

On 21 April 2005, Qantas announced it will add a new non-stop Brisbane-Los Angeles service to its
schedule. Effective 18 July 2005 Qantas will operate a total of 11 flights per week between Brisbane and
Los Angeles — four non-stop and seven via Auckland. Qantas also announced a range of changes to
Queensland services including more than 6,600 additional seats and 19 extra return flights per week.
Qantas will also reintroduce three return Boeing 737 services per week between Brisbane and Hamilton
Island from 1 July 2005, in addition to Jetstar's daily A320 services. The revised schedule will allow easy
connections for international visitors arriving in Brisbane from ports such as Los Angeles and Japan.

On 8 April 2005, Qantas announced that it would increase its fuel surcharge because of the continued
escalation in the price of crude oil and jet fuel. The surcharge for Qantas Domestic, QantaslLink and
Domestic New Zealand travel will increase by $8, from $12 to $20 per sector. For trans-Tasman travel
the surcharge will increase by $11, from $29 to $40 per sector. For other international travel on Qantas
and Australian Airlines the surcharge will increase by $31, from $29 to $60 per sector. Jetstar will also
increase its surcharge from $10 to $19 per sector. The surcharges were effective on tickets issued on or

after Wednesday 20 April 2005.

On 8 April 2005, Qantas also szid that based on current fuel prices the Qantas Group will spend
approximately $1 billion more on fuel in 2005/06 compared to the current financial year. The increased
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QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS

March 2005
Month Financial Year to Date
2004/05 2003/04 Change 2004/05 2003/04 Change
Qantas Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1,403 1,534 (8.5)% 12,275 13,417 (8.5)%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 1,890 1,986 (4.8)% 17,094 17,930 (4.7Y%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 2,313 2,508 (7.8)% 21,192 22,233 4.7)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 81.7 79.2 2.5 pts 80.7 80.6 0.1 pts
Qantaslink
Passengers carried (‘000) 265 245 8.3% 2,285 2,264 0.9%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 161 147 5.6% 1,410 1,481 (4.8)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 220 214 2.5% 1,948 2,049 (4.9)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 73.2 68.7 4.5 pts 72.4 72.3 0.1 pts
Jetstar *
Passengers carried ('000) 430 - na 3,207 - na
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 438 - na 3,125 - na
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 603 - na 4,288 - na
\/ Revenue Seat Factor (%) 72.5 - na 72.8 - na
Total Domestic *
Passengers carried (‘'000) 2,077 1,779 16.7% 17,476 15,681 11.4%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 2,467 2,133 15.7% 21,330 19,411 9.9%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 3,105 2,723 14.0% 26,995 24,282 11.2%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 79.5 78.3 1.2 pts 79.0 79.9 (0.9) pts
Qantas International
Passengers carried (‘000) 734 721 1.8% 6,589 6,375 3.4%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {m) 4,760 4,384 8.6% 41,656 39,194 6.3%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 6,116 5,726 6.8% 54,507 48,956 11.3%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 77.8 76.6 1.2 pts 76.4 80.1 (3.7) pts
Australian Airlines
Passengers carried (‘000) 69 58 18.0% 622 509 22.2%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 343 292 17.5% 3,036 2,531 20.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 498 455 8.5% 4,298 3,738 15.0%
) Revenue Seat Factor (%) 68.9 64.2 4.7 pts 70.6 67.7 2.9 pts
Total International
Passengers carried (‘000) 803 779 31% 7,211 6,884 4.8%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 5,104 4,676 9.1% 44,692 41,725 7.1%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 6,614 6,181 7.0% 58,805 52,695 11.6%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 77.2 75.7 1.5 pts 76.0 79.2 (3.2) pts
Total Group Operations
Passengers carried ('000) 2,880 2,558 12.6% 24,687 22,565 9.4%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 7.571 6,809 11.2% 66,022 61,136 8.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) - 9,718 8,904 9.2% 85,800 76,878 11.5%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 77.9 76.5 1.4 pts 76.9 79.4 (2.5) pts
Notes

Any adjustments to preliminary statistics will be included in the year to date results next month. Where figures have been rounded, discrepancies
may occur between the sum of the components of items and the total and in percentage changes which are derived from figures prior to rounding.
The number of passengers carried is calculated on the basis of origin/destination (ie. one origin/destination journey represents one passenger
regardiess of the number of stage lengths undertaken).
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 631
Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE - PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 01/06/2005 NSW 1216
TIME: 13:23:14 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Compény Announcements Office

SURJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

Media Release: Airbus A380 Delay

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open’” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.
pre-open” p P g pany

PLEASE NOTE: ‘

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.



QANTAS

Media Release

AIRBUS A380 DELAY

SYDNEY, 1 June 2005: Qantas today confirmed that the delivery of its first A380 would
be delayed by six months as a result of manufacturing issues at Airbus.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Mr Geoff Dixon, said the airline was now scheduted
to take delivery of the first of its 12 new A380 aircraft in April 2007.

“This is disappointing, given that we have met all of Airbus’ deadlines for Qantas
specifications, however we are developing contingency plans to ensure there is no impact
on our schedules or available capacity during the six month delay.”

Mr Dixon said possible contingencies under discussion included deferring the retirement of
a number of aircraft, redirecting capacity, and bringing forward the delivery of other aircraft

on order.

Mr Dixon said that all airlines with early A380 orders were in the same situation, and that
Airbus had advised that the deliveries would be made in the same sequence with the
same time differentials.

“We will be working closely with Airbus to ensure the new deadline is met,” Mr Dixon said.

He said Qantas would also be seeking compensation from Airbus in line with the terms of
its contract.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3276)
Media Enquiries: Simon Rushton - Telephone 02 9691 3742
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Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street

FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 02/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 10:00:40 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED ‘ DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Preliminary Monthly Traffic & Capacity Statistics April 2005

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcemeunts using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use

is 1900 999 279.



QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
APRIL 2005

Summary of Traffic and Capacity Statistics
Month of April 2005

Total Domestic (Qantas, QantasLink and Jetstar) traffic,c measured in Revenue Passenger
Kilometres (RPKs) increased by 10.8 per cent in April 2005 while capacity, measured in Available
Seat Kilometres (ASKs) increased by 11.5 per cent. This resulted in a revenue seat factor of 80.4
per cent, 0.5 percentage points lower than for April 2004.

Total International (Qantas and Australian Airlines) RPKs increased by 1.2 per cent in April 2005,
while ASKs increased by 2.5 per cent over the same period. The resulting revenue seat factor of
75.2 per cent was 1.0 percentage points lower than the previous year.

April Group (comprising Qantas Domestic, QantasLink, Jetstar, Qantas International and Australian
Airlines) passenger numbers increased by 8.2 per cent over the previous year. RPKs increased by
4.2 per cent, while ASKs were up 5.2 per cent, resulting in 2 revenue seat factor of 76.9 per cent,
which was 0.7 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Financial Year to Date April 2005

Total Domestic revenue seat factor for the financial year to April 2005 decreased by 0.8 percentage
points to 79.2 per cent when compared with year to date April 2004, while total Domestic yield
excluding exchange decreased by 3.4 per cent over the same period. Total International yield
excluding exchange for the financial year to April increased by 4.1 per cent when compared with the
same period last year. Total International revenue seat factor decreased by 3.0 percentage points to
75.9 per cent over the same period.

Group passenger numbers for the year to April 2005 increased by 9.3 per cent from the previous
year. RPKs increased by 7.6 per cent, while ASKs increased by 10.8 per cent, resulting in a revenue
seat factor of 76.9 per cent, 2.3 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Recent Developments

On 1 June 2005, Qantas confirmed that the delivery of its first A380 would be delayed by six
months as a result of manufacturing issues at Airbus. Qantas is now scheduled to take delivery of
the first of its 12 new A380 aircraft in April 2007. Qantas is developing contingency plans to
ensure there is no impact on its schedules or available capacity during the six month delay.
Possible contingencies under discussion include deferring the retirement of a number of aircraft,
redirecting capacity, and bringing forward the delivery of other aircraft on order. Qantas will be
working closely with Airbus to ensure the new deadline is met and will also be seeking
compensation from Airbus in line with the terms of its contract.

On 11 May 2005, Qantas announced an additional 11 domestic flights per week for Western
Australia. From July 2005, Qantas will add five extra Perth-Brisbane services, three additional
Perth-Melbourne flights, a third Perth-Cairns service and a second seasonal Broome-Sydney
service. A second seasonal Perth-Kununurra service operated by QantasLink was added from 18
May 2005. The flights will provide an additional 1,700 seats in each direction each week.

On 29 April 2005, the Qantas Group anncunced that it would move to all-inclusive pricing for its
airfare and nackaae holiday advertising in Australia from 11 May 2005. Qantas made the decision




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS

APRIL 2005
Month Financial Year to Date

2004/05 2003/04 Change 2004/05 2003704 Change
Qantas Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1,349 1,631 (11.9)% 13,624 14,948 (8.9)%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 1,876 2,057 (8.8)% 18,870 19,987 (5.1}%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 2,275 2,525 (9.9)% 23,468 24,758 (5.2)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 82.5 81.5 1.0 pts 80.8 80.7 0.1 pts
Qantaslink
Passengers carried ('000) 261 251 3.8% 2,545 2,518 1.2%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 160 156 3.0% 1,570 1,636 (4.1)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 213 210 1.7% 2,162 2,259 (4.3)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 74.8 73.8 1.0 pts 72.6 72.4 0.2 pts
Jetstar *
Passengers carried (‘000) 418 - na 3,625 - na
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 433 - na 3,558 - na
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 585 - na 4,873 - na
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 74.0 - na 73.0 - na
Total Domestic *
Passengers carried (‘'000) 2,012 1,782 12.9% 19,488 17,463 11.6%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 2,452 2,212 10.8% 23,782 21,623 10.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 3,048 2,735 11.5% 30,043 27,017 11.2%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 80.4 80.9 (0.5) pts 79.2 80.0 {0.8) pis
Qantas International
Passengers carried ('000) 703 721 (2.5)% 7,294 7,096 2.8%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 4,478 4,403 1.7% 46,134 43,597 5.8%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 5,876 5,737 2.4% 60,383 54,693 10.4%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 76.2 76.7 (0.5) pts 76.4 79.7 (3.3) pts
Australian Airlines
Passengers carried ("000) 63 64 (1.6)% 685 573 19.5%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 294 315 (6.6)% 3,330 2,846 17.0%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 471 456 3.3% 4,769 4,185 13.7%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 62.5 69.0 (6.5) pts 69.8 67.8 2.0 pts
Total International
Passengers carried ('000) 766 785 (2.4)% 7,979 7,669 4.0%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 4,772 4,718 1.2% 49,464 46,443 6.5%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 6,347 6,194 2.5% 65,152 58,888 10.6%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 75.2 76.2 (1.0) pts 75.9 78.9 (3.0) pts
Total Group Operations
Passengers carried ('000) 2,778 2,567 8.2% 27,467 25,132 9.3%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 7,224 6,930 4.2% 73,246 68,066 7.6%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 9,395 8,928 52% 95,195 85,908 10.8%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 76.9 77.6 (0.7) pts 76.9 79.2 (2.3) pis

Notes
Any adjustments to preliminary statistics will be included in the year to date results next month. Where figures have been rounded, discrepancies

may occur between the sum of the components of items and the total and in percentage changes which are derived from figures prior to rounding.

The number of passengers carried is calculated on the basis of origin/destination (ie. one origin/destination journey represents one passenger
regardless of the number of stage lengths underiaken).

~—
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCTHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 006 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 15/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 18:39:23 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Media Release: Qantas Welcomes Government Decision

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




QANTAS

Media Release

QANTAS WELCOMES GOVERNMENT DECISION

SYDNEY, 15 June 2005: Qantas today welcomed the announcement by the Federal
Government to defer a decision on opening access to Singapore Airlines on the trans-

Pacific route.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Mr Geoff Dixon, said that it was ludicrous for
Singapore Airlines to suggest that this was one of the most protected air routes.

“The fact is that today, Qantas, Virgin Blue, Air New Zealand, United Airlines and any othar
United States carrier that chooses to can operate between Australia and the United States.

“Many carriers, including Continental, Northwest and American Airlines, have operated on
the Pacific, but abandoned it after losing tens of millions of dollars,” Mr Dixon said.

He said Qantas had been talking to the Government about a range of issues distorting
international competition and the need for the industry to restructure.

‘It is pleasing to see that the Australian Government plans to discuss a wider range of
policy issues on an industry basis with Qantas, Virgin Blue and other carriers,” Mr Dixon
said.

“Qantas is ane of the least protected airlines in the world — it has maintained profitability
and had relative success while competing against a multitude of subsidised and
government-owned airlines,” Mr Dixon said.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3284)
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000

Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

POBox H224
Australia Square
DATE: 22/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 10:06:03 . Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
)
' FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Corrects Media Report

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX's trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




Media Release

QANTAS CORRECTS MEDIA REPORT

SYDNEY, 22 June 2005: Qantas said that an atticle in today’s Sydney Morning Herald
newspaper saying that Qantas “could issue a profit downgrade as early as Friday” was

incorrect.

The Chief Executive Officer of Qantas, Mr Geoff Dixon, said Qantas would meet the
current market expectations for the 04/05 Financial Year.

Mr Dixon said the Chief Financial Officer of Qantas, Mr Peter Gregg, wouid make an
announcement and hold an analyst briefing at the ASX on Friday to detail accounting
changes to be made by Qantas’ required adoption of Australian equivalents fo the
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

{ssued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3287)
Media Enquiries: Belinda de Rome - Telephone 02 8691 3762
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCIHANGE
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 24/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 08:34:32 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet http/Avww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
) FAX NO: 02-9691-33395
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

Moves to A-IFRS

1f ASX considers ap announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open™ is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE: .
In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using

ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.
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Media Release

QANTAS MOVES TO A-IFRS

SYDNEY, 24 June 2005: Qantas said today it would adopt Australian Equivalents fo
International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS) from 1 July 2005 as required by
Corporations Law.

The financial report for the half-year to 31 December 2005 will be the airline’s first report
under the new standards.

Comparative financial information will be presented applying A-IFRS for transition
adjustments to the opening balance sheet at 1 July 2004 and to restate 2004/05
comparative earnings. This will not include the impact of AASB 138 “Financial
Instruments” as this is not required at this stage.

The Chief Financial Officer of Qantas, Mr Peter Gregg, said that A-IFRS would not affect
cash flows, credit ratings, dividend policy or the economic management of the airline and
that Qantas did not expect any significant impact on future earnings.

“First-time adoption of A-IFRS results in a reduction in retained earnings of $828 millicn
and therefore an increase in gearing ratios. Despite this, we do not anticipate any change
to Qantas’ capital management policies or profitability.

“The most significant adoption adjustments will include the deferred recognition of frequent
flyer revenue, recognition of a funding deficit for the defined benefit portion of the Qantas
Superannuation Plan and the reclassification of some non-canceliable aircraft operating
leases as finance leases,” he said.

Mr Gregg emphasised that the changes resulted from mandated changes in accounting
standards which had no affect on cash flows and therefore no affect on the economic
vaiue of the company.

He said Qantas would provide additional information as required to explain the impacts of
A-IFRS on reported financial information in future periods.

"As many of the international standards introduce new accounting concepts, we expect
that interpretation of the standards will continue to evolve for some time to come.”

Details of material changes in accounting policies and estimates of resulting adoption
adjustments are provided in the aftached presentation.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3288)
Media Enquiries: Belinda de Rome - Telephone 02 9691 3762



Transition to
International Financial Reporting Standards

Presentation to Investors

24 June 2005

Peter Gregg
Chief Financial Officer

Colin Storrie

Deputy Chief Financial Officer kQA NTAS

Important Notice

« The figures presented are best estimates and may change

The first financial report prepared in accordance with A-IFRS may differ
from the information presented here

+ All amounts provided are preliminary and unaudited

All prospective statements are best estimates and should not be relied
upon

+ Qantas cannot provide any further estimates of the future impact of
adopting A-IFRS at this time

+ Qantas Investor Relations will be available to discuss the information
included in this Presentation

B.oanras
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Background

+  A-IFRS will apply to Qantas from 1 July 2005

+  A-IFRS compliant financial reports will be produced for the:
- half—yeér ended 31 December 2005; and
— full year ended 30 June 2006

« The 2005 Financial Report will be prepared according to AGAAP, with
Note disclosure providing information on the material impacts of A-IFRS

&
B
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Key Messages
+  A-IFRS will not affect underlying business cash flow
«  A-IFRS will have no impact on Qantas’ strategy or operations
— operational and financing decisions will continue to be based on
economic principles
— credit ratings not affected
— capital management policy unchanged
— profitability not impacted
7
.
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Preliminary
Financial Impact

A-IFRS Transition Adjustments

1 July 2004 Movement | 30 June 2005

Resulting from the Adoption of A-IFRS $m (unaudited) $m {estimate) $m {estimate}
impact on Retained Profits
AASE 118 Revenue (669} (80} (748)
AASB 119 Empioyee Benefits (54) 35 (19)
AASB 117 Leases (52) (10) (62)
AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment 24 - 21
AASB 112 income Taxes 47) 2 (45)
Net Other Transition Adjustments {1) 28 28
(802) {24) {826)
.
.
boanras
Project Plan
Assessment Phase
» High level overview of A-IFRS impacis
+ Phase completed
Design Phase
+  Formulation of A-IFRS accounting policies and transition adjustments
+ Material aspects of the Phase completed
Implementation Phase
» Implement changes to accounting and business procedures I
3

+ Phase in progress
B.oanrTas




A-IFRS Accounting
Policy Changes

The following A-IFRS changes will be discussed
+ AASB 118 Revenue

+ AASB 118 Employee Benefits

+ AASB 117 Leases

+ AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment

+ AASB 112 Income Taxes

+  AASB 138 Financial Instruments

P
7
?rﬂ
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AASB 118 -
Revenue
Unavailed Revenue - Frequent Flyer
Requirements of AASB 118 Revenue
» Requires each element of multiple element transactions to be
recognised separately
+ Prescribes four criteria which must be satisfied to recognise revenue
Differences to the current Revenue Standard
+  A-IFRS does not have a “control” criteria
+ Requires a transaction to be considered in its component paris 4
fa;:
ol
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AASB 118 —-
Revenue

Unavailed Revenue - Frequent Flyer

+  Qantas receives revenue from the sale of rights over Frequent Flyer
points

~ Under AGAAP, this revenue is recognised when received

~ Under A-IFRS, this revenue is reguired to be deferred and
recognised when the points are redeemed

+ Deferring “sold point” revenue is expected to become industry standard

»  No change to the accounting for points accumulated from flights

=
%’gm

b oanvras

AASB 118 —
Revenue

Unavailed Revenue - Frequent Flyer
+ Adopting A-IFRS results in a decrease to Retained Profits of $669m

+ The arithmetic impact on 2004/05 Retained Profits is estimated as
reduction of $80m post tax

«  This does not however reflect how Qantas could respond in future
periods to mitigate the impact

»  The impact on future earnings is dependent on program growth and
point redempticn

+  No expecied impact on future profit

hoanvTas




AASB 119 -
Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Superannuation Plan

+  Uses the long-term Government Bond Rate to discount lizbilities
+ Reaquires recognition of the funding deficit as a liability

+ No change to the cash contribution rate

* No change to the Qantas Superannuation Pian’s liquidity

+ Qantas has elected to use the "corridor” method

+ Estimated adoption impact is a $54m reduction to Retained Profits

»  Movements outside the corridor will be amortised over a 13 year period ¥

+ Impact on future earnings is dependent on economic variables
Booanras

AASB 117 -
Leases

Lease Classification

+ Applies a less prescriptive criteria to lease classification

 Six aircraft leases to be reclassified as finance leases

+  Will increase leased assets by $338m and lease liabilities by $405m
+  Straight line recognition of some non-aircraft lease costs

+ Estimated impact of adoption is a $52m reduction to retained profits

+ No material impact on future earnings

B oanTas




AASB 116 —
Property Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment (PP&E)
+ Deemed cost election for land and building
« Full retrospective application for all other PP&E assets:
~ Capitalising major inspections as a separate PP&E component
~ Capitalising restoration costs into the cost of the asset
~ Reclassifying software development costs as intangible assets
+ Estimated impact of adoption is 2 net $21m increase in retained profits

»  No material impact on future eamings

b.oavras
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AASB 112 —~
Income Taxes

Balance Sheef Method
«  Movement from the “Income Statement” to the “Balance Sheet” Method

+ Requires recognition of additional Deferred Tax Liabilities

+ Transition requires the tax benefit of share based payments to be
reclassified from Retained Profits to Contributed Capital

+ Estimated adoption impact is a $47m reduction to Retained Profits -

» No material impact on future earnings

b.oanras




Other A-IFRS
Accounting Standards

AASB 2 - Share Based Payments

+ Elected the exemption for options issued prior to 7 November 2002
AASB 3 - Business Combinations

+ Elected under AASB 1 to apply this standard proépectively

AASB 121 - Foreign Exchange

» Elected to reset the foreigh currency transiation reserve

5
1\’5
54
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Other A-IFRS
Accounting Standards
AASB 123 - Borrowing Costs
+ No change to capitalising qualifying borrowing costs
AASB 127 - Consolidations
»  The Qantas Deferred Share Plan Trust will require consolidation
AASB 136 - Impairment of Assets
+ No adjustment on transition
1:/):51
¥
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AASE 139 -
Financial Instruments

Risk Management

.

.

b.aanvras

AASB 139 provides criteria that must be met to apply hedge accounting
Underlying exposures must be shown to be “highly probable”

Hedge effectiveness is only recognised where changes in fair value of
the hedged item are offset by changes in the hedge instrument in the
range of 80% to 125%

Hedge effectiveness must be demonstrated at inception and throughout
the life of each hedge

Any ineffectiveness is to be recognised immediately in the P&L

17
Each hedge relationship must be supported by detailed documentation £

AASB 139 -
Financial Instruments

Options

B.oanras

Only the “intrinsic” value of an option to be designated as a hedging
instrument

Changes in the fair value of non-intrinsic components of the option
price are to be reflected in the P&L




AASB 139 -
Financial Instruments

Aviation Fuel

- Qantas uses various fuel index derivatives to hedge its jet fuel price risk
— for example, WTI Crude Oil may be used as a hedging instrument

+ AASB 139 does not permit component hedging of commodity risks

- Hedge effectiveness requires movements in the jet fuel price to
correlate with movements in the derivative within the 80% to 125%
band

+ (antas has developed a methodology to test hedge effectiveness for
fuel

bk oanras

Conclusion

The introduction of A-IFRS:

+ excluding financial instruments, will reduce Retained Profits by an
estimated $826m by 30 June 2005

« will not affect underlying business cash flow
« will have no impact on Qantas’ strategy or operations

- will have no impact on Qantas’ capital management strategy or credit
ratings

+ no material impact on future earnings

b.oanras
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Re
Media Release

QANTAS TO FLY TO BEIJING

SYDNEY, 29 June 2005: Qantas today announced it would begin flying between Sydney and
Beijing from 9 January 2006.

Qantas Executive General Manager John Borghetti said Qantas would initially operate three
weekly services to Beijing and expected to offer daily flights to both Beijing and Shanghai
within two years.

“We are delighted to return to Beljing, one of the world’s great cities and host to the 2008
Olympic Games,” Mr Borghetti said.

“Beijing will be an important destination for the Qantas network and these three weekly
services, coupled with the start of a fourth Sydney-Shanghai service in November, will
provide our customers with daily non-stop flights to China,” he said.

“Travel between China and Australia has increased more than 40 per cent in the past three
years and is expected to grow a further 20 per cent in the next 12 months.

“Within two years we expect to offer daily Qantas flights to both Beijing and Shanghai in
response to the growing trade relationship between Australia and China and increasing
demand for leisure travel in both directions.

“In addition, the Qantas Group currently operates 31 flights each week to Hong Kong,” Mr
Borghetti said. “This means Qantas passengers can access the rest of China via Beijing,

) Shanghai and Hong Kong and make connections with local carriers.”

Qantas will continue to codeshare on China Eastern services between Sydney and Shanghai
to provide a daily link for Qantas customers.

Mr Borghetti said Qantas’ new two-class Airbus A330-300 aircraft would operate on all flights
to China, allowing Business Class customers to experience the award-winning Skybed.

The new Beijing services are timed to suit customers connecting to and from Australian cities
and New Zealand.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3289)
Media Enquiries: Juliet Ryalls « Telephone + 612 9691 3013

Qantas Airways Limited ABN 16 009 661 901
Further information and media rcleases can be found at the Qantas internet website: www.qanias.com
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK DXCHANGL

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
' Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street

FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box Ho24

Australia Square
DATE: 30/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 16:15:56 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Internet hitp /fiwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

information or documents not available now must be given fo ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

introduced 30/9/2004.

Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under fisting rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Geoffrey James Dixon

Date of last notice 6 April 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
in the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the frust

Note: In the case of 2 company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest and Indirect interest
Nature of indirect interest Interest in Qantas Deferred Share Plan Trust.
{inciuding registered holder) Trustee is ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited.

Note: Provide details of the circumslances giving rise to
the relevant interest.

Date of change 30 June 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 332,474 Direct interest

482,500 Indirect Interest

Class Ordinary Shares

Number acquired (a)  NJA (Transfer of 62,500 shares from Trustee
to Geoff Dixon upon expiry of Holding Lock
Period}

(b) Indirect Interest in 150,000 Crdinary Shares

Number disposed N/A
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

No. and class of securities te which

interest related prior to change
Note: Delails are only required for a confract in relation fo
which the interest has changed

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

27,777 Rights which may vest on 31 December
2005.

125,000 Rights which may vest on 30 June 2006.
Qantas Long-Term Executive Incentive Plan
1,738,623 Vested Entitlements.

244,995 Entitlements which may vest as at 30 June
2005.

Vested Ernfittements do nat convert to Crdinary
Shares on a one-for-one basis.

Interest acquired

450,000 Rights under the Qantas Deferred Share
Plan which may vest from 30 June 2007.

Interest disposed

N/A

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
esfimated valuation

N/A

Interest after change

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

27,777 Rights which may vest on 31 December
2005. :

125,000 Rights which may vest on 30 June 2006.
450,000 Rights which may vest from 30 June 2007.

Qantas Long-Term Executive Incentive Plan

1,738,693 Vested Entitlements.

244,995 Enlitlements which may vest as at 30 June
2005.

Vested Entitlements do not convert 1o Ordinary
Shares on a one-for-one basis.

Geoffrey Jemes Dixon

Appendix 3Y Page 3
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Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 30/06/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 16:17:40 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
) FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s Securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279,




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’'s Interest Notice

Rufe 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

information or documenis not available now must be given fo ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made pubfic.

introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity} give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Peter Allan Gregg

Date of last hotice 19 November 2004

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a rust, this includes interests in the lrust made aveailabie by the responsible enlity of the trust

Note: In the case of a8 company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director”
should be disciosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest _ Direct Interest and Indirect Interest
Nature of indirect interest interest in Qantas Deferred Share Pian Trust
{including registered holder) Trustee is ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited.

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise fo
the relevant interest.

Date of change 30 June 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 66,730 Direct Interest

120,000 Indirect Interest

Ciass Ordinary Shares

Number acquired (a)  N/A (Transfer of 40,000 shares from Trustee
16 Peter Gregg upon expiry of Hoiding Lock
Period)

{b} Indirect Interest in 90,000 Ordinary Shares

Number disposed N/A




Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only reguired for a contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

80,000 Rights which may vest on 30 June 2006.
16,666 Rights which may vest on 20 August 2008.
Qantas'Long-Term Executive Incentive Plan
705,603 Vested Entitlements,

122,497 Enlitlements which may vest as at 30 June
2005.

Vested Entitlements do not convert to Ordinary
Shares on a one-for-one basis.

Interest acquired

90,000 Rights under the Qantas Deferred Share
Ptan which may ves! from 30 June 2007.

Interest disposed

N/A

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

N/A

Interest after change

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

80,000 Rights which may vest on 30 June 2006.
16,666 Rights which may vest on 20 August 20086.
90,000 Rights which may vest from 30 June 2007.

Qantas L ong-Term Executive incentive Plan

705,603 Vestied Entitlements.

122 497 Enlitlements which may vest as a2t 30 June
2005.

Vested Entitlements do not convert to Ordinary
Shares on a one-for-one basis.
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Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691
Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Strest
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE 00 Box Hoot
Australia Square
DATE: 06/07/2005 ‘ NSW 1215
TIME: 09:26:58 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
-FAX NO: 02-5691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Anncuncements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Peter Cosgrove joins Qantas Board

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279,
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QANTAS

Media Release

PETER COSGROVE JOINS QANTAS BOARD

SYDNEY, 6 July 2005: The Chairman of Qantas, Margaret Jackson, today announced the
appointment of General Peter Cosgrove AC MC as a Non-Executive Director of the Board
of Qantas Airways Limited.

General Cosgrove will fill a casual vacancy on the Qantas Board, taking up the position
from today.

“t am very pleased to welcome Peter, one of Australia’s most respected individuals, to the
Board. The intelligence and leadership he has displayed during his distinguished military
career will be invaluable,” Ms Jackson said.

General Cosgrove was the Chief of the Australian Defence Force fram 3 July 2002 until his
retirement this month.

He has served in the Australian Army in a variety of roles in Australia and overseas since
entering the Royal Military College of Duntroon in 1565,

One of his greatest achievements was his command of the international forces in East
Timor from 1989 until the force was withdrawn in February 2000, for which General
Cosgrove was appointed a Companion of the Military Division of the Order of Australia.

He was awarded the Military Cross for his service in Vietnam early in his career, and has
received several foreign awards including the Companion of the New Zealand Order of
Merit (CNZM) and Commander of the United States Legion of Merit.

General Cosgrove was Australian of the Year in 2001.

lssued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3291)
Medija Enquiries: Belinda de Rome - Telephone 02 9691 3762
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCIHIANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000

Departmment: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE

PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 06/07/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 10:49:00 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/Mwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

May Traffic Statistics

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 miputes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279.




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 069 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS
MAY 2005

Summary of Traffic and Capacity Statistics

NMonth of May 2005

Total Domestic (Qantas, QantasLink and Jelstar) traffic, measured in Revenue Passenger
Kilometres {RPKs) increased by 8.0 per cent in May 2005, while capacity, measured in Avzilable
Seat Kilometres (ASKs), increased by 7.7 per cent. This resulted in a revenue seat factor of 74.3 per
cent, 0.2 percentage points higher than for May 2004.

Total International {Qantas and Australian Airlines) RPKs increased by 1.8 per cent in May 2005,
while ASKs decreased by 0.7 per cent over the same period. The resulting revenue seat factor of
69.5 per cent was 1.7 percentage points higher than the previous year.

May Group {comprising Qantas Domestic, Qantaslink, Jetstar, Qantas International and Australian
Airlines) passenger numbers increased by 5.8 per cent over the previous year. RPKs increased by
3.8 per cent, while ASKs were up 1.9 per cent, resulting in a revenue seat factor of 71.1 per cent,
which was 1.3 percentage points higher than the previous year.

Financial Year to Date May 2005

Total Domestic revenue seat factor for the financial year to May 2005 decreased by 0.8 percentage
points to 78.7 per cent when compared with year to date May 2004, while total Domestic yield
excluding exchange decreased by 2.8 per cent over the same period. Total Internations! yield
excluding exchange for the financial year to May increased by 4.4 per cent when compared with the
same period last year. Total International revenue seat factor decreased by 2.4 percentage points to
75.4 per cent over the same period.

Group passenger numbers for the year to May 2005 increased by 9.0 per cent from the previous
year. RPKs increased by 7.3 per cent, while ASKs increased by 9.9 per cent, resulting in a revenue
seat factor of 76.4 per cent, 1.9 percentage points lower than the previous year.

Recent Developments

On 29 June 2005, Qantas anncunced it would begin flying between Sydney and Beijing from 9
January 2006. Qantas said it would initially operate three weekly services to Beijing and expected to
offer daily flights to both Beijing and Shanghai within two years. Beijing will be an important
destination for the Qantas network and these three weekly services, coupled with the start of a fourth
Sydney-Shanghai service in November, will provide customers with daily non-stop flights to China.
Qantas' new two-class Airbus A330-300 aircraft would operate on all flights to China, allowing
Business Class customers to experience the award-winning Skybed.

On 24 June 2005, Qantas said it would adept Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards {(A-IFRS) from 1 July 2005. The financial report for the half-year to 31
December 2005 will be the airline’s first repcrt under the new standards. Comparative financial
information will be presented applying A-IFRS for transition adjustments to the opening balance
sheet at 1 July 2004 and to restate 2004/05 comparative earnings. This will not include the impact of
AASB 138 "Financial Instruments™ as this is not required at this stage. Qantas said that A-IFRS
would not affect cash flows, credit ratings, dividend policy or the economic management of the airline
and that Qantas did not expect any significant impact on future earnings.

On 15 June 2005, Qantas welcomed the announcement by the Federal Government to defer a
decision on granting Singapore Airlines access 1o the trans-Pacific route. Qantas said it was




QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

PRELIMINARY MONTHLY TRAFFIC AND CAPACITY STATISTICS

MAY 20056
Month Financial Year to Date

2004/05 2003/04 Change 2004/056 2003/04 Change
Qantas Domestic "
Passengers carried ('000) 1,281 1,468 (12.6)% 14,904 16,414 (9.2)%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {m} 1,767 1,041 (8.0)% 20,737 21,929 (5.4)%
Available Seat Kilometres {m) 2,332 2,592 (10.0)% 25,800 27,350 {5.7)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 75.8 74.9 0.9 pts 80.4 80.2 0.2 pts
Qantaslink
Passengers carried {'000) 258 241 7.0% 2,803 2,756 1.7%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 158 148 5.2% 1,725 1,784 (3.3)%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 220 220 {0.2)% 2,381 2,479 (4.0)%
Revenue Seat Factor (%} 70.9 87.3 3.8 pis 725 72.0 0.5 pts
Jetstar * #
Passengers carried ('000) 380 53 na 4,005 53 na
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {m) 381 45 na 3,949 45 na
Avzilable Seat Kilometres {m) £67 €5 na §,440 85 na
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 88.9 68.6 na 72,6 68.6 na
Total Domestic *
Passengers carried ('000) 1.805 1,751 8.8% 21,383 18,214 11.3%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 2,297 2,127 8.0% 28,079 23,750 8.8%
Available Seeat Kilometres (m)} 3,080 2.87C 7.79% 33,154 29,887 10.8%
Revenue Seat Factor (%} 74.3 74.1 0.2 pts 78.7 78.5 {0.8) pts
Qantas International '
Passengers carried ('000) 627 638 {(1.7)% 7,925 7,734 2.5%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {m) 4,131 4.025 2.6% 50,265 47,622 5.5%
Available Seat Kilemetres (m) 5911 5,810 0.0% 66,294 60,603 9.4%
Revenue Seat Facter (%) 59.9 66.1 1.8 pis 75.8 78.8 (2.8} pis
Australian Airlines
Passengers carried {'000) 61 62 {1.6)% 748 635 17.5%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {m) 281 310 {9.4)% 3,611 3,155 14.4%
Available Seat Kilometres {m} 435 484 (10.0}% 5,204 4,679 11.2%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 64.6 84.1 0.5 pts 69.4 67.4 2.0 pis
Total International
Passengers carried {'000}) 638 700 {(1.7)% 8,671 8,369 3.6%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres (m) 4412 4.335 1.8% 53,876 50,778 8.1%
Available Seat Kilometres (m} 8.348 6,393 {8.7}% 71,498 65,282 9.5%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 69.5 67.8 1.7 pis 75.4 77.8 (2.4) pis
Total Group Operations
Passengers carried ('000) 2,593 2,451 5.8% 30,084 27,583 9.0%
Revenue Passenger Kilometres {(m) 8,709 6,462 3.8% 79,955 74,528 7.3%
Available Seat Kilometres (m) 9,437 9.263 1.9% 104,832 85,169 9.9%
Revenue Seat Factor (%) 71.1 £69.8 1.3 pis 76.4 78.3 (1.9) pis

Notes

Any adjustments 1o preliminary statistics will be intluded in the year 1o date results next monih. Where figures have been rounded, discrepancies
mazy occur between the sum of the components of items and the total and in percentage changes which are derived from figures prior to reunding.
The number of passengers carried is calculated on the basis of origin/destination (ie. one origin/destinalion journey represents one passenger
regardless of the number of stage lengihs undertaken).
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCIANGC

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre

Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224

Australia Square
DATE: 06/07/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 17:21:22 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Intemet hitp:/fwww.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBIJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Initial Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279,




Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.19A.1

Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as svailable. Information and
documents. given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

introducet 30/3/2001.
Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
BN 16 009 661 901

We (lhe entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Peter Cosgrove

Date of appointment 6 July 2005

Part 1 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is the registered holder
In the ¢ase of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the frust

Note: in the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Number & class of securities

Nil.

Part 2 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the registered
holder

in the case of a lrusi, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the irust

Name of holder & nature of | Number & ciass of Securities

interest
Note: Provide details of the circumstances | Nil,
giving rise to the relevant interest.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.



Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Part 3 — Director’s interests in contracts

Note: in the case of 3 company, inferests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director®

should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

N/A.

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

No. and class of securities to
which interest relates

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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ASX

AUSTRALIAN STOCK CXCHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 631

Exchange Centre
Level 4, 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 15/07/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 17:51:30 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
Internet hitp:/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
) FAX NO: 02-9691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:
We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding;

Change of Director's Interest Notice

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-cpen”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most
announcements but can be 50 minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use
is 1900 999 279,



Appendix 3Y
Change of Director's Interest Notice

Rule 3.19A.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given 1o ASX as soon as available. information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/6/2001.
Name of entity QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ABN 16 009 661 901

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.18A.2 and as ageni for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act,

Name of Director Peter Allan Gregg

Date of last notice 30 June 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a lrust, this includes inlerests in the trust made available by the responsibie enlity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of 2 directos”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest

Nature of indirect interest N/A

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise fo
the relevant inferest.

Date of change 11 July 2005

No. of securities held prior to change 106,730 Direct interest

240,000 Indirect Interest

Class Ordinary Shares

Number acquired ‘ N/A (Transfer of 45,000 shares from the Trustee,
being ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited, to Pefer
Gregg upon expiry of Holding Lock Period)

Number disposed N/A

Value/Consideration N/A - there is no value/consideration for ihe
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide deteils and | fransfer of the 45,000 shares.
esfimated valuation




ASX.Online@asx.com, To: bretijohnson@aqantas.com.au, janinesmith @qgantas.com.au
au cc:

Subject: QAN - ASX Online e-Lodgement - Conlfirmation of Release
15/07/2005 05:51 PM

ASX confirms the release to the market of Doc ID: 244411 as follows:
Release Time: 15-Jul-2005 17:51:22

ASX Code: QAN

File Name: 244411.pdf

Your Announcement Title: Change of Directors Interest Notice

244411 .pdt




— Legal

QANTAS

Media Release

QANTAS FLIGHTS OPERATING AS NORMAL

SYDNEY, 8 July 2005: Qantas has announced that all of its flights are operating as normal
following yesterday’s terrorist attacks in London.

Qantas Executive General Manager John Borghetti said four Qantas services had departed
from London’s Heathrow Airport since the attacks, with the first flight due to arrive in Perth
: */\,this afternoon and the second in Sydney this evening.

“Our services have not been disrupted and customers wishing to book flights to and from the
UK can do so through the normal channels,” Mr Borghetti said. :

He said that Qantas had instituted a waiver and refund policy.

Customers with tickets issued before or on 7 July 2005, for travel to and from the UK up to
and including 31 July 2005, can defer or cancel travel without penaity.

Customers wishing to change their plans should call Qantas on 13 13 13 or their travel agent
for assistance as soon as possible.

Qantas operates 27 flights a week from Australia to London.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3293)
Media Enquiries: Juliet Ryalls - Telephone + 02 9691 3013

Qantas Airways Limited 4BN 16 009 661 901
Further information and media re¢leases can be found at the Qantas internet website: www.qantas.com
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AUSTRALIAN STOCK [XCIHANGE

Australian Stock Exchange Limited
ABN 98 008 624 691

Exchange Centre
Level 4 , 20 Bridge Street
FACSIMILE Sydney NSW 2000
Department: COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENTS OFFICE PO Box H224
Australia Square
DATE: 12/07/2005 NSW 1215
TIME: 18:19:28 Telephone 61 2 9227 0334
intemnet hitp/www.asx.com.au
TO: QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney
) FAX NO: 02-5691-3339
FROM: AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED - Company Announcements Office

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT AND RELEASE OF ANNOUNCEMENT

MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an announcement regarding:

Level of Foreign Relevant Interest in Qantas Shares

If ASX considers an announcement to be sensitive, trading will be halted for 10 minutes.

If your announcement is classified by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into “pre-open”
status on ASX’s trading system. This means that trading in your company’s securities is temporarily stopped, to
allow the market time to assess the contents of your announcement. “Pre-open” is approx. 10 minutes for most

announcements but can be SO minutes (approx) for takeover announcements.

Once “pre-open” period is completed, full trading of the company’s securities recommences.

PLEASE NOTE:

In accordance with Guidance Note 14 of ASX Listing Rules, it is mandatory to elodge announcements using
ASX Online. Fax is available for emergency purposes and costs A$38.50 (incl. GST). The only fax number to use

is 1900 999 279.




ASX.Online@asx.com. To: brettjohnson@gantas.com.au, janinesmith @ gantas.com.au
au cc:

Subject: QAN - ASX Online e-Lodgement - Confirmation of Release
12/07/2005 06:19 PM

ASX confirms the release to the market of Doc ID: 243626 as follows:
Release Time: 12-Jul-2005 18:19:189

ASX Code: QAN

File Name: 243626 .pdf

Your Announcement Title: Level of Foreign Relevant Interest in Qantas
Shares

243626.pdf



. General Counsel
Brett Johnson

QANYAS

12 July 2005

Companies Announcement Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited
20 Bridge Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir

Update on the Level of Foreign Relevant interest in Qantas Shares

Under the Qantas Constilution, the maximum zggregeate level of relevant interest that foreign
persons are permitted to hold in Qantas is 42%.

On 12 October 2004, Qanlas advised the market that foreign persons had a relevant interest in
approximately 38.15% of the Qantas issued share capital,

Listing Rule 3.19.3 requires that Qantas advise the market when the level of foreign relevant interest
rises above 44%.

Based on the most recent reconciliation, Qanlas advises the market that recent foreign purchases
have resulted in foreign persons having a relevant interest in approximately 45.96% of Qantas
shares.

Notification Obligations

Qantas reminds the market that, under its Conslitution, foreign purchasers are required 1o notify
Qantas, within 10 days of becoming registered, of their acquisition of a relevant interest in Qantas
shares. Foreign Ownership Nolifications are available from the Qantas Share Registry on
{02) 8280 7390.

it is the order of receipt of complete Foreign Ownership Notifications which determines the priority for
eniry, upon reconciliation 1o a registered shareholding, to the Qantas Foreign Sub-Register.

Qantas investigates foreign share purchases and, upon reconciliation of the relevant Foreign
Ownership Notifications to & regislered shareholding, enters the purchases on the Qantas Foreign
Sub-Register. Should the level of foreign ownership on the Qantas Foreign Sub-Register exceed
48%, the Qantas Constitution contains provisions to notify those foreign shareholders. Should such
a Notice be reguired to be sent, it resulls in the registered holder of the offending shares not being
entitled 1o vote the shares at 2 meeting of shareholders and it may lead to the disposat of those
shares.

Yours faithfully

%’\

Breit Johnson
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A

Media Release

QANTAS DEFENCE SERVICES ESTABLISHES
NEW BUSINESS FACILITY AT CANBERRA

CANBERRA 15 July 2005: Qantas Defence Services today announced the establishment of a new
facility at Canberra international Airport for the maintenance of military and civil aircraft.

Head of Qantas Defence Services Mike Caldwell, who signed the agreement this morning with the
Minister for Economic Development Ted Quinian, said that the new base was a positive addition to
\Ihe QDS portfolio.

“The Canberra base gives us the capability to undertake programs of varying size and oomp!exuty at
our own facility,” Mr Caldwell said. S

“Qantas Defence Services already operates in the Canberra region and we find there is a good
aircraft skills base here. .

“This gives us the opportunity to further develop training and education to enhance local industry -
skills.”

Mr Caldwell also noted that the presence of a number of specialist Aerospace companies in
Canberra allowed a ready access to engage in teaming for aircraft integration programs. He said
QDS locked forward to working with other Canberra-based companies as part of the long-term
development of the QDS Canberra facility.

Qantas Airways will also commence a marketing campaign worth $1.75m, in conjunction with the
Department of Economic Development, promoting Canberra as a tourist destination.

Background — About QDS

Qantas Defence Services (QDS) provides aviation maintenance services to the Australian Defence
Force, including support and maintenance of the Australian Government’s Special Purpose Aircraft
fleet, maintenance of the RAAF's Hercules and support for ADF fighter and helicopter fleets, QDS,
anticipates supporting EADS CASA (an Airbus-related company) in the program for five Airbus A330
tanker aircraft for the RAAF.

QDS has facilities at Mascot, NSW; Richmond NSW; Fairbairn NSW; Villawood NSW and Amberley,
QLD. The addition of the Canberra NSW facility adds to the QDS capability to support the Australian
Defence Force and other military and civil aircraft.

Issued by Qantas Corporate Communication (Q3296)
Media Enquiries: Juliet Ryalls - Telephone + 612 9691 3013

Qantas Airways Limited ABN 16 009 661 901
Further information and media releases can be found at the Qantas internet website: www.qgantas.com
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Assistant Cofrii@nfy Secretary

Janiﬁé%mifﬁf;‘

24 January 2005 RTINS .

Ausiralian Securities & Investments Commission
Level 18

No 1 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir
Qantas Deferred Share Plan

In accordance with Class Order 03/184, please find attached the documentation provided from 24
January 2005 to approximately 900 participanis in relation to the allocation of performance
shares under the Deferred Share Plan — 2004 Performance Share Plan (Plan).

Participants will be provided with a package which contains the following documents:

Holding Stalement;

Executive Performance Plan — General Information Booklet;
Terms & Conditions of the Plan;

Rules of the Plan; and

Qeantas deferred Share Plan Trust Deed.

A

Please note that for administrative purposes there were three different dates of allocation (18
August, 20 August and 17 December 2004). A proforma holding statement for each allocation is

enclosed. _ .

Yours faithfyliy:

Assistant Company Secretary

Enclosed: Holding Statement (x3)
Executive Performance Plan- General Information Booklet

Terms & Conditions of the Plan

Rules of the Plan
Qantas Deferred Share Plan Trust Deed

Receipt Acknowledged

B
fAr Attetralian Qornirilice oanA Invectmenie CAammiceinn




Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith

24 January 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
Level 18

No 1 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

In accordance with Class Order 03/184, please find attached the documentation provided from 24
January 2005 to approximately 900 participants in relation 1o the allocation of performance
shares under the Deferred Share Plan — 2004 Performance Share Plan (Plan).

Participants will be provided with a package which contains the following documents:

Holding Statement;

Executive Performance Plan — General Information Booklet;
Terms & Conditions of the Plan;

Rules of the Plan; and

Qantas deferred Share Plan Trust Deed.

ORON

Please note that for administrative purposes there were three different dates of allocation (18
August, 20 August and 17 December 2004). A proforma holding statement for each allocation is

enclosed.

Enclosed: Holding Statement (x3)
Execulive Performance Plan- General Information Booklet

Terms & Conditions of the Pian
Rules of the Plan
Qantas Deferred Share Plan Trust Deed

Receipt Acknowledged

~—



Qantas Airways Limited
ABN 16 002 661 901

ﬂﬂ M‘ ﬂ ﬂ m ‘ Qantas Share Registry

9 Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000

SIGNED FOR T E PUR SES OF SECTION 351 Locked Bag A14, Sydney South, NSW., 1235

OF TH OR OR TIONS ACT. Telephone: 1800 177 747

/J { International: 61 2 8280 7390

QLL [IC Facsimile: 02 9287 0303

U ASX Code: QAN

JANlNE L l\ﬂ;l;l S TARY Email: registry@qantas.com

ASS 'STA Websile: www.gantas.com
QANTAS Al YS LIMITED (ABN 16 009 661 901)

[NAME] ASX CODE: QAN

[ADDRESS] SRN: : [SRN]

[ADDRESS] TFN: [Y or N}

[ADDRESS]
[ADDRESS] STATEMENT DATE: 21 JANUARY 2005

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN (DSP)
2003/04 PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

NUMBER OF DSP ' TAXABLE

DATE
OF SHARES' 2 VALUE3
ALLOCATION
17/12/2004 [NUMBER] [NUMBER x $3.6624]

-:'e‘riods and cannot be sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with’
7 December 2014). However, vou can “call” for the DSP
e 1 July 2005 in relation to up to one-half of the DSP

1. DSP Shares are subject
) until the tenth anniversary
Shares prior to the expirat
Shares and 1 July 2006 in

DSP Shares were allocate gistered i ' antas Deferred Share Plan Trustee to be held on
your behalf until the holdin C ;

2. The number of DSP Sh
day VWAP for all Qantas

the ASX up to and mclud:hg 17 ecember 2004 ($3 6624)

The Terms & Conditions and lhe Plan Rules are attached to thls statement

Note:
This stalement only records your securities allocated under the 2003/04 Performance Share Pian on 17 December

2004.
N | D




Qantas Airways‘Limited
ABN 16 008 661 901

% o ﬂ mwn m Qantas Share Registry

S .+ el 8, 580 George Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000
SlGNED FOR THE PURPOSES OF SECTION 351 Locked Bag A14, Sydney South, NSW. 1235

OF S ACT. Telephone: 1800 177 747
2 International: 61 2 8280 7380
(( cy Facsimile: 02 9287 0303

ASX Code: QAN

JANIN sMnTR(SE |
Email: registry@gantas.com
ASSB%&K% PANY 'éRETARY Website: www.gantas.com

QANTAS YS LIMITED (ABN 16 009 661 901)
[NAME] ASX CODE: QAN
[ADDRESS] . SRN: [SRN]
[ADDRESS)] TFN: " [Y or N)
[ADDRESS) :
[ADDRESS) STATEMENT DATE: 21 JANUARY 2005

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN (DSP)
2003/04 PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

DATE NUMBER OF DSP TAXABLE
OF SHARES" 2 VALUE®
ALLOCATION
20/08/2004 [NUMBER] [NUMBER x $3.2501]

\)
'j%('20 August 2014). However you can “call” for the DSF~
: ye 1 July 2005 in refation to up to one-half of the DSP

0AU Qst 2004)

day VWAP for all Qantas. Sha' :

3. The Taxable Value of the DSP.Shares is calculated usmg a 7 calendar day VWAP for all Qantas Shares traded on
the ASX up to and mciudmg 20 August 2004 ($3. 2501). S T e

The Terms & Conditions and the Plan Rules are attached to this staiement.

Note:
This statement only records your securities allocated under the 2003/04 Performance Share Plan on 20 August 2004,




" Qantas Alrways
ABN 18 009 661 901
Qantas Share Registry
Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South, NSW, 1235
Telephone: 1800 177 747
International: 61 2 8280 7390
Facsimile: 02 9287 0303
ASX Code: QAN
Email: registry@gantas.com
Website: www.qgantas.com

[NAME] ASX CODE: QAN
[ADDRESS] SRN: [SRN]
[ADDRESS] TFN: [Y or N]
[ADDRESS]

[ADDRESS] STATEMENT DATE: 21 JANUARY 2005

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN (DSP)
2003/04 PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

4 D
DATE NUMBER OF DSP TAXABLE
OF. SHARES! VALUE?Z
ALLOCATION ) :
18/08/2004 INUMBER] [NUMBER x $3.3229]

SIGNED FO{THE PURPOSES OF SECTION 351

OE-FHE CORPORATIONS ACT.
Jﬁ uiles
i

JANI E
ASSI T PAN\\%ECRETARY
QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED (ABN 16 009 661 901)

1. DSP Shares are subject 10 he fol!owmg holding lock penods and -cannot be sold, transferred or otherwise deall with
until the tenth anniversar é"-date -of -registration (18 August 2014). However, you can "call” for the DSP
Shares prior 1o the expirat k, but ot b fo! ‘uly 2005 in relation to up to one-half of the DSP

Shares and 1 July 2008 in

DSP Shares were allocate
your behalf until the holdm

2. The Taxable Value of the DSP Shares is calcuiated usmg ‘ calendar day VWAP for alt Qantas Shares iraded on
the ASX up 1o and including 18 August 2004 ($3.3229). - c BT
The Terms & Conditions and the Plan Rules are attached to this statement.

Note:
This statement only records your securities allecaied under the 2003/04 Performance Share Pian on 18 August 2004.

N




Executive Remuneration at Qantas

Qantas formally declares in its Annual Report and on the Corporate Governance section of the Qantas
Website, its policy on executive remuneration as approved by the Board. :

Remuneration at Qantas reflects the duties and responsibilities of Qantas executives; and is competitive in
attracting, motivating and retaining people of the highest calibre.

This is achieved through a reward mix comprised of Fixed Annual Remuneration and a structured ‘at risk’
pay program called the “Performance Plan™

|

Set with reference to role, market and experience.

Performance

Group Financial Target.

Cash Plan
>
g Performance Balanced Scorecard Target.
i Share Plan
8 c Customer - Financial People Operational
= _
§ o
“g- Performance Total Shareholder Return Target.
K Rights Plan Allocations to selected executives.

Regardless of whether targets are achieved, the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) retain
absolute discretion to determine whether any payments and/or rewards are to be made under the
Performance Plan. For further information, please refer to the Important Information later in this
Booklet.

This General Information Booklet is provided for information only and does not constitute specific advice to
individual executives. Executives should seek independent professional advice in relation to their
participation in the Performance Plan, including taxation advice. Further, executives should read this
General Information Booklet in conjunction with the “Plan Documentation” which comprises the following:

+ Performance Share Plan Rules far the relevant year of allocation (Rules)
+ Qantas Deferred Share Plan Terms and Conditions (Terms and Conditions); and
« The Qantas Deferred Share Plan Trust Deed (Trust Deed);

No offers will be made under the terms of the 2004 Performance Share Plan Rules after 30 June 2005.




_ SIGNED FOR THE PURPOSES OF SECTION 351
OF THE GORPORATIONS ACT.

[Approved by Qantas Chairman (under Board delegation) - November 2004]

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN
2004 PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN RULES

The following Rules of the Delerred Share Pian (Plan) are subject to, and must be read in
conjunclion with, the Terms & Conditions of the Plan and the Trust Deed of the Qantas
Delerred Share Plan Trust (Trust). Capitalised terms in these Rules have the same meaning
as in the Terms & Conditions and the Trust Deed.

The Board of Qantas has zbsolule discretion with respect to the operation, control and
adminisiration of the Plan as well as any matter incidental to the Plan.

1.

Backaround

1.1

1.2

1.3.

The Terms & Conditions were approved by Shareholders at the 2002 Annual General
Meeting.

These Rules have been adopied in accordance with clause 10.1ii of the Terms &
Conditions and apply in respect of the offer of Deferred Shares 1o Eligible Employees
(excluding Executive Directors) ol Qantas (Participants) as pant of their medium term
incentive (Incentive). These Rules include extra condilions for the purposes of clause

3.1ii of the Terms & Conditions.

The operation of the Plan will be subject to review by the Board who, in its absolule
discretion may:

i vary these Rules; or
ii. make an offer subject to additional conditions.

Offer of Deferred Shares

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Pursuani to clause 3.1i(a) of the Terms & Conditions, Delerred Shares will be offered
because Qantas achieved cerlain “Balanced Scorecard” targets sél by the Board in
2003. The Balanced Scorecard 1argets related to:

i financial performance measured by reductions in labour unit cost per ASK;
il. network punctuality improvements;

iii. customer satisiaction; and

iv. sustainable fulure cost reduction targets.

The Deferred Shares may be offered 1o Panticipants under these Rules:

I by the Board; or
i, by the Chiel Executive Officer when the offer is to be made to Participants other

than Qantas Executive General Managers (EGMs).

All Deferred Shares will, subject to compliance with the inside information provisions of
the Corporations Act, be acquired on-market.

The number of Deferred Shares 1o be acquired on-market lor each Participant will be
calculated by the cash value of the Incentive awarded 1o each Parlicipant, divided by
the value weighted average price of Qantas shares as traded on the ASX for the 7
calendar days up to and including the date of allocation (being the date of offer under
Rule 2.2 by either the Board or Chiet Executive Officer). All calculations must be
rounded down 1o the nearest whole share.

Participants who are offered Deterred Shares will receive a holding statement.




I, in the case of any of-the events in paragraphs (a)-(c) inclusive in the definition ot
Special Circumstances, on the day afler the Panricipant ceases to be an
employee of the Group; or

in the case of any event in paragraph (e} in the definiion of Special
Circumstances, on the date that the Board determines that a Special
Circumstance exists or such other date that the Board determines is appropriate.

6. Administration
6.1 The Chiet Executive Officer is delegated authority to approve in writing the laking of
such aclion as may be reasonably necessary or desirable to implement or efleci the
offer, including without limitation:
i. authorising the purchase (on-market) of the Delerred Shares and causing their
registration in the name of the Trustee;
ii. approval of any Requests to Remove Holding Lock in accordance with Rule 4.3;
iil.  authorising the transter (off-market) of the registration of title in the Deferred
Shares from the Trusiee into the name of each Participant on expiry of the
Holding Lock Period; and
iv. for the purposes of Rule 5.4ii, determining that a Special Circumsiance exists.
6.2 The Chief Financial Officer, EGM People and the Company Secretary are each
delegaled authorily {o approve in writing the following aspecis of the administration of
the Plan under these Rules:
i, authorising the purchase (on-market) of the Deferred Shares and causing their
registration in the name of the Trustee;
ii. approval of any Requests to Remove Holding Lock in accordance with Rule 4.3
{other than for EGMs); and
iii. authorising the transier (cfi-market) of the registration of title in the Deferred
Shares from the Trustee into the name of each Paricipant on expiry of the
Holding Lock Period.
7. Confilict
7.1, Hf there is a conflict between any par of these Rules and 1the Terms & Conditions of the
Plan, the Terms & Conditions prevail. ’
7.2. | there is a conflict between any par of these Rules and the Plan Trust Deed, the Plan
Trust Deed prevails.
8. Currency of these Rules
No offer under these Rules is to be made after 30 June 2005.
9, Qanlas Employee Share Trading Policy (Insider Tradinag)

All Participants musi comply with the requirements of the Qantas Employee Share
Trading Policy, contained in the Qantas Code of Conduct.



Attachment 1

Qantas Deferred Share Plan
2004 Performance Share Plan
REQUEST TO REMOVE HOLDING LOCK

To: Company Secretary
Qantas Airways Limited
Qantas Cenlire Building A, Level 9
203 Coward Street
MASCOT NSW 2020

Facsimile: (02) 9691 3339

This Request to Remove Holding Lock is subject 1o, and must be read in conjunction
with, the Qantas Deferred Share Plan Terms & Conditions and the 2004
Performance Share Plan Rules. Capitalised terms in this Request 10 Remove
Holding Lock have the same meaning as in the Terms & Conditions.

, (name),

ot {address),

in accordance with Rules 4.2 and 4.3 of the 2004 Performance Share Plan Rules,
request that the Holding Lock be removed in relation to the following number

of my Deterred Shares:

Note: [f the above number of Deferred Shares exceeds those available to have their
Holding Lock removed (Available Shares), it will be deemed that the Holding Lock be
removed in relation only to the Available Shares.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ALSO CONTAINED OVERLEAF. YOU MUST READ
THIS PRIOR TO SIGNING AND RETURNING THIS FORM.

Note: Disposal of any Qantas shares is subject to the Qantas Employee Share
Trading Policy (Insider Trading) included in the Qantas Code of Conduct.

(signed) (date)

NB: Panrlicipation in any employee incentive scheme may have taxation
implications for Participants. Participants must seek their own individual
professional advice in relation 1o their panticipation in the 2004 Performance
CShare Plan including taxation advice.
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OF THE GORPDRRTIONS ACT.
CATTINT dupier
N Il

JANINE L MITH
ASSISTAN PANY SECRETARY
QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED (ABN 16 009 661 901)

QANTAS
DEFERRED SHARE PLAN

TERMS & CONDITIONS

Tabled and approved at the Annual General Meeting
of Qantas Airways Limited on 17 October 2002
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN
TERMS & CONDITIONS

INTRODUCTION

Name of Plan

This Plan is called the '‘Qantas Deferred Share Plan'.

Object of Plan

The object of the Plan is to:

i align the interests of Eligible Employees and Shareholders;

assist in making remuneration packages of Eligible Employees consistent with market practice
by providing an opportunity to invest in Qantas,

provide a medium-term incentive for the retention of Eligible Employees; and

iif,
iv. support the culiure of employee share ownership.

Function of Plan

The Plan provides for the offer of an incentive to Eligible Employees in the form of DSP Shares and
Rights. Generally, Participants will have o pay for the DSP Shares, but not for the Shares issued or
delivered on the conversion of Righis. Generally, the vesting and conversion of Rights to Shares will
be conditional on the Eligible Employee remaining an employee of the Group for a set period
(generally two years) from the relevant Date of Registration and any Vesting Condilions being

satisfied.
Commencement of Plan
The Plan will commence operation on the date the Plan is approved by Shareholders (17 October

2002).
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Definitions

In these Terms & Conditions and any Rules unless the contexi otherwise requires, the following
expressions have the following meanings:

EXPRESSION - MEANING

Australian Stock Exchange Limited (ABN 98 008 624 ‘691), or the

ASX
market conducted by it.

the directors of Qanlas acling as a board or any commiltee of the
board or person {o whom any authority has been delegated under

clause 10.4.

Board

with respect to a2 DSP Shere or Right, the date that the Participant

Date of Registration
acquires a legal or beneficial interest.

Shares scquired under clauses 3.1i(a) or 3.1i(b) while they remain

DSP Shares
subject to these Terms & Conditions.

Eligible Employee employees and execulive directors of the Group whom the Board

Saer



EXPRESSION

Holding Lock Period

Law

Legal Personal
Representative

Listing Rules

Offer

Participant

Plan

Qantas

Redundancy

Right

Rules

Security Interest

Shareholder

Shares

Special Circumstances

MEANING

in relation 1o DSP Shares, the period commencing on the Date of
Registration and expiring two years after the Date of Registration,

unless:
(8)  otherwise specified by the Board at the time of the Offer; or

(b)  Special Circumstances exist for the relevant Participant.

any applicable statule, regulation, by-law, ordinance or subordinate
legislation in force from time to time in the relevani jurisdiction,
including common law and equity, as applicable from time to time.

(8  the executor of the will or an administrator of the estate of a
deceased person; .

(b)  the trustee of the estate of a person under a lega! disability; or

(c) any beneficiary of the estale of the deceased person as
nominated by the executor, adminisirator or trustee.

ihe official listing rules of the ASX.
an offer to one or more Eligible Employees to participate in the Plan.

a person who acquires a legal or beneficial interest in DSP Shares or
Rights under this Plan and includes the Legal Personal
Representative of the person.

the Qantas Deferred Share Plan governed by these Terms &
Conditions (including any Rules).

Qantas Airways Limited (ABN 16 009 661 901).

a termination or cessation of a Participant’s employment or office with
a member of the Group as a result of redundancy, as determined by

the Board.

a right granted under clause 3.1i(c) to receive, subject to these Terms
& Conditions, the number of Shares specified at the time of the offer

of that right.
any rules made by the Board pursuant to clause 10.1ii.

a morigage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance or other third parly
interest of any nature.

a shareholder of Qantas.

fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of Qanias.

with respect to a Participant:

(a)  Tolal and Permanent Disablement;

(b)  deaih;

{c)  termination of employment with any member of the Group by
rezson of the aflainment of such age of retirement as
determined by the Board,

(d)  Redundancy; or
() such other circumstences the Board may &t any time




2.2

3.1

EXPRESSION

Subsidiary

Tax

Terms & Conditions

Total and Permanent
Disablement

Vesting Date

Vesting Conditions

Interpretation

in these Terms and Conditioné:

Conditions;

versa;

Jii.

MEANING

2 body corporate of which Qantas is a holding company in terms of
section 9 and Division 6 of Part 1.2 of the Corporations Act.

includes any tax (whether direct or indirect), levy, impost, deduction,
charge, rate, contribution, duty or withholding which is assessed {or
deemed 1o be assessed), levied, imposed or made by any
government or any governmental, semi-governmenta! or judicial
entity or authorily together with any interest, penally, fine, charge, fee
or other amount assessed (or deemed to be assessed), levied,
imposed or made on or in respect of any or all of the foregoing.

the terms & conditions governing the operation of the Plan set out in
this instrument, as amended from time 1o time. '

in relation to a Participant, that the Participant has, in the opinion of
the Board, become permanently incapacitated 1o such an extent as o
render the Participant unable or, in the opinion of the Board, unlikely
to again engage in the Participant's primary occupation.

in relation to Rights, unless otherwise specified by the Board at the
time of the Offer, two years from the Date of Registration.

in relation to Rights, any conditions set by the Board when making an
Offer of Rights pursuant to clause 3.1i(c).

headings are for convenience only and do not affect the interpretation of these Terms &
unless the coniext otherwise requires, words denoting the singular include the plural and vice

references 1o any legislation or any provision of any legislation include any modification or re-
enaciment of the legislation or any legislative provision substituted for, and all legisiation and

stalutory instruments and regulations issued under, the legislation;

Conditions; and
Vi,
OPERATION OF THE PLAN

Offer

where any word or phrase is given a defined meaning in these Terms & Conditions, any part of
speech or other grammatical form of that word or phrase has a corresponding meaning;

a reference to a clause or paragraph is a reference 1o a clause or paragraph in these Terms &

the words ‘including’ or ‘includes’ means ‘including (or includes as applicable) without limitation’.

Subject to these Terms and Conditions:

i, the Board may from time 1o time do all or any of the following under the Plan:

(2) offer an Eligible Employee the opporiunity to acquire, by subscription or purchase, DSP
Shares as part of the Eligible Employee’s bonus;

(b) offer an Eligible Employee the opportunity to acquire, by subscription or purchase, DSP



N

3.2

3.3

1 3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

an Offer shall be in such form and conient and subject 10 such conditions and Rules as the
Board determines, including, if applicable:

(a)  a Holding Lock Period for DSP Shares; and
(h) a Vesting Dale and Vesting Conditions for Rights.

DSP Shares and Rights Subject to the Plan

DSP Shares and Rights will be subject to these Terms and Conditions until:

i,
ji. in relation to Rights, the earlier of: .
(a) the delivery of Shares in respect of Rights which have vesled, in accordance with clause
6.2; or
(b)  the lapse of the relevani Rights in accordance with clause 7.

in relation to DSP Shares,_ the expiry of the relevant Holding Lock Period; and

Binding Nature of These Terms & Conditions

The Plan shall operate in accordance with these Terms & Conditions, which bind Qantas and each
Participant.

Consideration for DSP Shares

The Board shall determine from time fo time the actual or 2 means of calculating the consideration for
DSP Shares issued or purchased pursuant to clauses 3.1i{(a) or (b).

Consideration for Rights

Unless otherwise determined by the Board when making 2 grant of Rights under clause 3.1i(c), no
amount shall be payable by a Participant in respect of the grant of Rights or for Sheares delivered 1o a

.Participant upon conversion of a Right.

Issue or Purchase of DSP Shares

Shares 1o be acquired by a Parlicipant under the Plan may be delivered to a Participant by, at the
absolute discretion of the Board, the issue or purchase of Shares on behalf of the Participant.

Ranking of Shares

Shares delivered under the Plan will rank equally with all existing Shares on and from the Date of
Registration in respect of all Shareholder entitlements (inciuding rights issues, bonus share issues and
dividends) which have a record date for determining entitlements on or after the date of issue of those

Shares.

LIMITATIONS ON OFFERS OF DSP SHARES OR RIGHTS

Overriding Restrictions

Notwithstanding anything else in these Terms & Conditions or any Rules, the Pian must be operated in
accordance with the Constitution of Qantas, any Law and the Listing Rules.

Rights Personal to Participant

Rights are personal to the Parlicipant and are not transferable and no legal or equitable interest in
Right may be assigned {o any olher person or body corporate except {o the exient necessary to
enable a Participant’s Legal Personal Representative to be delivered Shares represented by Rights in

accordance with clause 6.2.

‘




4.3

4.4

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

Security Interests Over DSP Shares

Participants must not dispose of or grant any Security Interest over or otherwise deal with any DSP
Shares.

Security Interests Over Rights

Participants must not dispose of or grant any Securily Interest over or otherwise deal with any Rights
or any lega) or equitable interest in any Rights.

HOLDING STATEMENTS

As soon as practicable after the issue or delivery of DSP Shares or the grant of Rights, Qanias must
forward to the Participent a holding statement which will include the following information (if

applicable):

i. the Date of Regisiralion;

i, the totel number of DSP Shares acquired by the Participant;
iii. the lotal number of Rights granted to the Participant,

iv. the Holding Lock Period in the case of DSP Shares,;

V. the Vesting Date (in the case of Righis); and
any other information or documents required to be notified to the Participant by any Law or the
Listing Rules.

vi.

VESTING AND CONVERSION OF RIGHTS

No Interest
A grant of Rights does not confer any legal or equitable interest in Shares represented by the Rights
uniil the relevant Vesting Date and any Vesting Conditions have been satisfied.

Vesting and Conversion of Rights

As soon as practicable after the relevant Vesting Date and provided the Participant was an employee
of the Group from the Date of Registration 1o the Vesting Date and any Vesting Conditions have been
satisfied, the Righis vest and Qantas must issue, or procure the purchase of and deliver, 10 2
Participant the number of Shares info which the Rights held by that Participant convert.

LAPSE OF RIGHTS

Circumstances of Lapse
Subject 1o clauses 7.3 and 7.3, Rights held by a Participant automatically lapse if:

i. the Participant ceases to be employed by the Group befare the relevant Vesting Dale; or

ii. the Vesting Conditions (if any) have not been satisfied by the Vesting Dale.

Special Circumstances

Where, due to Special Circumsiances, a Participant has ceased io be employed by the Group before
ihe Vesting Date, the Rights heid by that Participant vest:

in the case of any of the evenls in paragraphs (a)-(d) inclusive in the deﬁhiﬁon of Special
Circumstances, on the day after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Group; or

in the case of any event in paragraph (e) in the definition of Special Circumstances, on the date

i.

il.

N



7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

Discretion of Board

Clauses 7.1 and 7.2 are subject 1o the Board allowing & Participant to convert all or any Rights held by
that Participant to Shares, whether or not the Rights have vested and whether or not the Rights have

lapsed or would otherwise have lapsed.

Effect of lapse

Subject to clauses 7.2 and 7.3, on a Right lapsing, all rights of a Participant under the Plan in respect
of the Right cease and no consideration or compensation will be payable for or in relation to that lapse.

QUOTATION OF SHARES AND RIGHTS

‘No Quotation of Rights

Qantas will not seek official quotation by ASX of any Rights.

Quotation of Shares

Qantas will apply to the ASX for official quotation of any Shares issued:

i. under clauses 3.1i(2) and (b); and
ii. on the conversion of Righis in accordance with clause 6.2.

PRO RATA ISSUES, RECONSTRUCTIONS OF CAPITAL AND TAKEOVERS

Participation
In respect of Rights, a Participant may not participate in:

i new issues of securities to Shareholders;
ji. bonus issues of Shares or other securities to Shareholders; or
iii. any issue by Qantas of Shares or other securities pro-rata to Shareholders. -

Reorganisations

)f there is any reorganisation of the issued share capital of Qantas, the number of Rights to which each
Participant is entitled will be reorganised as required by the Listing Rules in force at the time of the
reorganisation and in a manner which will not result in any benefits being conferred on the Participants
which are not conferred on Shareholiders (subject lo any provisions with respect to rounding permitted
by the Listing Rules), but in all other respects the terms for the conversion of Rights will remain

unchanged.

Takeovers and Compromise Arrangements

if:

a takeover bid is made to acquire some or all of the Shares; or

under Part 5.1 of the Corporations Act, the Court sanctions a compromise or arrangement
proposed for the purpose of, or in connection with, @ scheme for the reconstruction of Qantas or

its amalgamation with any other body corporate,

which:
in the case of paragraph (a), has resulted in one person becoming, directly or indirectly, legally

or beneficially entitled to 50% or more of the Shares; or

in the case of paragraph (b), if implemenied, would result in one person becoming, directly or
indirectlv. legallv or beneficially entitled 10 50% or more of the Shares,

iil.

iv.




10.

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

Administration in Accordance with Terms & Conditions

The Boerd:

i will operate, control and administer the Plan in accordance with these Terms & Conditions; and

may make and amend rules for the operation, coniro! and administration of the Plan and any
matier incidental o the Plan.

Discretion

A determination, decision, approval or opinion of the Board under these Terms & Conditions (or any
Rules) will be in the absolute unfetiered discretion of the Board.

Decision Final

In the absence of manifest error, the determination, decision, approval or opinion of the Board will be
final. Any calculations or adjustments which are required to be made under the Pian will be made by
the Board and will, in the absence of manifest error, be final and conclusive and binding on the

Participants.

Delegation by Board

The Board may delegate such functions and powers as they consider appropriate for the efficient
administration of the Plan to persons whom they reasonably believe to be capable of performing those

functions and exercising those powers,
Notices

Notices:

may be given by Qantas 1o Participants in such manner as the Board may from time to time

determine;
given by & Participant to Qantas under these Terms & Conditions must be in writing:

(2) directed to:

Company Secretary

Qantas Airways Limited .
Qantas Centre Building A, Level 9

203 Coward Street

MASCOT NSW 2020

AUSTRALIA

Facsimile: (612) 9691 333¢;

(b) hand delivered or sent by prepzaid post or facsimile 1o that address; and

(c) aretaken to be received:
A. if hand delivered, on delivery;
B. if sent by prepaid post, five business days after the date of posting; or

C. if sent by facsimile, when the sender’s facsimile system generates a message
confirming successful fransmission of the tolal number of pages of the notice,
unless Qantas informs the sender within three business days that it has not

received the entire notice.

AMENDMENT TO TERMS & CONDITIONS



iz.

13.

13.1

13.2

14.

15.

15.1

15.2

RIGHTS OF PARTICIPANTS

Nothing in these Terms & Conditions:

j. confers on an Eligible Employee the righ! 1o receive any DSP Shares or be granted Righis;
confers on a Parlicipant the right 1o continue as an employee of the Group;

ji.
affecis any rights which the Group may have 1o terminate the employment of any Participant;

iil.
may be used fo increase damages in any action brought against the Group in respect of any
termination of employment with the Group; or .

confers on eny Participant the right 1o receive any Shareholder entitlement (including rights
issues, bonus share issues and dividends (whether or not deciared)) before 2 Right is converted

and Shares delivered.
COSTS AND EXPENSES

Costs of Qantas

Subject to clauses 3.1, 3.4 and 3.5, Qanlas will pay all costs and expenses in relalion to the
establishment and operation of the Plan, including all costs and expenses in relation to the delivery of
DSP Shares, Righis or Shares delivered pursuant tc a conversion of Rights (DSP Securities) except
that Qanilas is nol responsible for any Taxes which may become payabie in connection with the

delivery of DSP Securilies or any olher dealing with DSP Securities.

Costs of Participant

Each Participant will pay all costs and expenses in relation to the sale of any Shares acquired under
the Plan.

TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN

The Board may, by nolice in writing 1o all Participants, terminate or suspend the Plan at any time,
provided that termination or suspension does not aifect or prejudice the existing rights of Participants

at that time.

CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION

Choice of law

The Plan and the rights of the Participants thereunder are governed by the laws of and applicable in
the State of New South Wales, Australia.

Jurisdiction

Each Parlicipant irrevocably and unconditionally submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of
ihe State of New South Wales, Australia and courts entitled io hear appeals from those courts.
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TRUST DEED

DATE 26 November 2002

PARTIES

Qantas Airways Limited (ABN 16 009 661 901) of Qantas Centre, Level 9, Building A,
203 Coward Street, Mascot, New South Wales, 2020, Australia ("Qantas")

ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited (ABN 54 083 214 537) of Level 8, 580 George
Street, Sydney, New South Wales, 2000, Australia ("ASX Perpetual”)

RECITALS

A.

Qantas has established the Qantas Deferred Share Plan to give Eligible Employees of
Qantas the opportunity to have greater involvement with, and share in the future growth

and profitability of, the Group.

DSP Shares issued or acquired by a Participant under the Qantas Deferred Share Plan may
be subject to such conditions and Rules as the Board determines including a Holding Lock
Period for the DSP Shares.

The Qantas Deferred Share Plan provides that DSP Shares acquired under the Plan will
rank equally with all existing Qantas Shares including rights issues, bonus share issues and

dividends.

The Trustee has agreed to act as the first trustee of the Trust and has agreed to hold DSP
Shares in relation to the Plan on the terms and conditions set out in the Qantas Deferred
Share Plan for the Holding Lock Period.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

1.

1.1

INTERPRETATION

Definitions

The following words and phrases have these meanings in this deed unless the contrary
intention appears:

"Account" of a Participant means an account referred to in clause 6.

"Accretion” means any accretion, dividend, distribution, entitlement, benefit or right of
whatever kind whether cash or otherwise which is issued, declared, paid, made, arises or
accrues directly or indirectly to or in respect of a Share including, without limitation, any
such entitlement relating to a subdivision, consolidation or other reconstruction, any
rights issue, bonus issue, Entitlements Offer, or distribution from any reserve of Qantas

and any reduction of capital.

"Auditor” means any person registered as an auditor under the Corporations Act.

"Bonus Shares" means the shares in respect of the DSP Shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of a Participant issued as part of a bonus issue to security holders of Qantas.




1.2

"Cash Dividend" means a dividend declared or paid with respect to DSP Shares which is
payable wholly in cash or, in the case of a dividend, declared or paid with respect to Shares
which is payable only partly in cash, that part of the dividend which is payable in cash.

"Corporations Act" means the Corporations Act 2001.

"Director” means a director of Qantas.

"DSP Entitlements” means any rights to acquire shares or securities issued or to be
issued by Qantas which relate to the DSP Shares excluding however "Rights" as defined in

the Qantas Deferred Share Plan.

"Entitlements Offer” means an offer to subscribe for or otherwise acquire issued or
unissued securities, whether of Qantas or any other body.

"Listing Rules" means the Listing Rules of ASX as published from time to time, as
amended by either a ruling or waiver given by the ASX to Qantas.

"Net Income" means, in respect of a financial year of the Trust, an amount which the
Trustee determines to be the "net income" (as defined in Section 95 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1936) of the Trust for the Year of Income.

"Participant” has the meaning given in the Qantas Deferred Share Plan.

"Plan” means the Qantas Deferred Share Plan.

"Qantas Deferred Share Plan” means the Qantas Deferred Share Plan approved at the
Annual General Meeting of Qantas on 17 October 2002 and any Rules made by the Board
pursuant to clause 10.1ii of that Plan or any other determinations made pursuant to the

Plan.

"Tax" means all kinds of taxes, duties, imposts, deductions, charges and withholdings
imposed by a government, together with interest and charges.

"Transaction Costs" means, in respect of a DSP Share, the Trustee's estimate of the
reasonable cost that the Trustee would incur if the Trustee had acquired the Share on
market on the date of allocation of the Share.

"Trust” the trust established by this deed.

"Trustee" means initially ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited (ABN 54 083 214 537) and
thereafter means the trustee from time to time of the Trust.

"Year of Income" means a period of 12 months ending on 30 June in any year and

includes the period commencing on the date of this deed and terminating on the next
30 June and the period ending on the date of termination of the Trust and commencing on

the preceding 1 July.
General Principles
In this deed, unless the contrary intention appears:

(a) the singular includes the plural and vice versa;
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1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

(b) a reference to a recital, this deed or a clause means the recital, this deed or the
clause as amended from tune to time in accordance with this deed:

(c) a reference to a rule, statute, or other law includes regulations and other
instruments under it and consolidations, amendments, re-enactments or

replacements of any of them;

(d)  areference to a person includes a reference to the person's legal personal
representatives, executors, administrators and successors, a firm or a body

corporate;

(e) unless the context requires otherwise, terms used in this deed have the same
meaning as in the Qantas Deferred Share Plan.

Headings

Headings are inserted for convenience and do not affect the interpretation of this deed.

ESTABLISHMENT OF TRUST

Appointment

ASX Perpetual is hereby appointed by Qantas and agrees to act as Trustee of the Trust on
the terms of this deed.

Commencement

The Trust comes into operation on the date of the first contribution of capital to the Trust
by Qantas. ,

Trustee to comply with Qantas Deferred Share Plan

Despite anything else in this deed the Trustee must act in accordance with the terms of the
Qantas Deferred Share Plan.

Any amendment to the terms of the Qantas Deferred Share Plan must be approved by the
Trustee in writing who must not unreasonably withhold its consent.

TRUSTEE
Nature, appointment and removal
The Trustee ceases to be the Trustee when:

(a) either:

i) the Trustee gives notice in writing to Qantas that it wishes to retire as
Trustee; or

(i)  Qantas serves notice in writing on the Trustee that it is removed as Trustee
of the Trust; and

(b)  anew Trustee is appointed.




3.2
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3.4

Appointment

On the retirement or removal of the Trustee, Qantas may appoint such new Trustee as it
thinks fit. Qantas shall use its best endeavours to appoint a new trustee as soon as
possible after receipt of a notice that the Trustee wishes to retire.

Transfer of assets

On a change of Trustee, the retiring Trustee must execute all transfers, deeds or other
documents necessary to transfer assets into the name of the new Trustee.

Powers of Trustee

Subject to this deed, the Trustee has all the powers in respect of the Trust that it is legally
possible for a Trustee to have as a body corporate and, for the avoidance of doubt, these
powers are in addition to all the powers invested in trustees by the Trustee Act 1958 and
(to the maximum extent permitted by law) are not subject to any restrictions on the
powers of trustees that may he imposed under the Trustee Act 1958. For example the

Trustee has the following powers:

(a) to enter into and execute all contracts, deeds and documents and do all acts or
things which it deems expedient for the purpose of giving effect to and carrying out
the trusts, powers and discretions conferred on the Trustee by this deed;

(b) to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire and to sell or otherwise dispose of
property, rights or privileges which the Trustee is authorised to acqmre or dispose

of on terms and conditions ,which it thinks fit;

(c) to appoint and, at its discretion, remove or suspend custodians, trustees, managers,
servants and other agents, determine the powers and critics to be delegated to
them, pay such remuneration to them as it thinks fit and any person so employed
or engaged is deemed for the purpose of the deed to be employed or engaged by the

Trustee;
(d)  toinstitute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceeding

concerning the Trust and also to settle or compromise and allow time for payment
or satisfaction of any debts due and of any claims or demands by or against the

Trustee in respect of the Trust;

(e) to refer any claim or demand by or against the Trustee in respect of the Trust to
arbitration and observe and perform awards;

9] to make and give receipts, releases and other discharges for money payable to the
Trust;

(g)  toopen bank accounts and to retain on current or deposit account at any bank any
money which it considers proper and to make regulations for the operation of those
bank accounts including the signing and endorsing of cheques;

(h)  tosell any Rights and apply the proceeds of sale in accordance with this deed;

(1) to take and act upon the advice or opinion of any legal practitioner (whether in
relation to the interpretation of this deed, any other document or statute or as to

ADN

p—



35

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

whether obtained by the Trustee or not, without being liable in respect of any act
done by it in accordance with such advice or opinion;

G) to determine who is entitled to sign on the Trustee's behalf receipts, acceptances,
endorsements, releases, contracts and documents; and

(k)  generally to do all acts and things which the Trustee considers necessary or
expedient for the administration, maintenance and preservation of the Trust and in
performance of its obligations under this deed.

Instructions to Trustee

While DSP Shares are held by the Trustee on behalf of a Participant, the Trustee is not
bound to observe instructions from a Participant or anybody claiming under him or her in
respect of DSP Shares except as required by or pursuant to the Qantas Deferred Share

Plan.

For the purposes of this deed and subject to the Qantas Deferred Share Plan and Qantas
instructions, the Trustee is entitled to regard as valid an instruction, consent or other
authorisation given or purported to be given by a Participant, whether in writing and
signed by or purporting to be signed by the Participant or in any other form approved by

the Board.
Remuneration of Trustee

The Trustee is not entitled to receive from the Account of any Participant any fees,
comimission or other remuneration in respect of its office, but Qantas may pay to the
Trustee from Qantas’ own resources such fees and reimburse such expenses incurred by
the Trustee as Qantas and the Trustee agree from time to time. The Trustee is entitled to
retain for its own benefit any such fee or reimbursement.

No security

Neither the Trustee nor Qantas may use as security the Shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of a Participant.

Conflict of interest

A person who is a director of the Trustee may, except where prohibited by the
Corporations Act, act in that capacity notwithstanding a conflict of interest or duty.

GRANT OF DSP SHARES

Participation

In its absolute discretion, the Board may invite an Eligible Employee to participate in the
Qantas Deferred Share Plan and invite the Eligible Employee to accept an offer to acquire

DSP Shares.
Terms of DSP Shares

DSP Shares allocated under the Qantas Deferred Share Plan must be on the terms set out
in or determined by the Board pursuant to the Qantas Deferred Share Plan and Schedule 1
~f thic deed 11inlece and tn the evient that the Raard dAeterminece nthorunca sm i+n ablnstedn




5.1

5.2
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5.4

6.1

6.2

ACQUISITION AND ALLOCATION OF SHARES BY TRUSTEE
Trustee to Acquire or Allocate Shares for DSP Shares

Trustee must allocate Shares to the Account established for the Participant in accordance
with written directions from Qantas provided Trustee receives:

(a) Sufficient payment from Qantas to buy the relevant Shares on market; or

(b)  Has sufficient Shares available (whether through prior purchase on market,
allotment by Qantas or, due to a Participant not being employed by a company in

the Group throughout the Holding Lock Period)
or, any combination of (a) and (b) above.

Acquisitions

The Trustee shall upon direction by Qantas acquire Shares for the purpose of granting DSP
Shares to Participants from time to time. Shares acquired in accordance with this clause
are to be registered in the name of the Trustee on acquisition.

Beneficial Interest

Shares allocated in accordance with clause 5.1 must be held on the terms of this deed by
the Trustee on behalf of the relevant Participant who is the beneficial owner of the Shares.

_ All interests and benefits to be held by the Trustee on behalf of a Participant under this

deed are strictly personal to that Participant.

Rights of Qantas in DSP Shares

Nothing in this deed confers or is intended to confer on Qantas, any charge, lien or any
other proprietary right or proprietary interest in the Shares acquired by the Trustee under .
this clause 5 in relation to any Shares or DSP Shares. The rights of Qantas under this deed

are purely contractual.
ACCOUNTS

Participant's Account

The Trustee must open and maintain an account in respect of each Participant.

Contents of Accounts

Each account must record:

(a) the number of DSP Shares which each relevant Participant has been granted or to
which they are entitled, as appropriate;

(b) the date of acquisition of DSP Shares which each relevant Participant has been
granted or to which they are entitled as appropriate; and

(c) the number of Bonus Shares (if any) to which each Participant is entitled.



7.1

7.2

7-3

8.2

9.1

PAYMENTS

Payment Direction

Subject to the terms of this deed, the Trustee may make any payment received by the
Trustee in relation to Shares to a Participant in the manner directed by the Participant, or

otherwise as the Trustee determines is appropriate, including, but not limited to,
dividends and returns of capital.

Tax

Subject to the terms of this deed, the Trustee may deduct from any amount to be paid to a
Participant an amount on account of Tax payable or anticipated to become payable by the
Trustee, including by the Trustee on behalf of the Participant directly or indirectly in
relation to a Share held on behalf of the Participant.

Interest

Interest earned through a bank account opened and operated by the Trustee on monies
which form part of the fund, shall be distributed in accordance with clause 10.2.

NOTICES

Method

Any notice to be given by the Trustee shall be deemed to have been duly given if:
(a) sent by electronic mail or del.ivered; or |
(b) sent by ordinary prepaid mail,

and shall be deemed to have been served:

(c) if sent by electronic mail or delivered, at the time of delivery or sending;

(d)  if posted, three days after the date of posting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays but, if the address of any Participant is outside Australia, then
7 days shall be substituted for three days for any notice given to or by that

Participant.

Address

Delivery, transmission and postage shall be to the address of any Participant as indicated
on the application form or such other address as the Trustee or any Participant may notify

to the other.
AUDIT

Accounts

The Trustee shall keep or cause to be kept true accounts of all sums of money received and
expended by or on behalf of the Trust and the matters in respect of which such receipt and
expenditure takes place and of all sales and purchases of shares and of the assets and

liabilities of the Trust.




9.2

9:3

9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

Books of Account

The books of account of the Trust shall be maintained at the registered office of Qantas
and shall be available for inspection by Participants during normal business hours free of

charge upon prior written request.

Auditor
Qantas shall appoint an Auditor of the Trust.
Audit

The Trustee shall cause the books of account to be audited annually by the Auditor of the
Trust.

Access

The Trustee must ensure that the Auditor of the Trust has access to all papers, accounts
and documents concerned with or relating to the Trust.

INCOME AND CAPITAL DISTRIBUTIONS

DSP Shares

A Participating Employee is presently entitled to so much of the Net Income of the Trust
for a Year of Income which is attributable to:

(a) the DSP Shares held by thé Trustee on behalf of the Participating Employee;

(b) the proceeds of sales arising from the sale of DSP Entitlements by the Trustee on
behalf of the Participating Employee; and

(c) transactions or events related to DSP Shares or property related to or arising from
DSP Shares held by the Trustee on behalf of the Participating Employee.

Balance of Net Income

The balance of the Net Income of the Trust for a Year of Income to which no Participant is
presently entitled in accordance with clause 10.1 may, subject to compliance with any
restrictions applicable by statute, common law or equity or the Listing Rules, be applied, in
whole or in part, for the benefit of one or more of the following beneficiaries as the Trustee

thinks fit:

(a) an Eligible Employee (other than a director of a body corporate in the Group);
(b) a Participant (other than a director of a body corporate in the Group);

(c) a provident, benefit, superannuation or retirement fund established and
maintained by Qantas;

(d)  an employee share or option trust established for the benefit of all or any
employees of Qantas;
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10.3

10.4

11.

11.1

11.2

€3] any charity nominated by the Trustee.

Accretion

The balance of the Net Income of the Trust for a Year of Income to which no Participant is
presently entitled in accordance with clause 10.1 and not applied in accordance with clause
10.2 may be accumulated by the Trustee as an Accretion to the Trust.

Other Application of Capital

The Trustee may, prior to or on the termination of the Trust as set out in clause 15.1, if it
thinks fit, apply that part of the capital of the Trust to which no Participant would be
entitled as set out in clause 15 if the Trust was terminated at that time, in one or more of

the following:

(a) in payment of any costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee in the execution or
purported execution of the Trust or any of the powers, authorities or discretions

vested in the Trustee; or

(b)  for the benefit of any of the following beneficiaries as the Trustee thinks fit:
(1) an Employee;

(ii) a Participant; or

(iii)  a provident, benefit, superannuation or retirement fund established and
maintained by Qantas. :

AMENDMENT

Qantas Amendment

Subject to clauses 11.2 and 11.3, Qantas may at any time by written instrument or by
resolution of the Board, amend all or any of the provisions of this deed (including this

clause 11).

Any amendment to this Deed must be approved by the Trustee in writing who must not
unreasonably withhold its consent.

No Reduction of Participant's Rights

No amendment of the provisions of this deed is to reduce the rights of any Participant in
respect of DSP Shares credited to the Account of the Participant prior to the date of the
amendment, other than an amendment introduced primarily:

(a) to enable the Trustee or Qantas to take into account any changes to the system of
taxation in Australia, including any proposed changes to the system of taxation in
Australia, as a result of the Government's adoption of any recommendations made
in the Report of the Review of Business Taxation submitted to the Government by

the Ralph Committee;

(b)  for the purpose of complying with or conforming to present or future State,
Territory or Commonwealth legal requirements governing or regulating the
maintenance or operation of the Plan or like plans;




11.3

11.4

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

(c) to correct any manifest error or mistake;

(d)  toenable contributions or other amounts paid by any body corporate in the Group
to the Trust to qualify as income tax deductions for that body corporate or any

other body corporate in the Group;

(e)  toenable the Trustee, the Participant or any body corporate in the Group to reduce
the amount of fringe benefits tax under the Fringe Benefit Tax Assessment Act
1986, the amount of tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 or the Income
Tax Assessment Act 1997 or the amount of any other tax or impost that may
otherwise be payable by the Trustee, the Participant or the body corporate in

relation to the Trust;

€3] to enable Participants generally (but not necessarily each participant) to receive a
more favourable taxation treatment in respect to their participation in the Trust; or

(2) to enable the Trustee or any body corporate in the Group to comply with the
Corporations Act or the Listing Rules.

Listing Rules

No amendment may be made except in accordance with and in the manner (if any)
stipulated by the Listing Rules.

Restrospectivity

Subject to the above provisions of this clause 11, any amendment made pursuant to clause
11.1 may be given such retrospective effect as is specified in the written instrument or

resolution by which the amendment is made.

OBLIGATIONS AND INDEMNITY OF THE TRUSTEE

Indemnification

Without derogating from the right of indemnity given by law to trustees, Qantas hereby

* covenants with the Trustee that it will indemnify and keep indemnified the Trustee in

respect of all liabilities, costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee in the execution or
purported execution of the Trust or any of the powers, authorities or discretions vested in
the Trustee and from and against all actions, proceedings, costs, claims and demands in
respect of any matter or thing done or omitted other than a claim arising out of the
Trustee's negligence, dishonesty or the Trustee wilfully or knowingly being a party to a

breach of trust.
Negligence, Dishonesty, Fraud or Wilful Default

The Trustee shall not be under any liability whatsoever except for its negligence,
dishonesty, fraud or wilful default or except for the negligence, default or wilful breach of

trust committed by any of its employees or agents acting as such.

Costs and Expenses

Subject to clause 12.4, nothing in clause 12.1 enables the Trustee to recover any liabilities,
costs and expenses from any Participant.



12.4

12.5

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

Tax

The Trustee is entitled to be indemnified by a Participant in respect of any Tax payable by
the Trustee in respect of Shares held by the Trustee on behalf of the Participant.

No Indemnity from Participant

Except as expressly provided in this deed, the Trustee will have no right of indemnity from
a Participant personally.

ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

Board Power

Any power or discretion which is conferred on the Board by this deed must be exercised by
the Board in the interests or for the benefit of Qantas, and the Board is not, in exercising
any such power or discretion, under any fiduciary or other obligation to any other person.

Board Delegation

Any power or discretion which is conferred on the Board by this deed may be delegated by
the Board to a committee consisting of such Directors and/or other officers and for
employees of Qantas or a related body corporate of Qantas or to a third party and for such
periods and on such conditions as the Trustee, Qantas or the Board, as the case may be,

thinks fit.
Further documentation

The Trustee and Qantas may each from time to time require a Participant to complete and
return such other documents as may be required by law to be completed by the Participant
or such other documents which the Trustee or Qantas considers should, for legal or

taxation reasons, be completed by the Participant.

Suspension of Plan

The Board may from time to time suspend the operation of the Qantas Deferred Share
Plan and may at any time cance] the Plan. The suspension or cancellation of the Qantas

Deferred Share Plan will not prejudice the existing rights of Participants.

RIGHTS OF PARTICIPANTS

Except as expressly provided in this deed, or in the Qantas Deferred Share Plan, nothing in
this deed:

(a) confers on any employee of any body corporate in the G\roup the right to receive
any Shares;

(b) confers on any Participant the right to continue as an employee of any body
corporate in the Group;

(c) affects any rights which of its any body corporate in the Group may have to
terminate the employment of any employees;

(d)  may be used to increase damages in any action brought against any body corporate




15.

15.1

15.2

15-3

16.

17.

18.

(e) confers on an Eligible Employee any expectation to become a Participant.

TERMINATION OF TRUST

When Trust Terminated

The Trust will terminate and be wound up as provided below upon the first to occur of the
following events:

(a) an order being made or an effective resolution being passed for the winding up of
Qantas (other than for the purpose of amalgamation or reconstruction);

(b) the Board determining that the Trust is to be wound up; and
() the day before the 8oth anniversary of the date of this deed.

Consequence of Trust Termination

If the Trust is terminated, the Trustee must transfer to each Participant the Shares
standing to the credit of the Account of the Participant.

Balance of Capital or Income of Trust

The balance of the capital or income of the Trust to which no Participant is entitled in
accordance with clause 10.1 may be applied in whole or in part in accordance with clauses
10.2 or 10.4 by the Trustee upon the written direction of Qantas.

SALE AND INDEMNITY

The Board may, at the time of offer of a DSP Share to a Participant provide that the
Participant is required to reimburse Qantas or the Trustee if Qantas or any member of the
Group or the Trustee is obliged to account for tax in connection with, or as a result of the
grant or transfer of DSP Shares to the Participant. The Board may determine the manner
in which reimbursement is to occur, including without limitation by sale of the Shares held

on behalf of the Participant.
GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND PROCESS

This deed will be governed by the laws of and applicable in the State of New South Wales
and will be construed and take effect in accordance with those laws.

COMPLIANCE

Qantas is responsible for the Plan’s compliance with all relevant laws.

~—



EXECUTED as a deed.

EXECUTED BY QANTAS AIRWAYS
LIMITED ABN 16 009 901 pursuant to
section 127 (1) of the Corporations Act:

y

(7

Sign’at(‘l{‘eo dirgttor

Signaturé\of-di»réctor/ secretary

Name

THE COMMON SEAL of ASX
Perpetual Limited, the fixing of which

was witnessed by:

Name A TEcENTREZ D2O02

Signature of director

Signature of director/secretary

Name

Name
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EXECUTED as a deed.

EXECUTED BY QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED ABN
16 009 901 pursuant to sechon 127 (1) of the
Corporations Act:

Signature of directar , Signature of direclorfsecretary

Name Name

|
|

|
THE COMMON SEAL of ASX Perpetual Limited,
the fixing of which was witnessed by:

N

0N s )y Y

Signature of director Signa% of dirpotes/secretary

< ﬂ“ﬂutl'(uﬁ W. T. Myve ng

Name Name




1.1

1.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

SCHEDULE 1

DSP SHARES TERMS

Registration of and beneficial interest in DSP Shares

DSP Shares allocated to a Participating Employee under the Plan are to be registered in
the name of the Trustee and are to be held on the terms of this deed by the Trustee until
transferred under term 11. The Participating Employee will be the beneficial owner of the
DSP Shares from the time of allocation.

By accepting an offer of DSP Shares in accordance with the Qantas Deferred Share Plan, a
Participant agrees to be bound by the trust deed and the constitution of Qantas.

Right to dividends

Subject to the terms of this deed, a Participant is entitled to receive all Cash Dividends
paid on their DSP Shares.

Bonus Shares

Subject to term 3.2, a Participant is entitled to any Bonus Shares which accrue to the
shares held by the Trustee on behalf of that Participating Employee:

The Bonus Shares must be registered in the name of the Trustee and held in trust by the
Trustee on behalf of the Participating Employee, who will be the beneficial owner of the

Bonus Shares.
Upon allotment to the Trustee.
(a) Bonus Shares are deemed to be Shares for the purposes of this deed;

(b) Bonus Shares issued in respect of DSP Shares are deemed to be DSP Shares for the
purposes of this deed.

The Bonus Shares will for the purpose of determining the Holding Lock Period be deemed
to be acquired on a date determined by the Board.

DSP Entitlements

The Trustee, acting on written instructions from Qantas, will send a notice to a Participant
of any DSP Entitlements which accrue to DSP Shares held by the Trustee on behalf of that
Participant.

Within 7 days of receiving the notice referred to in term 4.1, the Participant may provide
the Trustee with either:

(a) written instructions in the form (if any) prescribed by Qantas to sell some or all of
the DSP Entitlements to the extent permitted by law; or

(b) written instructions in the form (if any) prescribed by Qantas to acquire, to the
extent permitted by law, some or all of the shares or securities in Qantas to which
+ha NCD Tntitlemoente ralate: anAd




4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

6.1

6.2

(c) payment of an amount equal to the cost of accepting the DSP Entitlements
entitlement plus, if the Trustee so requires, such additional amount as the Trustee
estimates (and notifies to the Participant) to be the cost of transferring the shares

or securities to the Participant.

If the Participant does not give a notice under term 4.2, the Trustee is entitled to sell the
DSP Entitlements.

Subject to term 4.5, if the Trustee sells the DSP Entitlements in accordance with term 4.2
or term 4.3, the Trustee must distribute the proceeds of the sale (alter deduction of the
costs of sale incurred by the Trustee) to the Participant.

If the Trustee acquires, on behalf of the Participant, a specified number of shares or
securities pursuant to the DSP Entitlements in accordance with term 4.2(b), the Trustee
will transfer those shares or securities to the Participant. The Trustee may make it a
condition of transfer that the Participant pay the cost of transfer (including stamp duty).

Where the Trustee sells the DSP Entitlements (regardless of whether instructed by the
Participant or not), the Trustee:

(a) has no obligation to maximise the sale price of the DSP Entitlements;
(b) may aggregate Rights to be sold in blocks of DSP Entitlements; and
(c) in relation to its obligation to pay the proceeds of sale to the Participant may

attribute a sale price to each DSP Right sold equal to the aggregate price for each
DSP Right sold in a block of DSP Entitlements. :

Other accretions

+ If an Accretion arises in respect of a DSP Share other than by way of:

(a) Cash Dividend;
(b) Bonus Shares; or

(c) Rights,

the Trustee may in its absolute discretion decide to transfer, or provide the benefit of, all
or such part of the Accretion as the Trustee determines to the Participant.

Voting right

Qantas will make arrangements with the person charged with maintaining the Qantas
Share Register from time to time to have the notices (including the Qantas Annual
Report), or copies of them, that are sent to the registered holders of shares sent to the
Participant as well, so far as is practicable, relevant and lawful.

The Trustee and Qantas, will enable, so far as practicable, relevant and lawful, the
appointment of the Participant or the Participant's nominees (but no more than 2 other
persons) as the Trustee's attorney within the time period allowed, and in the manner
required, by Qantas’ constitution in order to exercise the votes attached to the DSP Shares

held by the Trustee on behalf of the Participant.

)

)
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10.

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Right to attend, speak etc

The appointment of a Participant or the Participant's nominees as the Trustee's attorney as
referred to in term 6.2. will, so far as practicable, relevant and lawful, entitle the
Participant or nominee {as the case may be) to attend and speak and demand a poll or join
in demanding a poll at the relevant meeting of members (or class of members) of Qantas,
and to consent to short notice of such meeting and any resolution to be considered thereat.

Failure to provide information

Qantas and the Trustee will not be liable for the accidental omission to give notice of any
meeting or confirmation or the non-receipt of that notice and confirmation by any
Participating Employee nor will that invalidate or breach the provisions of term 6.1 or 6.2.

How Trustee votes

The Trustee will only cast a vote on any resolution in respect of DSP Shares through its
attorneys (or their nominees) appointed pursuant to term 6.2.

No claim

A Participant will not have any claim against the Trustee or Qantas as a result of the
exercise by the Trustee or Qantas of a power, discretion or determination under terms 6 to

9.
Transfer of DSP Shares

The Trustee must not assign, transfer, sell, encumber or otherwise deal with a DSP Share
except in the circumstances set out in this term 11 or unless compelled by law.

The Participant must not assign, transfer, sell, encumber or otherwise deal with a DSP
Share or any legal or beneficial interest in a DSP Share:

(a) unless and until the DSP Share has been transferred to the Participant in
accordance with this term 11; or ‘

(b) except in the circumstances set out in this term 11.

At the end of the Holding Lock Period, a Participant has until the day 2 months from the
end of the Holding Lock Period to either:

(a) give the Trustee a notice that the Participant wishes to arrange through the Trustee
the sale of all of the DSP Shares held by the Trustee on behalf of the Participant; or

(b) give the Trustee a notice to transfer the DSP Shares held on behalf of the
- Participant to the Participating Employee.

Where the Trustee sells the DSP Shares under this term 11, the Trustee:
(a) has no obligation to maximise the sale price of the DSP Shares;

(b) may sell the DSP Shares with other Shares (whether or not held for the
Participant); and




11.5

11.6

11.7

12.

(c) in relation to its obligation (if any) to pay the proceeds of sale to the Participant,
may:

(i) deduct any costs of the sale before making a payment to the Participant;
and

(ii) attribute a sale price to each DSP Share as the Trustee considers
appropriate.

If the Trustee does not receive a notice in accordance with term 11.3, then the Trustee must
transfer the DSP Shares to the Participant within 1 month of the end of the notice period

referred to in term 11.3.

. A Participant will not have any claim against the Trustee or Qantas as a result of the

exercise by the Trustee of a power, discretion or determination under this term 11.

The requirement or right to transfer DSP Shares under this term is subject to the power of
the Board set out in clause 13.1 of this deed.

Forfeiture

The Board may determine, for the purposes of an Offer of DSP Shares, that the DSP Shares
may be forfeited in the circumstances determined by the Board and notified to Participant

at the time of the offer.

N
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Assistant Company Secretary )
Janine Smith

QANTAS

17 February 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
PO Box 4000

Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam

Form 484 Section C2 - Issue.of shares

Attached for filing is Form 484 Section C — Issue of Shares for Qantas Airways Limited.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate
copy of this letter to me.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me (02 9691 4262).

Yours faithfully

per ms& qure

Janine Smith
Assistant Company Secretary




Australian Securities &
investments Commission

Form 484
Corporations Act 2001

Change to company details

Sections A, B or C may be lodged independently with this signed cover page to notify ASIC of:

A1 Change of address B1 Cease company officeholder C1 Cancellation of shares
AZ Change of name - officeholders or members B2 Appoint company officeholder C2 Issue of shares
A3 Change - ullimate holding company B3 Special purpose company C3 Change to share structure

C4 Changes to the register of niembers

If there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this Jodgement

Company details Company name
[Qantas Airways Limited ]
Refer to gquide for information aboul ACN/ABN Corporate key
corporate key [16 009 661 901 | [20401595 |
\
y,

Who should ASIC contact if there is a query ahout this form?

Name
[Janine Louise Smith J

Lodgement details

ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)

[115 |
Telephone number
[02 9691 4262 ' ]

Postal address
B}antas Centre, Building A, Level 9, 203 Coward Street, Mascot J

INsw, 2020 ]
Total number of pages including this cover sheet Please provide an estimate of the time taken to complete this form,

{__J hrs u mins

Signature
This form must be signed by a current officehoider of the company.

I certify that the information in this cover sheet and the attached sections of this form are true and comptete.
Name

[Brett Johnson J
Capacity
Director
Company secretary
Signature
Date signed
I
D D M M Y V]
Lodgement Send completed and signed forms to: For help or more information
Australian Securities and Invesiments Commission, Telephone 03 5177 3988

PO Box 4000, Gippstand Mail Centre VIC 3841, Email info.enquiries(@asic.oov.au
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Section C completion guide

Standard share codes

Share class code Full fitle

Share class code  Full fitle

Refer to the following table for the share A
class codes for sections C1, €2, C3 and B

C EMP
FOU
LG

MAN
ORD
RED
SPE

A

B..etc
employee's
founder's

life governor's
management
ordinary
redeemable
special

PRF
CumP
NCP
REDP
NRP
CRP
NCRP
PARP

preference

cumulgtive preference

non-cumulative preference

redeemable preference
non-redeemable preference

cumulative redeemable preference
non-cumulative redeemable preference
participative preference

If you are using the standard share class codes you do not need to provide the full title for the shares, just the share class

code.

If you are not using the standard share class code, enter a code of no more than 4 letters and then show the full title.

Sections to complete

Use the table below lo identify the sections of this form fo complete (please indicate the sections that have been completed). Completion of this table is optional.
N\

/

C1 - Cancellation of

C2-lIssue of shares

C3-Changetoshare  C4-Changeto

shares structure table members register
Issue of shares
] Proprietary company Not required v v v/
Public company
. if in response to the Annual Not required V4 v v
company statement .
if not in response to the Annual company statement Not required v Not required Not required
Cancellation of shares .
] Proprietary company v Not required v v
Public company
if in response to the Annual v Not required v . v
company statement
if not in response to the Annual company statement v Not required Not required Nt required
Transfer of shares
D Propriefary company Not required Not required Nol required v
) Public company
il in response to the Annual Not required Not required Not required v
company statement
if not in response to the Annual company statement Not required Not required Not required Not required
Changes to amounts paid
D Proprietary company ot required Not required Ve 4
Not required Not required V4 V4

Public company ‘

it in response 1o the Annual

company statement

if not in respanse to the Annual company statement

Not required

Not required

Not required Not required

Changes to beneficial ownership

D Proprietary company

Public company

if in response to the Annual

cornpany slatement

if not in response to the Annuglt company statement

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required v
Not required v
Not required Not required




)

C1 Cancellation of shares

Reason for cancellation

Please indicate the reason that shares
have been cancelled (select one or more
boxes)

Details of cancelled shares

~—Redeemable preference shares — S.254.

D Redeemed cut of profits

D Redeemed out of proceeds of a fresh issue of shares
[——Capita! reduction — S.256A - S.256E

D Single shareholder company

——D Multiple shareholder company. A Form 2560 must be lodged before & capital reduction takes place
—— Share buy-back. — ss.257H(3)
{ ] Minimum holding buy-back by listed company

[] Other buy-back type. A form 280 or 281 must be lodged at least 14 days, and no more than 1 year before the
share buy-back can lake place

D Forfeited shares — 5.258D
— Shares returned to & public company — s5.258E(2) & (3)

[ ] Under section 651C, 724(2), 737 or 738

[ :] Under section 1325A {court order)

Other
Description

Give section reference

List the details of shares cancelied in the following table
Share class code  Number of shares cancelled Amount paid (cash or otherwise)

Earliest date of change
Please indicate the earliest date that any of the above changes occurred.

IO

D DM M ¥ Y




" (2 lssue of shares

List details of new share issues in the following table.

Share class code  Number of shares issued Amount paid per share ' Amount unpaid per share

ORD 59,177 $3.554 NIL

Earliest date of change
Plezse indicate the earliest date that any of the above changes occurred

[6],(0][2],L0]
D o M W [y Y
if shares were issued for other than cash, were some or all of the shares issued under a written contract?

[:]' Yes

if yes, proprietary companies must also lodge a Form 2072 certifying that alf stamp duties have been paid. Public companies must alsc lodge a Form 2072
) and either a Form 208 or a copy of the contract.

DNO

if no, proprietary companies are not required to provide any further documents with this form. Public companies must also lodge a Form 208.

C3 Change to share structure

Where g change lo the share struclure table has occurred (eg. as a result of the issue or cancellation of shares), please show the updated details for the share classes
affected. Details of share classes not affected by the change are not required here.

- Share Fultitle if not standard Total number of Total amount Total amount
class code ‘ shares (current paid on these unpaid on these
alter changes) shares shares

E

¢

Earliest date of change
Please indicate the earliest date that any of the above changes occurred
D M M [Y Y]

OoO00O0

Lodgement details Is this document being lodged to update the Annual Company Statement that was sent to you?

D Yes
[j No
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C4 Changes to the register of members

Use this section 1o notify changes 1o the register of members for your company (changes to the shareholdings of members):
If there are 20 members or less in a share class, all changes need to be notified
If there are more than 20 members in a share class, oniy changes to the top twenty need be notified (s1788)
If shares are jointly owned, you must also provide names and addresses of all joint owners on a separate sheet (annexure), clearly indicating the share class and

with whom the shares are joinitly owned

The changes apply to D Family name Given names
Please indicate the name and address ! J F j
of the member whose shareholding has
changed OR
D Company name
ACN/ARBN/ ABN

l |

Office, unit, level, or PO Box number -

l )
Street number and Street name

L ]

> Suburb/City

r J State/Territory J
Postcode Couniry (if not Australia)
Earliest date of change Date of change -
Pflfsse; lirl\dic.a!e 129, earliest dalee‘(ljhat any D D/D D/D D
of the following changes occurred. D DM MY Y
The changes are )
Share class Shares Shares Total number  *Total $ paid *Total § Fully paid Beneficially Top 20
code increased by decreasedby  now held on these unpaid {y/n) ' held {y/n) member (y/n)
... (number) ... {number) shares on these
shares

* Public companies are not required lo provide these details

Date of entry of member’s name in Date of entry

register ; D D/D D/D D

(New members only) D D M MY Y




C4 Continued... Further changes to the register of members

Use this section 1o notify changes to the register of members for your company (changes to the shareholdings of members):
If there are 20 members or less in a share ciass, all changes need to be notified
if there are more than 20 members in a share class, only changes to the top twenty need be notified (s178B)
If shares are jointly owned, you must also provide names and addresses of aII joint owners on a separate sheet (annexure), clearly indicating the share class and

with whom the shares are jointly owned

The changes apply to D Family name Given names
Please indicate the name and address l T l
of the member whose shareholding has

changed

D Company name

ACN/ARBN/ ABN
Office, unit, level, or PO Box number

Streel number and Streel name

| J

) Suburb/City
I J State/Territory y
Pastcode Country (if not Australia)
Earliest date of change Date of change
Pflesse; iﬂdic.ate t:e earliest date(ljhat any D D/D D/D D
of the following changes occurred. D DM MY Y
The changes are
Share class Shares Shares Total number ~ *Total § paid *Total $ Fully paid Benéﬂcially Top 20
code increased by decreased by  now held on these unpaid (y/n) held (y/n) member {y/n)
.. [number) .. (number) shares on these
shares

* Public companies are not required to provide these details

Date of entry of member’s name in Date of entry

g m{mjm[mtn

(New members only} © 0] M M [




S Express [ost

(?/2 /o5
Assistant Company Secretary
" Janine Smith

QANTAS

17 February 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
PO Box 4000

Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam

Form 484 Section C2 - Issue of shares

Attached for filing is Form 484 Section C — Issue of Shares for Qantas Airways Limited.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate
copy of this letter to me.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me (02 9691 4262).

Yours faithfully

MM las oSN

Janine Smith
Assistant Company Secretary

Pl A O AA P




Ausﬁalian Securities &

Investments Commission

Form 484
Corporations Act 2001

Change to company details

Sections A, B or C may be lodged independently with this signed cover page to notify ASIC of:

A1 Change of address
A2 Change of name - officeholders or members
A3 Change - ultimate holding company

C1 Cancellation of shares

1,2 Issue of shares

C3 Change to share structure

C4 Changes o the register of members

B1 Cease company officeholder
B2 Appoint company officeholder
B3 Special purpose company

If there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this lodgement

Company details

Refer to guide for information about
corporate key

\

Company name

(Qantas Alrways Limited
ACN/ABN

[16 009 661 901

Corporate key
| |20401595

Lodgement details

Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form?

Name
[Janine Louise Smith ‘

|
]

ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)
l115

Telephone number
02 9691 3456

Postal address
LQantas Centre, Building A&, Level 9, 203 Coward Street, Mascot, J

il

Please provide an estimate of tha time taken to complete this form.
, }hrs[:m ]mins

E\Iew South Wales, 2020

Total number of pages including this cover sheet

Signhature

This form mus! be signed by a current officeholder of the company.

)

| cerlify that the information in this cover sheet and the attached sections of this form are true and complete.
Name
l Brett Stuart Johnson

Capacity
Director

Company secrelary

Signature

Date signed

Lodgement

Send completed and signed forms to:
Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
PO Box 4000, Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841.

For help or more information
Telephone 03 5177 3968
Emeail info.enquiries@asic.qov.au
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Section C completion guide

Standard share codes Share class code Full title Share class code  Full title

Reler 1o the following table for the share A A PRF preference

class codes for sections C1, C2, C3 and B B .elc CUMP cumulative preference

ce EMP employee’s NCP non-cumulative preference
FOU founder’s REDP redeemable preference
LG life governor’s NRP non-redeemable preference
MAN management CRP cumulative redeemable preference
ORD ordinary NCRP non-cumulalive redeemable preference
RED redeemable , PARP participative preference
SPE special

If you are using the standard share class codes you do not need to provide the full title for the shares, just the share class
code.

If you are not using the standard share class code, enter a code of no more than 4 letters and then show the full title.

Sections to complete
Use the table below to identify the sections of this form to complete (please indicate the sections that have been completed). Completion of this table is optional.

4
C1- Cancellationof  C2- Issue of shares C3-Changetoshare C4-Changeto

shares structure table members register

lssue of shares
Proprietary company Not required V4 J/ /

Public company

if in response to the Annual Not required v v v
company statement

if not in response to the Annual company statement Not required v Not required Not required
Cancellation of shares
Proprietary company v/ Not required v v
Public company
if in response o the Annual V4 Not required Ve v
company statement
if not in response 1o the Annual company statement v Not required Not required Not required
Transter of shares

Not required Not required Not required v

Proprietary company

Public company
if in response to the Annual Not required Not required Not required v

company statemeni

if not in responise to the Annual company statement Not required Not required Not required Not required

Changes to amounts paid
Proprietary company Not required Not required 4 e

Public company
if in response fo the Annual Not required Not required s v

company stalement

it not in response 10 the Annual company statement Not required Not required Not reguired Not required

Changes to beneficial ownership

Proprietary company Not required Not required Not reguired v

Public company

it in response lo the Annual Not required Not required Not required v
company statement
Not required Not required Not required Not required

wm m[} EE\TD 5—5)5 L0

if not in response to the Annual company stetement

Ta nmdibs ALY Ahand A Adidainme mr anmiiareinn of A Alace Af charoe untl miied InAAs » fnrm 2191 uithin 98 Anue Af tha ~rhanAs AerFrinA
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C1 Cancellation of shares

Reason for cancellation

Please indicate the reason that shares
have been cancelled (select one or more
boxes)

Details of cancelled shares

[—Redeemable preference shares — §.254J

EJ Redeemed out of profits

I: ] Redeemed out of proceeds of a fresh issue of shares
—— Capital reduciion — $.256A - 5.256E

[: Single shareholder company

——D Multiple shareholder company. A Form 2560 must be lodged before a capital reduction takes place
—— Share buy-back. — s5.257H(3)
I Minimum holding buy-back by listed company

D Other buy-back type. A form 280 or 281 must be lodged at least 14 days, and no more than 1 year before the
share buy-back can {ake place

D Forfeited shares — §.258D

Shares returned to a public company — ss.258E(2) & (3)
ED Under section 6‘51 C,724(2), 737 or 738
_D Under section 1325A (court order)

Other
Description

Give seclion reference

List the details of shares cancelled in the following table
Share class code  Number of shares cancelled  Amount paid (cash or otherwise)

Earliest date of change
Please indicate the earliest date that any of the above changes occurred.

DI

O 0 ™M M ¥ Y




C2 Issue of shares

List details of new share issues in the following table.

Share class code  Number of shares issued Amount paid per share Amount unpaid per share

ORD 1,867,790,699% $2.17 N/A

Earliest date of change

Please indicate the earliest dale that any of the above changes occurred

Lol [ (2] o], Lo} [«]

O D M M Y V]

If shares were issued for olher than cash, were some or all of the shares issued under a wrillen contraci?

D Yes

if yes, proprietary companies must also lodge a Form 207Z certifying that all stamp duties have been paid. Public companies must also lodge a Form 2072
. and either a Form 208 or a copy of the contracl.

DNO

if no, proprietary companies are not required to provide any further documents with this form. Public companies must also lodge a Form 208.

C3 Change to share structure

Where a change to the share structure table has occurred (eg. as a result of the issue or cancellation of shares), please show the updated details for the share classes
affected. Details of share classes not affected by the change are not required here.

Share Full title if not standard Total number of Total amount Total amount
class code shares (current paid on these unpaid on these
after changes) shares shares

"]Earliest date of change
Please indicate the earliest date that any of the above changes occurred
O O M M [y Y

I

Lodgement details Is this document being lodged to update the Annual Company Statement that was sent to you?

Yes
[ o




C4 Changes to the register of members

Use this section to notify changes io the register of members for your company {changes to the shareholdings of members):
If there are 20 members or less in a share class, all changes need to be notified
If there are more than 20 members in a share class, only changes to the top twenty need be nofified (5178B)
If shares are jointly owned, you must also provide names and addresses of all joint owners on a separale sheet (annexure), clearly indicating the share class and

with whom the shares are jointly owned

The changes apply to D Family name Given names

Please indicate the name and address L J L J

of the member whose shareholding has

changed OR
D Company name
I:**** Please see Annexure 'R'x**xi J
ACN/ARBN/ ABN

Office, unit, level, or PO Box number
Street number and Street name

I |

;

) Suburb/City
! I State/Territory
Postcode Country {if not Australia)
Earliest date of change Date of change
Pf!a:ss? llr;dlgate “r:e earliest date (tjhat any n/ /E:I
of the following changes occurred. DOl M MY Y
The changes are .
Share class Shares Shares Total number  *Total $ paid *Tota! Fully paid Beneficially Top 20
code increased by decreasedby  now held on these unpaid (y/n) held (y/n) member (y/n)
... {number) ... (number) shares on these
shares

* Public companies are not required to provide these details

Date of entry of member’s name in Date of entry

register D DID D/D D
b0

{New members only) M M Y Vv




C4 Continued... Further changes to the register of members

Use this section 1o notify changes to the register of members for your company {changes to the shareholdings of members):
If there are 20 members or less in a share class, alt changes need to be notified
If there are more than 20 members in a share class, only changes to the 1op twenty need be notified (5178B)
If shares are jointly owned, you must also provide names and addresses of alf joint owners on a separate sheet (annexure), clearly indicating the share class and
with whom the shares are jointly owned

The changes apply to D Family name Given names
Please indicate the name and address L J !

of the member whose shareholding has
changed OR

D Company name

ACN/ARBN/ ABN

l

Office, unit, level, or PO Box number

Street number and Street name

| . |

.\J Suburb/City
l ’ State/Territory ‘
Postcode Country (if not Australia)
Earliest date of change Dale of change

Please indicale the earliesl date that any D D/D D/D D
D

of the following changes occurred. DM MY Y

The changes are

Share class Shares Shares Total number  *Total § paid *Tolal § Fully paid Beneficially Top 20
code increased by decreased by  now held on these unpaid (y/n} held {y/n) member (y/n)
... (number) ... {(number) shares on these
shares

* Public companies are not required to provide these details

Date of entry of member's name in Date of entry

register D I:l/l:] D/D
D

(New members only) DM M Y VY
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Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith

QLGNTAS

2 March 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
Level 18

1 Martin Place

Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

In accordance with Class Order 03/184, please find attached the documentation provided from 1
March 2005 to approximately 160 Participants in relation to the grant of performance rights

under the Deferred Share Plan — 2004/05 Performance Rights Plan (Plan).

Participants will be provided with a package which contains the following documents:

. Holding Statement;
. Terms & Conditions of the Plan; and
. Rules of the Plan.

During February, participants, were aiso provided with a general information sheet on the Plan —
“Performance Rights Plan General Information”. A copy of this document is also enclosed. This
document is supplementary to the “Executive Performance Plan — General Information Booklet”
distributed to executives from 24 January 2005 (refer to my correspondence of same date).

Accompanying the 1 March documentation is a consolidated “Summary of Holdings” which sets
out the tradable and non-tradable balances of participants’ interests in all Qantas’ employee
incentive plans to date. A pro-forma is attached for your reference.

Enclosed: Holding Statement
Terms & Conditions
Rules of the Pian
Performance Rights Plan — General Information
Summary of Holdings

Receipt Acknowledged

77«,'”
for Australian Securities & Investments Comnissjes




Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith

QANTAS

2 March 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

Level 18
1 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Sir

Qantas Deferred Share Plan

In accordance with Class Order 03/184, please find attached the documentation provided from 1
March 2005 to approximately 160 Participants in relation to the grant of performance rights

under the Deferred Share Plan — 2004/05 Performance Rights Plan (Plan).

Participants will be provided with a package which contains the following documents:

. Holding Statement;
. Terms & Conditions of the Plan; and
. Rules of the Plan.

During February, participants, were also provided with a general information sheet on the Plan —
“Performance Rights Plan General Information”. A copy of this document is also enclosed. This
document is supplementary to the “Executive Performance Plan — General Information Booklet”
distributed to executives from 24 January 2005 (refer to my correspondence of same date).

Accompanying the 1 March documentation is a consolidated “Summary of Holdings” which sets
out the tradable and non-tradable balances of participants’ interests in all Qantas’ employee
incentive plans to date. A pro-forma is attached for your reference.

Janiné L/Smith
Assistant Company Secretary

Enclosed: Holding Statement
Terms & Conditions
Rules of the Plan
Performance Rights Plan - General Information
Summary of Holdings

Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities & Investments Comnffi' Siot



Qantas Airways Limite

ABN 16 009 661 90

Qantas Share Registr

Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney, NSW, 200
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South, NSW, 123
Telephone: 1800 177 74

International: 61 2 8280 739

Facsimile: 02 9287 030

ASX Code: QA

Email: registry@qgantas.cor

Website: www.gantas.cor

[NAME] ASX CODE: ' QA!
[ADDRESS] SRN: ISRN
[ADDRESS] TFN: [QUOTED Y/N
[ADDRESS]

STATEMENT DATE: 21 FEBRUARY 200:
PAGE NUMBER: :

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN (DSP)
2004/05 PERFORMANCE RIGHTS PLAN

DATE NUMBER OF TAXABLE
OF RIGHTS GRANTED? VALUEZ
GRANT
13/01/2005 [NUMBER] [NUMBER X $3.6819]

1. As setoutlin the 2004/05‘ erfermance Rrghts.PIan Rules there isa; Performance Hurdle which must be met prior to
the vesting of the Perfor R e Rigk after the Performance Hurdle set has been

Participanis canrequest-t it.th an Rules).

The Terms & Conditions’ and t_he Plan Rules are attached to thss statem_ent

2. The Taxable Value of the nghts is caIcu!ated usmg a- 7 calendar day VWAP for aII Qantas Shares traded on the
ASX up to and inciuding 13 January 2005 {$3.6819).

Note:
This stalement only records your securities granted under the 2004/05 Performance Rights Plan on 13 January 2005.




-~ QANTAS
DEFERRED SHARE PLAN

TERMS & CONDITIONS

Tabled and approved at the Annual General Meeting
of Qantas Airways Limited on 17 October 2002

7 o I 4‘_}/":t Kl W,
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" Margaret Jackson
/" /Chairman

.
/7




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN
TERMS & CONDITIONS

INTRODUCTION

Name of Plan

This Plan is called the '‘Qantas Deferred Share Plan’.

Object of Plan

The object of the Plen is fo:

align the interests of Eligible Employees and Shareholders;

assist in making remuneration packages of Eligible Employees consistent with markel practice
by providing an opportunity 1o invest in Qanlas;

provide a medium-term incentive for the retention of Eligible Employees; and

iii.
iv. support the cullure of employee share ownership.

Function of Plan

The Plan provides for the offer of an incentive 1o Eligible Employees in the form of DSP Shares and
Rights. Generally, Participants will have to pay for the DSP Shares, bul not for the Shares issued or
delivered on the conversion of Righls. Generally, the vesting and conversion of Rights to Shares will
be conditional on the Eligible Employee remaining an employee of the Group for a set period
(generally two years) from the relevant Dale of Registration and any Vesting Condilions being

salisfied.

- Commencement of Plan

The Plan will commence operation on the date the Plan is approved by Shareholders (17 October
2002).
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Definitions
In these Terms & Conditions and any Rules unless the coniext otherwise requires, the following
expressions have the following meanings:

EXPRESSION . MEANING

ASX Australian Slock Exchange Limited (ABN 98 008 624 691), or the
market conducled by il.

Board the directors of Qanias acling 2s a board or any commiltee of the
board or person {o whom any authorily has been delegated under

clause 10.4.

with respect fo @ DSP Share or Righi, the dale that the Participani

Date of Registration
acquires alegal or beneficial interest.

Shares acquired under clauses 3.1i(2) or 3.1i(b) while they remain

DSP Shares
subject to these Terms & Conditions.

Eligible Employee employees and execulive directors of the Group whom the Board



p—

EXPRESSION

Holding Lock Pericd

Law

l.egal Personal
Representative

Listing Rules
Offer

Participant

Plan

- Qantas

Redundancy

Right

Rules

Security Interest

Shareholder

Shares

Special Circumstances

MEANING

in relation to DSP Shares, the period commencing on the Date of
Registration and expiring two years after the Date of Registration,

unless:
(a8)  otherwise specified by the Board at the time of the Offer; or

{b)  Special Circumstances exist for the relevant Parlicipant.

any applicable sialule, regulation, by-law, ordinance or subordinaie

legislation in force from time to time in the relevant jurisdiction,

including common law and equity, as applicable from time to time.

(2)  the executor of the will or an administrator of the estate of a
deceased person; ‘ :
{b) thetrusiee of the estate of a person under a legal disability; or

(c) eny bheneficiary of the esiate of the deceased person as
nominated by the executor, adminisirator or trustee.

the official listing rules of the ASX.
an offer to one or more Eligible Employees to parlicipate in the Plan.

a person who acquires a legal or beneficial interest in DSP Shares or
Rights under this Plan and includes the Legal Personal

Representative of the person.

the Qantas Deferred Share Plan governed by these Terms &
Conditions {including any Rules).

Qantas Airways Limited (ABN 16 009 661 901).

a termination or cessation of a Parlicipant’s employment or office with
a member of the Group as a resull of redundancy, as determined by

the Board. '

aright greanted under clause 3.1i{c) to receive, subject to these Terms
& Conditions, the number of Shares specified at the time of the offer

of that right.
any rules made by the Board pursuani fo clause 10.1ii.

a morilgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance or other third party
interest of any nalure.

a shareholder of Qantas.

fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of Qanias.

with respeci {o a Participant:

(g)  Tolal and Permanent Disablement:

(b}  death;
{c)  termination of employment with any member of the Group by

reason of the atlainment of such age of retirement as
getermined by the Board;

{d)  Redundancy; or

(e) such other circumstances the Board may at any fime




2.2

3.1

EXPRESSION

Subsidiary

Tax

Terms & Conditions

Total and Permanent
Disablement

Vesting Date

Vesting Conditions

Interpretation

In these Terms and Conditions:

jii.

Vi,

OPERATION OF THE PLAN

MEANING

a body corporate of which Qanias is a holding company in terms of
section 9 and Division 6 of Part 1.2 of the Corporations Act.

includes any tax {whether direct er indirect), levy, impost, deduclion,
charge, rate, conlribution, duty or withholding which is assessed (or
deemed to be assessed), levied, imposed or made by any
government or any governmental, semi-governmenial or judicial
entity or authority together with any inlerest, penalty, fine, charge, fee
or olher emouni 2ssessed (or deemed {0 be assessed), levied,
imposed or made on or in respect of any or all of the foregoing.

the ferms & conditions governing the operafion of the Plan set out in
this instrument, as amended from time to time. '

in relation to a Participant, that the Participani has, in the opinion of
the Board, become permanently incapacilated to such an extent as o
render the Participant unable or, in the opinion of the Board, unlikely
to again engage in the Participant’s primary occupation.

in relation to Rights, unless otherwise specified by the Board at the
time of the Offer, iwo years from the Date of Registration.

in relation to Rights, any conditions set by the Board when making an
Offer of Rights pursuant {o clause 3.7i(c).

headings are for convenience only and do not affect the interpretation of these Terms &

Conditions;

unless the context otherwise requires, words dencting the singular include the plural and vice

versa;

references 1o any legislation or any provision of any legislation include any modification or re-
enactment of the legislation or any legislative provision substituted for, and all legislation and

statulory instruments and regulations issued under, the legislation;

Conditions; and

Offer

where any word or phrase is given g defined meaning in ihese Terms & Conditions, any pari of
speech or other grammatical form of thaf word or phrase has a corresponding meaning;

a reference 1o a clause or paragraph is a reference 10 a clause or paragraph in these Terms &

the words ‘including’ or ‘includes’ means ‘including (or includes as applicable) without limilation’.

Subjec! to these Terms and Conditions:

I

the Boerd may from time to time do all or any of the following under the Plan:

(2)

(b)

offer an Eligible Employee the opportunity fo acquire, by subscription or purchase, DSP
Shares as pari of the Eligible Employee's bonus,;
offer an Eligible Employee the opportunity 1o acquire, by subscription or purchase, DSP



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

an Offer shall be in such form and conlent and subject to such conditions and Rules as the
Board determines, including, if applicable:

(8) & Holding Lock Period for DSP Shares: and

(b) & Vesting Date and Vesfing Conditions for Rights.

DSP Shares and Righis Subject to the Plan
DSP Shares and Rights will be subject ta these Terms and Conditions until;
in relation to DSP Shares, the expiry of the relevant Holding Lock Period; and

i. in relation o Rights, the earlier of: A
(2) the delivery of Shares in respect of Rights which have vested, in accordance with clause

6.2, or
(b) the lapse of the relevant Rights in accordance with clause 7.
Binding Nature of These Terms & Conditions
The Plan shail operate in accordance with these Terms & Conditions, which bind Qantas and each

Participant.

Consideration for DSP Shares

The Board shall determine from time to time the aclual or @ means of calculating the consideration for
DSP Shares issued or purchased pursuant to clauses 3.1i(a) or (b).

Consideration for Rights

Unless otherwise determined by the Board when meaking & grent of Rigms under clause 3.7i(c), no
amount shall be.payable by 2 Participant in respect of the grant of Rights or for Shares delivered 1o a

‘Participant upon conversion of a Right.

Issue or Purchase of DSP Shares

Shares 1o be acquired by a Participant under the Plan may b'e delivered 1o a Participant by, ai the
absolute discretion of the Board, the issue or purchase of Shares on behalf of the Parlicipant.

Ranking of Shares

Shares delivered under the Plan will rank equally with all existing Shares on and from the Date of
Registration in respect of all Shareholder entitlements (including rights issues, bonus share issues and
dividends) which have a record dale for determining eniiflements on or afier the date of issue of those

Shares.

LIMITATIONS ON OFFERS OF DSP SHARES OR RIGHTS

Overriding Restrictions

Notwithstanding anything else in these Terms & Conditions or any Rules, the Plan must be operaied in
accordance with the Constitution of Qantas, any Law and the Listing Rules.

Rights Personal to Participant

Rights are personal 1o the Parlicipant and are not transferable and no legal or equilable interest in a
Right may be zssigned to any other person or body corporate except lo the extent necessary to
enable & Participant’s Legal Personal Representalive tc be delivered Shares represented by Righis in

accorgance with clause 6.2




4.3

4.4

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

Security inferests Over DSP Shares

Perticipents must not dispose of or grant any Security Interest over or otherwise deal with any DSP

Shares.

Security Inferests Over Righis

Participants must not dispose of or grant any Security Interest over or otherwise deal with any Rights
or any legal or equilable inieres! in any Rights.

HOLDING STATEMENTS

As soon as practicable after the issue or delivery of DSP Shares or the grant of‘Rights, Qantas must
forward to the Participant 2 holding slalement which will include the following information (if

applicable):

the Date of Registration;
the fotal number of DSP Shares acquired by the Participant;

the total number of Righls granted to the Participant;
the Holding Lock Period in the case of DSP Shares;

iv.
v. the Vesting Date {in the case of Rights); and
vi. any other information or documents required to be notified to the Participant by any Law or the

Listing Rules.

VESTING AND CONVERSION OF RIGHTS

No Interest

A grant of Righls does not confer any legal or equitable interest in Shares represented by the Rights
uniil the relevant Vesting Date and any Vesting Conditions have been satisfied.

Vesting and Conversion of Rights

As soon as praclicable after the relevant Vesting Date and provided the Participant was an employee
of the Group from the Date of Registration fo the Vesting Dale and any Vesting Conditions have been
satisfied, the Rights vest and Qantas must issue, or procure the purchase of and deliver, 1o 2
Participant the number of Shares into which the Rights held by that Participant convert.

LAPSE OF RIGHTS

Circumstances of Lapse

Subject to clauses 7.3 and 7.3, Rights held by & Participant automatically lepse if:

i, the Participant ceases {o be employed by the Group before the relevant Vesting Date; or
if. the Vesting Conditions (if any) have not been satisfied by the Vestling Date.
Special Circumstances

Where, due to Special Circumstances, a Parlicipant has ceased to be employed by the Group before
the Vesting Date, the Rights held by that Parlicipant vest:

in the case of any of the events in paragraphs (a)-(c) inclusive in the definition of Special
Circumstances, on the day afler the Parlicipant ceases o be an employee of the Group; or

im ithe race nf anv event in paraaraph (e) in the definition of Special Circumstances on the dale



N~

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

Discretion of Board

Clauses 7.1 and 7.2 are subject to the Board allowing a Perticipant o convert all or any Rights held by
that Participant to Shares, whether or not the Rights have vesled and whether or not the Rights have

lapsed or would otherwise have lapsed.

Effect of lapse
Subject to clauses 7.2 and 7.3, on a Right lapsing, all rights of a2 Parlicipant under the Plan in respect
of the Right cease and no consideration or compensation will be payable for or in relation 1o that lapse.

QUQOTATION OF SHARES AND RIGHTS

No Quotation of Rights

Qantas will not seek official guotation by ASX of any Rights.

Quolation of Shares

Qanias will apply to the ASX for official quotation of any Shares issued:

i. under clauses 3.1i(a) and {b); and
ii. on the conversion of Rights in accordance with clause 6.2.

PRO RATA ISSUES, RECONSTRUCTIONS OF CAPITAL AND TAKEOVERS

Participation

In respect of Righis, a Participani may nol participate in:

new issues of securities to Shareholders;
i, bonus issues of Shares or other securities 1o Shareholders; or

iii. any issue by Qanias of Shares or other securities pro-rala to Shareholders.

"Reorganisations

If there is any reorganisalion of the issued share capital of Qanias, the number of Rights {o which each
Participant is entitled will be reorganised as required by the Listing Rules in force at the time of the
reorganisation and in 2 manner which will not result in any benefits being conferred on the Participants
which are not conferred on Shareholders (subject to any provisions with respect to rounding permiited
by the Listing Rules), but in all other respects the terms for the conversion of Rights will remain

unchanged.

Takeovers and Compromise Arrangements

i

i a tekeover bid is made to acquire some or all of the Shares; or

ii. under Part 5.1 of the Corporations Act, the Court sanctions & compromise or arrangement
proposed for the purpose of, or in connection with, a scheme for the reconstruction of Qantes or
its amalgamation with any other body corporate,

which:

in the case of paragraph (2), has resulted in one person becoming, directly or indirecily, legally

or beneficially entitled to 50% or more of the Shares; or
h (b), il implemenied, would result in one person becoming, directly or

~enditl s A BOACL oA rare A A ClaAarmae

iv. in the case of paragraep

e L atAall




10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

Administration in Accordance with Terms & Conditions

The Board:
i will operate, conlrol and adminisler the Plan in accordance with these Terms & Conditions; and
may make and amend rules for the operation, control and administration of the Plan and any
matter incidenizl o the Plan.

ii.

Discretion

A determination, decision, approval or opinion of the Board under these Terms & Conditions {or any
Rules) will be in the absolute unfeftered discretion of the Board.

Decision Final

In the absence of manifest error, the determination, decision, approval or opinion of the Board will be
final. Any calculetions or adjustments which are required to be made under the Plan will be made by
the Board and will, in the absence of manifest error, be final and conclusive and binding on the

Parlicipanis.

Delegation by Board

The Board may delegate such funclions and powers as they consider appropriate for the efficient
administration of the Plan {o persons whom ihey reasonably believe 10 be capable of performing those
functions and exercising those powers.

Notices

Notices:

may be given by Qantas to Participanis in such manner as the Board may from lime to time

determine;
given by a Participant to Qantas under these Terms & Conditions must be in writing:

(2) directed io;

Company Secretary
Qantas Airways Limiled

Qantaes Cenire Building A, Level @
203 Coward Street

MASCOT NSW 2020

AUSTRALIA
Facsimile: (612) 9691 3339;

{b)  hand delivered or sen! by prepaid post or facsimile to thal address; and

(c) areiaken to be received:
A if hand delivered, on delivery;
B. if sent by prepaid post, five business days after the dale of posting; or

if sent by facsimile, when the sender's facsimile system generates @ message
confirming successful transmission of the total number of pages of the notice,
unless Qanias inferms the sender within three business days that it has noi

received the entire notice.

C.

AMENDMENT TO TERMS & CONDITIONS



12,

13.

131

13.2

14,

15.

15.1

15.2

RIGHTS OF PARTICIPANTS

Nothing in these Terms & Condilions:
confers on an Eligible Employee the right 1o receive any DSP Shares or be granied Rights;
confers on a Perticipant the right to continue as an employee of the Group;

affecis any rights which the Group may have to terminate the employment of any Participant;

may be used 1o increzse damages in any action brought against the Group in respect of any

iv.
lermination of employment wilh the Group; or

v, confers on any Participant the right 1o receive any Shareholder enlillement (including rights
issues, bonus share issues and dividends (whether or not declared)) before a Right is converled

and Shares delivered.
COSTS AND EXPENSES

Cosis of Qanias

Subject fo clauses 3.1, 3.4 and 3.5, Qantas will pay all costs and expenses in relation to the
eslablishment and operalion of the Plan, including all cosls and expenses in relation to the delivery of
DSP Shares, Righis or Shares delivered pursuant lo a2 conversion of Rights (DSP Securities) excepl
that Qantas is not responsible for any Taxes which may become payable in connection with the

delivery of DSP Securilies or any other dealing with DSP Securities.

Costs of Participant
Each Participant will pay all costs and expenses in relation to the sale of any Shares acquired under

the Plan.
TERMINATION AND.SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN

The Board may, by notice in writing 1o all Participants, terminafe or suspend the Plan at any lime,
provided that terminalion or suspension does not affect or prejudice the existing rights of Participants

ai that {ime.

CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION

Choice of law
The Pian and the rights of the Perticipenis thereunder zre governed by the laws of and applicable in

the State of New South Wales, Australia.

Jurisdiction

Each Participent irrevocably and unconditionally submits o the exclusive jurisdiction of the courls of
the Siate of New South Wales, Australia and courls eniiled 1o hear appeals from those courts.
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RIGHTS OF PARTICIPANTS

Nothing in these Terms & Condilions:
I confers on an-Eligible, Employee the right to receive any DSP Sheres or be granied Rights;
confers on & Participant the right to continue as an employee of the Group;

affects any rights which the. Group may have {o lerminate the employment of any Participant;

may be used to increase damages in any action brought against the Group in respect of any

iv.
terminaiion of employment with the Group; or

v, confers on any Parlicipani the right 1o receive any Shareholder entitlement (including rights
issues, bonus share issues anc dividends (whether or not declared)) before a Right is converled

and Shares delivered.
COSTS AND EXPENSES

Costs of Qantas

Subject 1o clauses 3.1, 3.4 and 3.5, Qanias will pay 2ll cosis and expenses in relation fo ihe
establishment and operation of the Plan, including all costs and expenses in relation to the delivery of
«DSP-Shares, Rights, or Shares delivered pursuant to a conversion of Rights (DSP Securities) except

“thatl Ganiss i holifesponsible for any Taxes which may become payable in connection with the

delivery of DSP Securities or any ofher dealing with DSP Securities.

13.2 Costs of Participant

14.

15.

15.1

Each Pariicipant will pay all costs and expenses in relation to the sale of any Shares acquired under
the Plan.
TERMINATION AND.SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN

The Board may, by notice in wriling to all Parlicipants, terminate or suspend the Plan al any time,

provided that termination or suspension does not affect ar prejudice the existing rights of Participants
.althat time. ‘

TE T .
CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION

Choice of law
The Plan and the rights of the Participenis thereunder are governed by the laws of and applicable in

the State of New South Wales, Australia.

15.2 Jurisdiction

Each Parlicipant irrevocably and uncondilionally submils 1o the exclusive jurisdiciion of the couris of
the State of New South Wales, Australia and courls entitled 1o hear appeals from those courts.
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QANTAS DEFERRED SHARE PLAN
2004/05 PERFORMANCE RIGHTS PLAN RULES

The following Rules of the Qanias Deferred Share Plan {Plan) are subject 10, and must be read in
conjunction with, the Terms & Conditions of the Plan, Capitalised terms in these Rules have the

same meaning s in the Terms & Conditions.

The Board of Qantas has absolute discretion with respect 10 the operation, control and administration
of the Plan as well as any mafier incidental to the Plan.

1. Background
1.1 The Terms & Conditions were approved by Shareholders at the 2002 Annual General Meeting.
1.2 These Rules have been adopted in accordance with clause 10.1ii of the Terms & Conditions
and apply in respect of the 2004/05 grant of Rights (Performance Rights) to Eligible Employees
(excluding Executive Directors) of Qantas (Participants) as part of their long-term incentive.
These Rules are extra conditions for the purposes of clause 3.1ii of the Terms & Conditions.
1.3 The operation of the Plan will be subject 1o review by the Board who, in its absolute discretion,
may:
i vary these Rules; or
ii. make an offer subject to additional conditions.
2. Grani of Pertformance Righis
2.1 Perlormance Rights are granted to Participanis under these Rules:
i by the Board when the offer is to be made to Qantas Executive General Managers
{EGMs); or
i, by the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) when the offer is 1o be made to other Eligible
Employees:
2.2 Parlicipants who are granted Performance Rights will receive a holding statement.
2.3 Participants will also be notified of the 'taxable value’ of the Performance Rights.
3. Vesting Dale and Vesting Conditions
Generally, and subject to Rules 5 and 6, Performance Rights will vest following the tenth
anniversary from the date of allocation:
i to the extent the Vesting Conditions (Performance Hurdies) are achieved; and
ii. provided the Participant remains employed by the Qantas Group at the date of vesting.
4. Pertformance Hurgles
4.1. The Performance Hurdles (as set out in Attachment 1) will be first tested as at 30 June 2007.

The Perlermance Hurdles will be re-tested at quarterly intervals over the subsequent two year
period as at the following dates (each a 'Testing Date’):

. 30 September 2007;

. 31 December 2007;

. 31 March 2008; ,
. 30 June 2008; .

. 30 September 2008;

. 31 December 2008;

P T N A T
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. 30 June 2009.

H, at any Testing Date, testing confirms that part of the Performance Hurdle is achieved, each
Participant will receive {within 2 reascnable period of time) an vpdated Holding Staternent
indicating the extent that the Performance Hurdle has been achieved.

Vesiing and Conversion of Performance Righis

5.1.

5.2

5.3.

5.4.

Subject to achievement of the Performance Hurdles, a Participant may request that the Board
exercises its discretion o vest Performance Rights. Vesting of Performance Righis will be only
10 the extent that the Performance Hurdles set out in Rule 4.1 have been achieved.

A Participant mekes his/her request to the Board under Rule 5.1 by completing a Reguest 10
Vest Performance Rights in the form ol Aachment 2. The Board must not unreasonably

withhold its exercise of discretion under Rule 5.1.

Performance Rights which vest in accordance with either Rules 3 or 5.1, will be converted to
Shares within a reasonable period of time (at no cost 1o the Participant). Each Participant will

be notified when their respective Perlormance Rights are converted 1o Shares.

Any Shares 10 be allocated 1o Participants in respect of vested Performance Rights under this
Plan will, subject to compliance by Qantas of the inside informaticn provisions of the

Corporations Act, be acquired on-marketl.

Lapse of Performance Righis

6.1

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5

Unless the Board otherwise determines, any Periormance Rights granied that have not vested
in accordance with either Rules 3 or 5, will lapse if the Participant:

ceases employment with the Qantas Group (including 1or Redundancy); or
commits an act ol gross misconduct in relation to the Qantas Group. "Gross misconduct”

means an act or omission justitying summary dismissal.

Rule 8.1i. will not apply if the Participant is employed by the Group after any Testing Date
provided the Participant completes a Request 10 Vest Periormance Right prior 1o cessation of
employment with the Qantas Group. In this instance, the number of Performance Rights that
Parlicipant is entitled to Request to Vest in accordance with Rule 4, will be determined to the
extent that the Perlormance Hurdle (if any) which has been achieved in respect of any Testing

Date prior to cessation of employment with the Qantas Group.

After lesting the Perlormance Hurdle in accordance with Rule 4, any Performance Righis for
which the Performance Hurdle is not met will lapse after the testing as at 30 June 2009.

On a Performance Right lapsing, all rights of a Paricipant under the Pian in respect of the
Performance Right cease and no consideration or compensation will be payable for or in

relation 1o that lapse.
Where, due to Special Circumstances (other than Redundancy in which case Rule 6.1 applies),

& Participant ceases to be employed by the Group belore the achievement of the Performance
Hurdle, the CEQO has (at that time) an zbsolute discretion 1o resclve (if he/she believes it is

appropriate) ihat the Rights vest:

in the case of any of the events in paragraphs (a)-(c) inclusive in the definition of Special

i.
Circumstances, on the day after the Participant ceases 1o be an employee of the Group;

or ,
in the case of any event in paragraph () in the definition of Special Circumsiances, on

the date that the CEO determines that 2 Special Circumstance exisis or such other date
that the CEO determines is eppropriaie.
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7. Adminisiration
The CEO, Chief Financial Otfficer, EGM People and the Company Secrelary are each
delegated authority 1o epprove in wriling the taking such action as may be reasonably
necessary or desirable to implement or eflect the offer, including without limitaticn:
i. approval of any Reguest to Vest Performance Rights in accordance with Rule 5.2; and
i, authorising the purchase {on-market) of the Shares required to meet the obligation on

the conversion of the Rights.

8. Conflict
If there is a conflict between any part of these Rules and the Terms & Conditions of the Plan,
the Terms & Conditions prevail.

a. Currency of these Rules
No offer under these Rules is to be made after 30 June 2005.

10.  Qanias Employee Share Trading Policy (Insider Trading)

All Participants must comply with the requirements of the Qantas Employee Share Trading

_ Policy, conteined in the Qanias Code of Conduct.
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Attachment 1
Performance Hurdles
In respect of the 2004/05 Performance Rights Plan, the number of Performance Rights which may be
vested will be determined by relerence 1o the percentile performance of Qantas in comparison to:
companies with ordinary shares included in the S&P/ASX100 Index as at 20 October 2004

(ASX100); and
2. a basket of global listed airlines (Airlines).

1.

Companies with Ordinary Shares Included in the S&P/ASX100 Index

Up 10 one-half of the total number of Performance Rights granied to a Participant may be converied in
accordance with the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) of Qantas in comparison o the ASX100

(contained in Annexure 1) as follows:

Qantas TSR Performance Compared 1o the Satisfaclion of Performance Hurdle

Relevant Target

010 25" percentile Nil

25" to 49" percentile Delault nil, but subject to Board discretion

50" t0 74" percentile Sliding scale: 50% 1o 99% satisfied

100% satisfied

75" 10 100" percentile

Basket of Globa) Listed Airlines

Up 10 one-half of the total number of Performance Rights granted 1o a Participant may be converied in
accordance with the Totlal Shareholder Return (TSR) ol Qantas in comparison io the Airlines as

{ollows:

Qanias TSR Periormance Compared to the Satisfaction of Performance Hurdle

Relevant Target

010 25" percentile Nil

25" 10 49" percentile Deifault nil, but subject to Board discretion

50" 10 74" percentile Sliding scale: 50% to 99% satisfied

100% satisfied

75" 10 100" percentile

The Airlines will consist of the foliowing airlines:

. Air France . JAL

. Air New Zealand . Lufthansa

. AMR Corp . Ryaneir

. British Airways . Singapore Airlines
. Cathay Pacific . Southwest Alrlines
. Delta Airlines . Virgin Blue

Noles:

1. The base date for determining the TSR s 1 July 2004,
To the extent that the cumulative Performance Hurdles have been achieved as a result of

testing, the relevant Rights may vest. (The Performance Hurdles in relation 1o Rights can only
be achieved once and once ully achieved the above calculations are not required.)
The average closing share prices over the quarier preceding the relevant Testing Dale is {0 be

3.
used 1o determine the relevant TSR periormance. _

4. Should data in respect of any of the companies in the chosen peer groups cease 1o be listed on
a relevant financial market during the periormance period, the average TSR ranking will be
determined utilising the remaining companies.

5. Verification ot whether, and to what extent, the above Periormance Hurdles have been met is

1o be provided by Qanias’ external audiior.
TL- Nanvd boe an chenhiie diccrelion in deiermining whether there i 10 he anv vestlina of

——
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Annexure A

S&P/ASX100 Index

(6 I S
0O WO m

. Lihir Golg Lid
. Lion Nathen Ltd
- Macauzarie Airporis

Company Company
1. Alinta Lid 51. Macquarie Bank Ltd
2. Alumina Ltd 52. Macquarie CountryWide Trust
3. Amcor Lid 53. Macquarie Goodman Industrial Trust
4. AMP Lid 54. Macquarie Infrasiructure Group
5. Ansell Lid 55. Macguarie Office Trust
6. APN News & Media Ltd 56. Mayne Group Ltd
7. Aristocrat Leisure Ltd 57. Mirvac Group
8. Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Lid 58. National Australia Bank Lid
9. Australian Gas Light Co Lid 59. National Foods Ltd
10. Australian Stock Exchange Ltd 60. Newcrest Mining Ltd
11. AWB Lid 61. Oil Search Lid
12. AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Lid 62. OneSieel Lid
13. BHP Billiion Ltd 63. Orica Lid
14. Billabong:International Lid 64. Origin Energy L1d
15. BlueScope Steel Ltd 65. Oxiana Limited
16. Bora! Lid 66. Pacific Brands Ltd
17. Brambles Industries Lid 67. PaperlinX Ltd
18. Caliex Australia Limited 68. Patrick Corp Ltd
19. Centro Properties Group 69. Perpeiual Trustees Australia Lid
20. CFS Gandel Retail Trust 70. Promina Group Lid
21. Challenger Financial Services Group Lid 71. Publishing & Broadcasting Ltd
22. Coca-Cola Amatil Ltd 72. QBE Insurance Group Lid
23. Cochlear Lid 73. Resmed Inc
~24. Coles Myer Ltd 74. Rinker Group Lid
25. Commonwealth Bank of Australia 75. Rio Tinto Ltd
26. Commonwealth Property Office Fund 76. Ronin Property Group
27. Computershare Lid 77. Santos Lid
28. CSL Lid 78. Sigma Co Ltd
29. CSR L 78. Sims Group Lid
30. Deutsche Diversitied Trust 80. Sonic Healthcare Ltid
31. Deutsche Office Trust 81. Southcorp Ltd
32. Foodlznd Associated Lid 82. St George Bank Ltd
33. Foster's Group Lid 83. Stockland
34. Futuris Corp Ltd 84. Suncorp-Metway Lid
35. General Property Trust 85. TABCORP Hoidings Lid
36. Gunns Lid 86. Telecom Corp of New Zegland Ltd
37. Harvey Norman Holdings Ltd 87. Telstra Corp Lid
38. HHG PLC 88. Ten Network Holdings Ltd
39. lluka Resources Ltd 89. Toll Holdings Lid
40. ING Industrial Fund 90. Transurban Group
41. ING Office Fund 81. Weslarmers Lid
42. Insurance Australia Group L1d 92. West Australian Newspapers Holdings Ltd
43. Invesia Property Group 93. Westfield Group
44, James Hardie Industries NV 94. Westpac Banking Corp
45. John Feirfax Holdings Ltd 95. WMC Resources Lid
46. Leighton Holdings Lid 96. Woodside Petroleum Lid
47. Lend Lezse Corp L1d 97. Woolworths Lid




Approved by Qantas Chairman (under Board delegation) -~ 16 February 2005
Attachment 2

Qantas Deferred Share Plan
2004/05 Pertormance Righis Plan
REQUEST TO VEST PERFORMANCE RIGHTS

To: Company Secretary
Qantas Airways Limited
Qantas Centre Building A, Level 9
203 Coward Streel
MASCOT NSW 2020

Facsimile; (02) 9691 3338

This Reguest to Vest Performance Rights is subject to, and must be read in
conjunction with, the Qantas Delerred Share Plan Terms & Conditions and the
2004/05 Performance Rights Plan Rules. Cepitalised terms in this Request to Vest
Performance Rights have the same meaning as in the Terms & Conditions.

(name),

R .
4

ot J (eddress),

in accordance with Rules 5.1 and 5.2 of the 2004/05 Performance Righis Plan Rules,
request that the following number of my Performance Righis vest:

or | ALL (please circle)

The number of Performance Rights you were awarded under the 2004/05 Performance
Rights Plan is shown on your updated Holding Statement. The number of your Performance
Rights in respect of which the Performance Hurdle has been tesied and achieved (if any) in
accordance with Rule 4 is also shown on your updated Holding Statement.

Note: If the number of Performance Righis exceed those available to you, it will be deermed
that the all your available Performance Rights will be vested.

Your Requesl 1o Vest Performance Rights will only be deemed valid if, under the 2004/05
Pertormance Rights Plan Rules, the Performance Hurdle has been iested and achieved (it

any) in accordance with Rule 4.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ALSO CONTAINED OVERLEAF. YOU MUST READ THIS

PRIOR TO SIGNING AND RETURNING THIS FORM.

I acknowledge my parlicipation in the Deferred Share Plan remains subject 1o the Qantas
Employee Trading Policy (Insider Trading) included in the Qanias Code of Conduct.

(signed) | (date) [ J




R
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

As set out in Rules 3 and 5 of the 2004/05 Periormance Share Plan Rules, Performance
Rights cannot vest until afier the Performance Hurdles have been tested and achieved (if
any) in accordance with Rule 4. Any Requests 1o Vest Performance Righis received before
this will not be processed until the Performance Hurdles have been achieved.

For the purposes of administering the Plan, any Requests 1o Vest Performance Rights which
are received will be converted into shares al poinis in time when the Company Secretary
deems that Qantas is not in possession of any material non-public information which would
otherwise breach the "Inside Information” provisions of the Corporations Act. Subject to the
“Inside iniormation” provisions of the Corporation Acl, Perfcrmance Rights will be

periodically converted into shares within a reasonable period of time.

After conversion, the Qantas Share Registry will send you written confirmation.
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Performance Equity Plan

The Performance Equity Plan comprises the Performance Share Plan (medium-term) and the
Performance Rights Plan (long-term incentive). Both elements are designed to strengthen the alignment
of the interests of the Participants with shareholders.

Performance Rights Plan
The aims of the Performance Rights Plan as the tong-term incentive component are to:
. align the interests of eligible Participanis and shareholders;

. provide a long-term incentive for the retention of key Executives; and
support a culture of employee share ownership.

As a retention tool, the program is specifically targeted to Executives in senior/key roles or identified as
high potential developing Executives.

Subject to achievement of a Board set Performance Hurdle, Rights may be converted (on a one-for-one
basis) o ordinary Qantas shares up to ten years after award at no cost to the individual. Once the
Performance Hurdle is satisfied, executives can “call” for the Rights to be converted.

The Performance Hurdle set by the Board for the 2004/05 grant of Rights is the Total Shareholder

. companies with ordinary shares included in the S&P/ASX100 Index in relation to 50% of the
Rights; and
. a basket of global listed airlines in relation to the other 50% of the Rights.

The TSR will be first tested as at 30 June 2007 and, if required, re-tested every three months over the
subsequent two years.

The Performance Hurdle will be considered satisfied in accordance with the following table:

Qantas TSR Performance Satisfaction of Performance Hurdle
Compared to the Relevant Target
0to 25" percentile Nil
25" to 49" percentile Default nil,
but subject to Board discretion
50" to 74™ percentile 50% to 99% satisfied
75Mto 100™ percentile 100% satisfied

Generally, any Rights which have not vested will lapse if the relevant Executive ceases employment with
the Qantas Group. Rights will also lapse if the Executive is guilty of gross misconduct in relation 1o the

Qantas Group.

Once Rights vest, Qantas shares will be purchased on-market on a one-for-one basis and registered in
the name of the relevant Executive.

This information is an addendum to the Executive Performance Plan General Information Booklet
(Booklet) and must be read in conjunction with the Booklet. This is an overview only and detailed

information is contained in the Plan Rules.
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[NAME]

[ADDRESS)
[ADDRESS]
[ADDRESS]

Qantas Airways Limite

ABN 16 009 681 90

Qantas Share Registr

Level 8, 580 George Street, Sydney, NSW, 200
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South, NSW, 123
Telephone: 1800177 74

international: 612 8280 739

Facsimile: 02 9287 030

ASX Code: QAl

Email: registry@qantas.cor

Website: www.gantas.cor

ASX CODE: QA!
SRN: [SRN
TEN: [QUOTED YN

STATEMENT DATE: 21 FEBRUARY 200

SUMMARY OF HOLDINGS
AS AT 21 FEBRUARY 2005

Gradable Securities

Qantas fully paid ordinary sﬁz‘a es

Employee Securities

Qantas Deferred Share Pla
2003 / 2004 Performance Sh
(shares held by the Deferred:

Qantas Deferred Share Plan:
Qantas Senior Manager Long -erm_.l
{shares held by the Deferred '

Qantas Deferred Share Plan:

‘Qantas Deferred Share Plan-

Qantas Deferred Share Pian
2002 Performance Rights Plg

1998 Award _
Qantas Long-Term Execuhve Inc

2000 Award

2000 Supplementary Award

above under "Tradable Securities”.

-

2004 / 2005 Performance nghts Plan _

)2003 / 2004 Performance nghts Plan,

Qantas Long-Term Executive Inc_em:ve Plan:_l' :

Non-tradable Balance Tradable Balance

0 [NUMBER]

Non-tradable Balance Tradable Balance

[NUMBER] Shares N/A

[NUMBER] Shares N/A

[NUMBER] Rights? 0?
INUMBER] Rights® 0°
[NUMBER] Rights® 02

[NUMBER] Entitlements®
[NUMBER] Entitlements®

[NUMBER] Enmlemems2 3.::1:1 .. [NUMBER] Entitlements®"

1. Any vested shares are transferred from the Trustee and registered in your name. As such, these shares appear

2. Any Rights or Entitlements that have been converted to Qantas shares appear above under ' Tradable Securities”.
3. Please note that these Entitlements do not convert cn a one—for-one basis to Qantas shares.




* Assistant Company Secretary
Janine Smith

OANTAS

4 April 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
PO Box 4000
Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam
Form 484 — Section B1 - Cease Company Officeholder

Attached for filing is @ Form 484 for Qantas Airways Limited pertammg to the resignation of
Trevor Eastwood as Qantas Director. -

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate
copy of this letter to me.

Yours faithfully

e dnins o Oones
Janine L. Smith
Manager Public Company

Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities and Investments Commission

P
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Assistant Company Secretary
Janine Smith

QANTAS
4 April 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
PO Box 4000
Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam
Form 484 — Section B1 — Cease Company Officeholder

Attached for filing is a Form 484 for Qantas Airways Limited pertaining to the resignation of
Trevor Eastwood as Qantas Director.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate
copy of this letter to me.

Yours faithfully

K)’YLU«"ASUL Juri

Janine L. Smith
Manager Public Company

Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities and Investments Commission
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Australian Securities &

Investments Commission

Change to company details

Sections A, B or C may be lodged independently with this signed cover page to notify ASIC of:

A1 Change of address
A2 Change of name - officeholders or members
A3 Change - ultimate holding company

B1 Cease company officeholder
B2 Appoint company officeholder
B3 Special purpose company

Form 484
Corporations Act 2001

C1 Cancellation of shares

C2 Issue of shares

C3 Change to share structure

C4 Changes fo the register of members

If there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this lodgement

Company details

Refer to guide for information about
corporate key

)

Company name

I Qantas Airways Limited

ACN/ABN

Corporate key

[16 009 661 901

] [20401595 B

Lodgement details

Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form?

Name

[Janiné Louise Smith

ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)

(115

Telephone number

{02 9691 4262

Postal address

@mtas Centre, Building A, Level 9, 203 Coward Street, Mascot ,

[nsw, 2020

|

Total number of pages including this cover sheet

Please provide an estimate of the time taken to complete this form.

J hrs { } mins

Signature

This form must be signied by a current officeholder of the company.

| certify that the information in this cover sheet and the attached sections of this form are true and complete.

Name

fBrett Stuart Johnson

Capacity

Direclor
Company secretary
Signature

~~

s e L
Date signed
[ lo]kle]
D DM MY Y

Lodgement

Send completed and signed forms to:
Australian Securities and Investments Cormnmission,
PO Box 4000, Gippstand Mail Centre VIC 3841.

For help or more information
Telephone 03 5177 3988
Email info.enquiries@asic.gov.ay

AL~k ARRRAL PO/ AN A




B1 Cease company officeholder

Use this section to notify if a company officeholder has ceased to be a company officeholder. You need to notify details separately for each ceased
officeholder.

Role of ceased officeholder Director

Select one or more boxes
Secrelary

D Alternate director Person altemate for

I ]
Date of change
Enfinielo

MM

Date officeholder ceased

The name of the ceased officeholder is

Name
Family name Given names
[Estwood j (Trevor Raymond J
Date of birth
[2][e]ilo] [z )[4 ][2]
© DO M M ¥ Y]
Place of birth (town/city) (statefcountry)
lAdelaide ] !South Australia

B1 Continued... Cease another company officeholder

Use this section to nofify if a company officeholder has ceased to be a company officeholder. You need to notify details separately for each ceased
officeholder.

Role of ceased officeholder D Direclor
Select one or more boxes D
Secretary

D Alternate director Person alternate for

Date of change

LIJCLCIL LI

o0 W WYY

Date officeholder ceased

The name of the ceased officeholder is
Family name Given names

L |

Name

Date of birth

IO

L]

/ /
D Db M M Yy VY
Place of birth (lown/city)

(state/country)

L

|

[
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" B2 Appoint company officeholder

Use this section to nolify appointment of 2 company officeholder. You need to notify details separately for each new officeholder.

Rele of appointed officeholder
Select one or more boxes

Date of appointment

Name

“jmer name
.y change by deed poll or marriage

Residential address

If an ‘Alternate director’, for whom

Note:

Where an Alternate director is
appointed, please attach the terms
of appointment to this change form.
(Refer to the guide for annexure
requirements)

D Director
D Secretary

D Alternate director

Date of appointment

LI

o oM M Y v

The name of the appointed officeholder is {provide full given names, not initials)
Family name Given names

L |

Date of birth

UL

D Db M M Y Y]
Place of birth (town/city) (state/country)

| )

Their previous name was (provide full given names, not initials)
Family name v Given names

| ||

The residential address of the appointed officeholder is

Street number and Street name

|

Suburb/City State/Territory
Postcode Country {if not Australia)

I |

The appointed ‘Alternate director’ is alternate for (person alternate for)
Family name Given names

L

Expiry date (if applicable)

DL OL00

[0 D]/[M MY Y]

D Alternate director terms of appointment attached




B2 Continued... Appoint another company officeholder

Use this section 1o nolify appointment of & company officeholder. You need to notify details separalely for each new officeholder.

Role of appointed officeholder D Director
Select one or more boxes D
Secrelary

D Alternate director

Date of appointment

Date of appointment
LIC L]

O 0O M M [¥ Y

The name of the appointed officeholder is {provide full given names, nof initials)

Name
Family name Given names
Date of birth

L]

/
D D M MY Y
Place of birth (town/city) {state/country)

I o )

Their previous hame was (provide full given names, hot initials)

Former name : ‘ -
Eg change by deed poll or marriage Family name ] F'Ve” names ' /,)

The residential address of the appointed officeholder is
Street number and Street name

L ]

Residential address

Suburb/City State/Territory
Postcode Country (if not Australia)

I 1 |

The appointed ‘Alternate director’ is alternate for {person alternate for)
Family name Given names

Note: [ ][ |

Where an Alternate director is

If an ‘Alternate director’, for whom

appointed, please attach the terms Expiry date {if applicable)
of appointment to this change form.
(Refer to the guide for annexure [D] 5 ! T ! Q [Y]
requirements) [ I I ]
D Alternate director terms of appointment atiached . )

B3 Special purpose company

Use this section to notify if the company has commenced or ceased stalus as one of the special purpose company designations below.
Note: If you indicate that your company has commenced status as one of the special purpose company designations listed below, ASIC will send a2 declaration for you to complete and
return. Special purpose company designations are defined under Regulation 3 of the Corparations {Review Fees) Regulations 2003.

The change is — Commence

‘—‘D Home unit company

——D Superannuation trustee company
——D For charitable purposes only
D Cease

For new registrations, use the Date of change

date of registration as the ‘date of D D /D D/D D

change! oo M M



Assistant Company Secretary

§

&

Janing Smith

QANTAS
27 April 2005 '

Australian Securities & Investments Commission
PO Box 4000 -
Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Re: Form 379 — Residential address or change in residential address for persons entitled to
use an alternative address

Dea_r Sir/Madam

i
/\ttaézz’ed for filing is @ Form 379 to reflect the change of residential address for the Chairman of
Qantas Airways Limited.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this letter by signing and returning the duplicate to me.

If you require further information please do not hesitate o contact me on 02 9691 4262 during
business hours.

Yours faithfully

Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities and Investments Commission
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379 page 11 15 July 2001

ASIC registered agent number 4 5 g

lodging party or agent name Janine Louise Smith
office, level, building name or PO Box n0. gantas Centre, Building A, Level 9
street number &-néme 203 Coward Street

suburb/city Mascot statefterritory  NSW postcode2 020
telephone ( 02 ) 9691 4262
- ASS. REQ-A
facsimite ( 02 ) 9691 3339 ' casn F rop B
DX number suburbycity PROC.

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

Notification of form 379

% residential address or change in .
. . . Corporations Act 2001
@ residential address for persons entitled to 205D(3)

use an alternative address

Personal details

family name ... given names .. qaret Anne

former family & given names (if any} Jackson

date of birth (&/m/y) 17 /03 /1953

place of birth {town/city) warraqul (state/country) victoria

{tick the appropriate box)

[ 1 am entitied to have an alternative address inciuded in notices under subsections 2058(1), (2) or (4) or applications under subsections
5H(2), 117{2) or 601BC(2) because my name, but not my residential address, is on an electoral rolf under the
Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918 because of section 104 of that Act.

or

ASIC has determined in writing under paragraph 2050(1)(b) that  am entitled to have an ziternative address included in notices under
subsections 2058(1), (2) or (4) or applications under subsections 5H{2), 117(2) or 601BC(2).

ASIC approval number (if issued) g

]
Usual residential address or change to usual residential address

unit, floor, building name

street number and name 9 Avalon Road

suburb / €ity pymadale state/territory yyo postcode 3143

date of change (if applicable) 15 /04 /2005

|
Signature
| certify that the information in this form is true and correct.

printname prett Stuart Johnson

sign here . ; date 26/ p4 /2005

bag)

Small Business (jess than 20 employees), please provide an estimate of the time taken to complete this form

Include
The time actually spent reading the instructions, working on the question and obtaining the information
The time spent by all employees in colfecting and providing this information

hrs mins



R

Assistant Company Secretary
Janine Smith

QANTAS
6 June 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

PO Box 4000
Gippsiand Mai! Centre VIC. 3841

‘Re: Form 379 Application for suppression of residential address

Dear Sir/Madam

| refer to a recent discussion with Elly Vandrehulst of your Client Contact Centre regarding the Form
379 - Applications for suppression of residential address for Margaret Anne Jackson, Chairman of

Qantas Airways Limited.

Please note that Margaret Jackson has.previously been granted "Silent Enrolment" under section
104 of the Commonwealth Electoral Act.1918. As a result, on 9 September 1997, ASIC approved
Margaret Jackson's application to use an alternative address (number 58).

However, given Ms Jackson has changed electorates (from Kooyong to Higgins), she has to have a
new "Silent Enroiment" approved by the Australian Electoral Commission (AEC). While | realise
that pursuant to section 205D(3) of the Corporations Act, we are required o lodge with ASIC any
change in a person’s usual residential address, we are at this stage unable to complete the requisite
form as we cannot attach "a [current] copy of the AEC's letter confirming silent enrolment status".
As soon as we have confirmation from the AEC of this approval, we will lodge the necessary Form

379.
| ask for your understanding in this matter.
Could you please acknowledge receipt of this letter by signing and returning the duplicate to me.

If you require further information please do not hesitate to contact me on 02 9691 4262 during
business hours.

Yours faithfully

Assistant_ Company Secretary

Receipt Acknowledged

VY U Y LY - D Y, I T T o
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.
ASIC registered agent number;
lodging party or agem name:
address:
telephone:
facsimile:
DX number:
suburb/eity:
reference:
ASS. REQ-A ]
CASH. REQ-P
PROC.
Australian Securities and Investments Commission - form 309
Notification of Corporations Act 2001
details of a charge 263, 264

This form must be lodged wheye: any Australian company or registered body creates a charge or acquires property subject to a charge

(lodge within 45 days after the charge was created or the property was acquired)
or _ any foreign company or regisirable Australian body has an existing charge on its property and is applying for registration
{lodge with appropriate registration form).
Corporation name {chasgor) QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ACNorARBN (009 661 901

Details of the charge
Date charge was created G Sonz 2005 o date property was acquired

How was the charge created? D by resolution B by instrument D by deposit X by other conduct, specify below

As set out in the charge

Type of charge [X) Fixed [J  flating [[] fixedandfioating
If the charge is a floating charge, or a fixed and floating charge, is the creation of subsequent charges restricted or prohibited? yes D no [___]

Briefly describe the liability (whether present or prospective) secured by the charge

At any time, all amounts then due for payment or which will or may become due for payment or
which remain unpaid, by the chargor 1o a Beneficiary in respect of the Principal Outstanding
under the Transaction Documents (capitalised terms have the meaning given in the charge).

Maximum prospective fiability(if applicable see section 282): US$750,000,000

Briefly describe the property charged All present and future right, title and interest of the chargor in and to the Airbus mode! A330-300

aiframe manufacturer’s serial number 574 together with the four General Electric Model GE
CF6-80E1A3 engines with manufacturer's serial numbers 811241 and 811243 and the Technical
Records, Manufacturer's Warranties and Insurances (each such term as defined in the charge)
and other property as more specifically described in the charge.

] deteils of the chargee [[] detalls of the trustee for the debenture holders

Name {family & given names or corporation name, if a corporation give AC.N. or AR.B.N. if applicable)
Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft

office, fioor, building name
streetnumber & name  Kajserstr. 16

suburb/city statefterritory postcode 50311 Frankfurt am Main

country {if not Australia) Germany
financial benefit
Nominate any financia! benefit (such as an amount or rate percent of commission, aflowance or discount) given to someone who, absolutely or conditionally,
subscribes o or agrees fo subscribe to, o procures or agrees 1o procure, subscriptions for any debentures included in this notice.

Signature This form must be signed by, or on behail of, the Australian company, the registrable Australian body or the foreign company or

by an interested person

Print name of person signing X TANHIE. oMMt

Capacity or nature of interest of person signing(including details of the authority you have, 11 sngmng on behall of a corporation)

ASSISTANT COMPANY SECRETARY

if signing on behalf of a corporation, print name of carporation & ACN or ARBN

QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED ACN 009 661 901

NV O N e A




309 272 15 July 2001

0. ~
i —p>

Documents

| declare that the statements below are correct. {tick boxes which apply)

charge created by issue of debentures

tverty ]

O
]

charge created by an instrument
]E The original of the insirument(s) crealing or evidencing the charge is atlached.

OR

of a series of debentures constituting the charge.
and 1 witnessed the execution of the first debenture in the series.

and the annexure marked () is a true copy of the first debenture in the series

tverty ]

witnessed the execution by the chargor of the instrumeni(s).

charge existing on the property acquired
terty ]

*Annexures must conform to the requirements shown at the end of this form.

the annexure marked ( ) of () pages is a true copy of the resolution(s) passed by the corporation authorising the issue

the annexure marked! () of () pages is a true copy of the instrument(s) creating or evidencing the charge and |

the annexure marked {  } of () pages is a true copy of the instrument(s) creating or evidencing the charge.

Signature
by an interested person

Print name of person signing X ny Ao, SN

This form must be signed by, or on behall of, the Australian company, the registrable Australian body or the loreign company or

Capacity or nature of interest of person signing{including details of the authority you have, if signing on behall of a corporation)

ASSISTANT COMPANY SECRETARY

if signing on behalf of a corporation, print name of corporation & ACN or ARBN
QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED ACN 009 661 901

sgnhere ) Qf\,\Q Q; O date 33! b } 2005
(NS~ — !

Small Businesg {les? than 20 emplayees), please provide an estimate of the time taken to

complete this form.
Include:
. The time actually spent reading the instructions, working on the question and
obtaining the information
. The fime spent by all employees in coliecting and providing this information.
hrs mins

Compliance with stamp duty law

A duly completed certification of compliance with stamp duties faw (form 350):
D accompanies this form.

does not accompany this form.

If all the documents accompanying this  Provisional registration
jorm required by section 263(1) have been
stamped in accordance with the law
relating lo stamp duty, complete and attach
the form 350 “Cerdification of

compliance with stamp duties law".,

If any document accompanying this form
has not been stamped as reguired by
any law refating to stamp duty,

of

if this form contains the company name
and the name of the trustee or chargee
but not all other details,

the Commission will mark the entry in the
Register as “provisional” and ask you to
complete the requirements.

It the requirements have not been
completed by a specfied time, the
Commission will delete all particulars of the
charge from the register.

Send to Annexures
Australian Securiies and Investments 10 make any annexure conform to the regulations, you must
Commission . . . .
PO Box 4000 1 use A4 size paper of white or light pastel colour with a margin of af least 10mm on all sides
Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841 2. show the corporation name and A.CN. or ARBN.

3. number the pages consecutively

4. print or type in dark blue or black ink so that the document is clearly legible when photocopied

5. identify the annexure with 2 mark such as A, B, C, elc

6. endorse the annexure with the words:

This is annexure (mark) of (number) pages referred fo in form (form number and titie)
7. sign and date the annexure

The annexure must be signed by the same person(s) who signed the form.




350 11

15 July 2001

ASIC registered agent number; A BARCODE IS NOT REQUIRED ON THIS
lodging party or agent name: DOCUMENT
address: '
telephone:
facsimile:
DX number:
suburb/city:
reference:
ASS. REQ-A
CASH. REQ-P
PROC.
Australian Securities and Investments Commission form 350
Certification of Corporations Act 2001
compliance with stamp duties law 265(4)(b)
corporation name  QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
ACNor ARBN 009 661 901

Details of the charge

dale charge was created |, g me 2005

name of chargee(s) or trustee(s)

COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Certification

| certify that all the documents accompanying the notification of details of this charge, in accordance with
section 263(1), have been duly stamped if so required and as required by any law of the Australian Capital
Territory, New South Wales, the Northem Territory, Queensland, South Australia, Tasmania, Victoria and
Western Australia relating to stamp duty on any such document,

print name of person signing //

JArass¥e, ST

capacity or nature of interest of person signing (including details of the authority you have, if signing on behalf of a corporation)

ASSISTANT COMPANY SECRETARY

if signing on behalf of a corporation, print name of corporation & ACN or ARBN

QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED ACN 009 661 901

‘\

signhere X W '&l/(/@\g g 7)3 / f) /QOOS

Small Busin

Include:

N
ss (less than 20/employees), please provide an estimate of the time taken to
complete thig form.

The time actually spent reading the instructions, working on the question and

obtaining the information

The time spent by all employees in collecting and providing this information.
hrs mins




Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith

QANTAS
15 July 2005

Australian Securities & investments Commission
PO Box 4000 ‘
Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam
Re: Form 484 - Section B2 — Appoint company officeholder

Attached for filing is Form 484 for Qantas Airways Limited pertaining to the appointment of Peter
Cosgrove to the Qantas Board.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate copy
of this letter to me.

if you require further information please do not hesitale to contact me on 02 9691 4262 during
business hours.

Yours faithfully

Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities and Investments Commission

SENDER TO KEEP

CN9236786

e




Assistant Company Secretary

Janine Smith

QANTAS
15 July 2005

Australian Securities & Investments Commission

PO Box 4000
‘Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841

Dear Sir/Madam
Re: Form 484 — Section B2 — Appoint company officeholder

Attached for filing is Form 484 for Qantas Airways Limited pertaining to the appointment of Peter
Cosgrove to the Qantas Board.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this document by signing and returning the duplicate copy
of this letter to me.

If you require further information please do not hesitate to contact me on 02 9691 4262 during
" business hours.

Yours faithfully .~

Assistant Comparly Secretary

-Receipt Acknowledged

for Australian Securities and Investments Commission




Australian Securities &
Investments Commission

Form 484
Corporations Act 2001

Change to company details

Sections A, B or C may be lodged independently with this signed cover page to notify ASIC of;

A1 Change of address B1 Cease company officehalder C1 Cancellation of shares
A2 Change of name - officeholders or members B2 Appoint company officeholder C2 Issue of shares
A3 Change - ultimate holding company B3 Special purpose company C3 Change to share structure

C4 Changes 1o the register of members

if there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this lodgement

Company details Cornpany name '
[Eantas Airways Limited l
Refer to guide for information about ACN/ABN Corporate key
corporate key [16 009 661 901 | 88952968 |
Lodgement details Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form?
Name
LJanine Louise Smith J

ASIC registered agent number {if applicable)

[115 il

Telephone number

[02 9691 4262 |
Postal address ‘

LQantas Centre, Building A, Level 9, 203 Coward Street 1
IMascot, New South Wales, 2020 j
Total number of pages including this cover sheet Please provide an estimate of the time taken to complete this form.

Lf hrs I__l mins

Signature
This form must be signed by a current officeholder of the company.
- | certify that the information in this cover sheet and the attached sections of this form are true and complete.
Neme '
Brett Stuart Johnson J

Capacity
Director

Company secretary

Signature

Date signed

EblElle]

L 0 Mm M

Lodgement Send completed and signed forms 1o: For help or more information
Australian Securities and Investments Commission, Telephone 03 5177 3988
PO Box 4000, Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841. Email infm eRAiRec@acic ami o




B1 Cease company officeholder
Use this section 1o notify if a company officeholder has ceased to be a company cfficeholder. You need to notify details separately for each ceased
_ officeholder.

Role of ceased officeholder D Director

Select one or more boxes

Date officeholder ceased

Name

D Secretary

D Alternate director Person alternate for

Date of change

D0

/ )
D D M M Y Y

The name of the ceased officeholder is
Family name Given names

l )

mininninn

/ /
O 0 M M [¥ Y
Place of birth (town/city) (statefcountry)

L ||

B1 Continued... Cease another company officeholder

Use this section to notify if a company officeholder has ceased to be a company officeholder. You need to notify details separately for each ceased

officeholder.

Role of ceased officeholder

Select one or more boxes

Date officeholder ceased

Name

D Director
D Secretary
D Alternate director

Person alternate for

Date of change

IO

/
© 0O M M Y Y]

The name of the ceased officeholder is
Family name Given names

| ] L

Date of hirth

OO0

/ /
D D M M ¥ V]
Place of birth {town/city) (statefcountry)

L ||




B2 Apboint company officeholder

Use this section 1o nolify appointment of a company officeholder. You need to notify details separately for each new officeholder.

Role of appointed officeholder Director

Select one or more boxes
Secretary

D Alternate director

Date of appointment

Lo][e];Lo][7],[o][5]

o O m M [y v

Date of appointment

The name of the appointed officeholder is (provide full given names, not initials)

Name
Family name Given names
[Cosgrove ] [Peter John '
Date of birth
[2][e][o][7))[e][7]
D DM MY V]
Place of birth {town/city) (statef/country)
[Sydney T [New South Wales ]
\}mer name Their previous name was (provide full given names, not initials)
kg change by deed poll or marriage Family name Given names

] |

The residential address of the appointed officeholder is

Residential address

Street number and Street name
flo Garsia Street

|

Suburb/City State/Territory
[Campbe 11 ] ET J
Posicode Country (if not Australie)

ez ] | | |

The appointed ‘Alternate director’ is alternate for (person alternate for}
Family name Given names

Note: r I L 4’

Where an Aliernate director is

If an 'Aiternate director’, for whom

appointed, please attach the terms Expiry date (if applicable)
of appointment to this change form.
(Refer 1o the guide for annexure %] [;}M{%l l%],/[_{;] g]

)‘ requirements)

D Alternate director terms of appointment attached
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//Continued... Appoint another company officeholder

- “Use this section to nofify appointment of a company officeholder. You need {o notify details separately for each new officeholder.

Role of appointed officeholder
Select one or more boxes

Date of appointment

Former name
Eg change by deed poll or marriage

Residential address

If an ‘Alternate director’, for whom

Note:

Where an Alternate director is
appointed, please attach the terms
of appointment to this change form.
(Refer to the guide for annexure
requirements)

D Director
D Secretary
D Alternate director

Date of appointment

IOV

/ /
L oM MY

The name of the appointed officeholder is (provide full given names, not initials)
Family name Given names

l 1L

Date of birth

L]

oM MY v
Place of birth {fown/city) {state/country)

l L

Their previous name was (provide full given names, not initials)
Family name Given names

L 1L

The residential address of the appointed officeholder is
Street number and Street name

L

Suburb/City State/Territory

L 11

Postcode Country (if not Australia)

[ 1L

The appointed ‘Alternate director’ is alternate for (person alternate for)
Family name Given names

1 L

Expiry date (if applicable)

L0

! /
O D) M M [y Y]

D Alternate director terms of appointment attached

S

B3 Special purpose company

Use this section to notify if the company has commenced or ceased status as one of the special purpose company designations below.

Note: If you indicate that your company has commenced status as one of the special purpose company designations listed below, ASIC will send a declaration for you to complete and
return. Special purpose company designations are defined under Regulation 3 of the Corporations (Review Fees) Regulations 2003.

The change is

For new registrations, use the
date of registration as the 'date of

!——— Commence
‘—D Home unit company

——-D Superannuation {rustee company
—-—D For charitable purposes only
D Cease

Date of change

CaAr .m0 7 1



